ANNUARL REPORT

2015 F#

TR 257 =
|

(EEIEE

Ul...

/

L]

®

f|

]

‘|

' -

q

ll.
~

VI8

i

.

N

(|
T | T | T | W | A | | -
B NR T e

VAST %4
Pl RZRE R iRk R AR AR

China VAST Industrial Urban Development Company Limited

(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)
(RS ESEMAZ BRAR)
Stock code &5 fX5%: 6166




About us

Founded in June 1995, China VAST Industrial Urban Development Company Limited (referred to as “China VAST Development”,
Stock Code: 6166. HK) is one of the pioneer providers in the planning, development and operation of large-scale industrial
town projects. Riding on its experience in property development accumulated in the initial stage, China VAST Development
was transformed into a pioneer in new urbanization construction in 2005. The Company has been committed to develop large-
scale industrial town projects in the strategic planning areas under the integration of Beijing-Tianjin-Hebei and "Two Horizontal
& Three Vertical Urbanization Plan”, demonstrating its four comparative advantages including: unique abilities in industrial town
planning, designing & positioning, abilities in infrastructure investment and construction, abilities in marketing & promotioning,
and related auxiliary facilities for logistics, residential & commercial properties. Through cooperation with local governments under
long-term agreements, unlike other ordinary property developers, industrial towns are designed to provide a wide spectrum of
comprehensive and professional services for regional industrial development and development in towns, including planning and
design, industry positioning, land preparation, infrastructure construction, marketing and promotion and related auxiliary facilities
for logistics, residential and commercial properties. Currently, China VAST Development has around 20 subsidiaries including
Langfang Sheng Shi Construction & Investment Co., Ltd., Chuzhou Vast Zhanyao Investment Co., Ltd., Zhangjiakou Vast Industrial
Urban Development Co., Ltd. and Langfang City Property Development Co., Ltd., all of which are responsible for construction and
development service of different industrial towns. China VAST Development is working together with local government of Langfang,
Zhangjiakou and Shijiazhuang of Hebei province, Chuzhou, Anhui province and Ezhou, Hubei province in respect of development of
7 industrial town projects with project planning areas of approximately 90 sq. km. Focusing on the optimization of infrastructures
in the abovementioned regions, transformation of industry and construction of urbanization as well as building and realizing fully
integration of working and living communities for its residents, China VAST Development will spare no effort to become a leading
provider and operator of industrial town in China.

REEN

FEEREETEZERE AR 2 A China VAST Industrial Urban Development Company Limited (f5# R B = Z3R" - BRD R
6166 HKIRBIR 19956 A - RABIEZEMHEE R RS - FERELRBEERPHETEZ — - CBYVHAMEREEROLR -
FBIRRERN2005FEA AN RRNETE  REBONTEE B ME =4k B m RaEEnr K5
EXMEEEME BB TEENEXTERE - LT ERSEREEERESD  BEsl&eh  BEEDR  BEK
REVESHBESH PRGN AAEHES - BRIREM—BNEHERER  EXmEMEIEZRERPRIETRFEIE " B
B EXEENTERAEEZRER—RIGE  BERE - BIE - REBE - ERETEM - T EEP - BEAERRE - FEBHES
B BREWR BEREEVESHEASDRE - B FRERERE BRI MATELEEBRAR - BINEEBRIEE
BRAAE  RXOEFEENERRERAFMBI MR EENERBEERARSH0XRMBLE  EECEEETREETIE
R MFERTS - FRAZEBIEASTILERHT  RROWARAREMN « LEE BN A& SO i A5 BUT 7 EE %
THETE B MBAEEITAIE - THE REIBEBL0FH R E - FAMEM LB SEREETE  EXSAARFRE(CEE
BEEN B BREMRREG  TERRZEBE2NITENATRECHEETBAMEREELN -




Contents

B &%

&

50

=L

63

Corporate Information
NGIE-g

Financial Highlights
IHBRHE

Chairman’s Statement
FERE

Management Discussion and Analysis

BB wm R

Biographies of Directors and Senior Management
EERERERBABRER

Corporate Governance Report
EEREARE

Director’s Report
BEEEWRE

Cconsolidated Financial Statements

A HRE

76 Independent Auditor’s Report
B AZEEN RS

78 Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and

Other Comprehensive Income
SERkEMEEWKERE

79 Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
A PBARAER

8l Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
NN ey P

83 Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
:ﬂ' = EE%/)ILE;E

86 Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A TS ERR M

196 Five Year Financial Summary

hFMHERE




Corporate Information
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Financial Highlights
MBEHE

(in RMB’000 A EE % F7t)
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For the year ended 31 December
HE12 A31HLEFE
2014 2015 Approximate
RMB RMB Change %
AR AR LA IR %
Revenue Wk 2,391.2 million @&  1,423.7 million B8 (40.5)
Gross profit EF 1,128.1 million B & 611.0 million & (45.8)
Profit before tax B A AT ) 931.6 million B & 681.0 million B8 (26.9)
Profit attributable to owners [SYNCIEZSPNI1a 700.6 million &  513.6 million B& (26.7)
of the parent pieil
Proposed final dividend BUR RN B () HK15 cents 7811l HK10 cents &l (33.3)
per share
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Financial Highlights

MBRE

(in RMB'000 A FE#F 7t)

Segment revenue

7 wPU R

33%
RMB472.2 million
AR¥4722858

FY15

Segment gross profit

2 EBER

66%
RMB405.6 million
AR¥405.658

FY15
15 MIEE

RMB611.0 million
AR¥611.088

32%
RMB195.0 million
AR¥195.088

@ Land development
b

15 BTBFE

RMB1,423.7 million
AR¥1,423788

1% 44% —— 1%
RM‘.’;10_6 million RMB1,046.3 million RMB12.9 million
AR¥10.65E AR¥1,046.388 ARM12988

FY14
14 BIEE
RMB2,391.2 million
ARY2,391.28E8

66%
RMB940.9 million
AR¥940.988

55%
RMB1,332.0 million
AR¥1,332.088

76%
RMB857.1 million

AR¥S57.1HE FY14
14 BIBEE
RMB1,128.1 million
29% AR¥1,1281858
RMB10.4 million
AR¥10488
1%
RMB12.5 million
23% AR¥12558
RMB258.5 million
AR¥258.5HE8

@ Property development

Property leasing
MFEER

MEHRE
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Chairman’s Statement

ERW|E

Dear shareholders,

Efforts in the past made us strong today, surmounting the obstacles helped us
pave our way.

In the commencement of spring in 2016, we have begun a brand new
development journey. First of all, | am pleased to show our greatest gratitude,
kindest regards and best wishes to all shareholders and investors on behalf
of the board of the Company and myself!

The Company has gone through an extraordinary development path,
surmounted obstacles and forged ahead in the past 20 years to reach this
critical moment, collaging a beautiful picture that showcased the growth of
a modern enterprise. By challenging itself to innovate and transform again
and again, we have accumulated sufficient power for further development.
2015 was especially unforgettable in that it was not only the conclusion of
the “Twelfth Five Year Plan”, but also the first full financial year since the
Company's listing in Hong Kong. With the concerns, supports and assists
from all the shareholders, investors and business partners, the Company had
endeavored to meet the specific targets and tasks in a wide range of areas,
including enlarging the principal business of industrial urban development,
improving the operation and management standards and promoting the
building of brand image, which have born the Company fruitful results this
year. The Company achieved an operating revenue of RMB1,423.7 million; and
a gross profit of RMB611.0 million. Net profits attributable to the shareholders
of the Company were RMB513.6 million, and basic earnings per share were
RMBO.31. It maintained certain development in the severe and complicating
macro-economic environment.
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Chairman’s Statement

ER|E

Breakthroughs in investment and expansion achieved by
accelerating the industrial urban strategic planning. The Company
seized the opportunities arising from national strategies, including Beijing-
Tianjin-Hebei Coordinated Development and Yangtze River Delta Economic
Zone, by the addition of two industrial town projects in Shijiazhuang City,
Luancheng District and Ezhou Economic Development Zone, Hubei, and
establishment of the two teams for the new business in Zhangjiakou and
Shijiazhuang. Currently, the Company operates its businesses in six provinces
(Hebei province, Anhui province, Hubei province, Guangdong province, Beijing
and Hong Kong Special Administrative Region) and eight cities, invests and
launches seven community infrastructure construction projects in five cities,
with an aggregate planned site area of over 90 square kilometers, all of which
are the new parks and potential development regions for the transformation
and enhancement of sustainable industry and transfer of high-end business.

New dimensions for infrastructure and high quality project
construction from promoting the park development. Roads, bridges,
integrated network were newly constructed in Longhe Park, ancillary facilities
and coverage have been expanding and hard facilities were ranked top
among the same type of parks in Langfang. The construction of four real
estate projects, including Meishu Phase Il (3548 — &), Longdi Phase Il (FE88 —
Hi)), Chuangye Plaza (Phase II) | (8l X/ — ) and Shangbei Building (51t X
J&), have been completed. Four construction projects, including Foxconn City
Phase Il (& FE# — ), Shangshi Jiahua (i tth322E), Withub and Dreamwork
Phase | (E&-2 T —#1), Tanghai Project (B/&IE H), are in progress.
Businesses in relation to the property development, construction work and
property leasing were stable and safe and no significant liability incidents in
respect of quality has occurred.
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Chairman’s Statement

ERW|E

New achievements in business transformation and upgrade made
by exploring new path of business. The Company strived to build Beijing-
Tianjin-Hebei (Langfang) Coordinated Hub for Innovative Ventures, two high-
end technology and innovation vectors, namely Withub and Dreamwork,
and built maker space, such as Innovation Investment Port (8I1#%74), Training
Centre of Innovation (8I#%Fx) and Venture Cafés, providing 140,000 sg.m
for generating innovation. In August 2015, Zhao Kezhi, Party Secretary for
the Hubei province, gave full recognition on Park’s innovation through
mechanism and new establishment of innovative venture platforms while
visiting Langfang and promoted this as a typical experience in the province.
Also, the Company focused on forming Tron Space, a high-end vector and
incubator promoting innovation, at the National Innovation Center (B2 &I%7
#.0) in order to capture first-hand information, technology and resources
from the source in an effort to promote coordinated development in
technology and innovation in Beijing-Tianjin-Hebei. The first Tron Space was
held and operated at Zhongguancun, Beijing with 1,350 sq.m for innovation,
mainly comprising four zones including Venture Space, Park Integration and
Innovation Centre, Industry Development and Organization Accelerator and
Public Internet + share platform. Besides, Shenzhen Tron Space is decorating
and Shanghai Tron Space is preparing.

New progress made in the introduction of state-owned enterprises
and high-end technology enterprises by seizing the opportunities
of project strategic cooperation. The Company has formed a strategic
cooperation or project cooperation with state-owned and gigantic
enterprises, such as China National Building Material Company Limited (4
##), China Aerospace Science & Industry Corporation (fi X%t T), China
Construction Second Engineering Bureau Ltd. (7 —=/), China Culture
Media Group (F{&4%), China Technology Exchange (& Ff), Ping An
Insurance (Group) Company of China, Ltd. ((F% £ @) and China Minsheng
Bank; universities, includes Peking University, Beihang University, University
of Science and Technology Beijing and Beijing University of Technology; and
domestic and foreign organizations, such as China Alliance (FF B8 7= 25t
B3), Hubei Provincial High Technology Industry Investment Co., Ltd (it &
#), Joyair, Orient International (Holding) Co., Ltd. (375 BE), Japan branch
of People’s Daily (AR# B A &+f), University of California, Los Angeles
and AVIO International Co., Ltd (AVIOEIER) to introduce advanced technology
regeneration projects such as Depu Technology (&&= ), carbon fiber and
grapheme.

R R AR TR E R B R A ) China VAST Industrial Urban Development Company Limited
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Chairman’s Statement

ER|E

Higher brand reputation enjoyed by establishing a better corporate
image. The Company was incorporated into Hong Kong Hang Seng
Composite SmallCap Index and became one of the representative listed
companies in Hong Kong stock market. We ranked 5th among the “Top 30
Real Estate Companies in China in 2015", honored “Outstanding Contributive
Enterprises for CIHAF China Region” and “Top 100 Urban Operator in China”.
Longhe Park was listed in national-grade “International Technological
Cooperation Hub” whereas Innovative Venture Hub 9# Café has become
national-grade maker space.

Above achievements was not only the result of the wisdom and hard work of
the senior management team of the Company, the pursuit and tireless efforts
of all employees, but also endless support from all shareholders, investors
and the communities.
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Chairman’s Statement

ERW|E

Our work in 2016 has been fully commenced. This year is the start of the
PRC's “13th Five-Year Plan”, the macro-economy still needs to embrace and
lead the new normal. Based on the messages from the Central Government,
the layout of the comprehensive deepening of the reform has been
established, particularly, it has been reflected from the macro-economy
that stimulation in both demand and supply and the strengthening of the
structural reform on the supply side are requisites. Significant development
strategies, such as Beijing-Tianjin-Hebei Coordinated Development, Yangtze
River Economic Zone, “the Belt and Road” and Planning of the Construction
of Demonstration Areas in respect of Modern Urbanization and the Overall
Urban-rural Development in Hebei Province, will be thoroughly implemented,
SO as to provide the new opportunities and markets for the construction of
large, specialized and high-end industrial towns.

Firstly, the development strategies of the Company shall be in
line with the five major development ideas of the “Thirteenth
Five-Year Plan” proposed by the Central Government, which
comprises: innovation, harmonization, green, openness and sharing.
The industrial town projects are with full compliance with the national
macro policy. The Company shall look forward during the course of new
development and endeavor to implement “second venture”; explore the
new age development direction with greater emphasis on reconstruction
and nurturing of the industry and the construction of an innovative platform
network, as well as value the scientifically reasonable layout of industrial
chain and socioeconomic benefits. Meanwhile, when developing a capital-
intensive and hi-tech manufacturing industry, the high value-added labor-
intensive projects should also be considered to actively nurture strategic
emerging industries and explore new employment regions consistently. Full
focus shall be put on the Beijing-Tianjin-Hebei core area to continue the
duplication and expansion of industrial towns. In order to provide strategic
reserves and support for long-term development, the Company shall also
pay efforts in entering into contract for one or two industrial towns projects
with an aim to realize the strategic expansion target of “Ten Towns in Three
years”. It shall continue to “encourage people to do business creatively and
drive innovation” and set new trend for innovative venture and promote its
own transformation and upgrade by expanding the scale, becoming the role
model and performing with substantial results, while devoting to introducing
investment and capital contribution to parks in Langfang, Zhangjiakou,
Shijiazhuang and Ezhou.

R R AR TR E R B R A ) China VAST Industrial Urban Development Company Limited
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Chairman’s Statement

ER|E

Secondly, the Company’s principal business shall be in line with
the positioning of regions of Beijing-Tianjin-Hebei Coordinated
Development Plan, in which the industrial town parks located at.
Recently, the municipal government of Hebei Province has published the
“Planning of the construction of demonstration areas in respect of modern
urbanization and the overall urban-rural development in Hebei Province”.
The “demonstration areas in respect of modern urbanization and the overall
urban-rural development” has confirmed to be one of the four functional
orientations of “Beijing-Tianjin-Hebei Coordinated Development Plan”in
Hebei Province, which put forward the regional structure of “two wings, four
regions, five belts and multi-spot”, in which towns layout of VAST's industrial
towns was stipulated with clear development requirements. The two major
provincial cities, Shijiazhuang and Tangshan, being the two wings, are
committed to a larger scale with upgrade of city's function and enhancement
of high-end orientation and radiation effect in order to provide an important
support to the Beijing-Tianjin-Hebei coordinated development. The four
regions, including Baoding and Langfang, being the core functional regions
within the Beijing-Tianjin ring, are commissioned to raise the undertaking
ability for Beijing in respect of non-capital function, strengthen the hub of
scientific R&D, achievements transformation and construction of platform
for functional undertaking, promote the urban-integration development of
infrastructure and public services and accelerate the establishment of core
regions which lead the Beijing-Tianjin-Hebei coordinated development. Eco-
conserving area, including Zhangjiakou and Chengde, in the northwest of
Hebei Province will mainly focus on the eco-conservation, water conservation,
travel and recreation, supply of green products, etc. in order to construct a
green ecological industrial system, and hence create an ecological safety
barrier of Beijing-Tianjin-Hebei and pioneered demonstration area of national
ecological culture.
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Chairman’s Statement

ERW|E

Thirdly, the specific measures of the Company shall be in line
with the supply-side structural reforms proposed by the state and
accelerate construction of modern urbanization with industrial town
models. Release new demand, create new supply, change the demand-
supply condition, and stimulate the activities of major companies under
micro-economy, especially through the promotion of supply-side structural
reforms with transformation and upgrade, so as to become the new driver
for maintaining a long-term and stable development of the industrial parks.
The Company shall change its mindset when developing the industry and
reinforce the broadness and depth of the industry to comprehensively
integrate the seven industrial resources including aerospace, health, new
resources and materials, internet and electronic information, manufacturing
of high-end equipment, biomedical and culture and travel to designate
them to targeted locations. Further development in any of the industrial
chains, being an “upgraded industrial construction”, is the pioneering model
of market investment and operation of a comprehensive industrial chain
which are fully carried out by the Company. Among which, aerospace
industry is under unprecedented development. Based on the regional
planning and industrial positioning of Shijiazhuang, Chengde and Beijing,
airpark development shall be the focus while strategic cooperation with
Aviation Industry, CAIGA and Joyair shall be further implemented. Backed
by the integration project of AVICLUB (B 7R%&) of Aviation Industry, marine
airfield and aviation industrial park shall be jointly developed and blueprint of
integrated working and living community with travel, real estate, construction,
finance, culture and transportation shall be drawn. In the future, industrial
towns within the Beijing-Tianjin-Hebei, Yangtze River Delta Economic Zone
and those as layout in the Belt and Road shall form a network with high-
speed rail and highway connection on land and air connection by aviation,
hence activate the industrial resources and travelling resources of the area
for identifying diversified business opportunities.

In addition, accelerating innovative entrepreneurship for promotion of
supply-side structural reforms remains an important direction. On the
basis of the existing physical area of the Company, it is in key position to
build an innovative brand series of “TronSpace”, and elevate the traditional
incubator or a sole maker space to a cyber-incubative system that merges
the virtual and physical space and acts as a connector of the classical
ecosystem construction with external resources. It shall connect every
aspect of governmental, industrial, academic, research and commercial so
as to enhance the efficiency in nurturing the industry, and to provide the
entrepreneurs with services of “mass innovation, crowdsourcing, collective
support and crowdfunding platform” to attract more scientific innovative
projects of incubation to invest and development at the industrial town parks.

R R AR TR E R B R A ) China VAST Industrial Urban Development Company Limited
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Chairman’s Statement

ER|E

Walk every day makes one not afraid of thousands miles; work every moment
makes one not afraid of heavy works. To meet the target of each project
in 2016, all we need is paying every bit of effort to make further progress.
The Company shall seize every minute to follow the direction of “free our
mind, adapt to the market, connect to the globe, and develop with speed”
and adhere to the motto of “transformation and development, innovation
and pioneering”. It shall also be united and pool the wisdom and efforts
of everyone to overcome the ups and downs, develop steadily with the
creation of its own favorable conditions, attempt, explore and innovate with
diversification, and cope with new practice and new challenges easily to
promote each business of the Company for breakthroughs from time to time.

To all of the shareholders and friends, we are looking forward to writing a
new chapter in the development of China VAST with every one of you in 2016!

Wang Jianjun
Chairman
Hong Kong, 23 March 2016
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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Financial Review

Revenue

Our revenue for the year ended 31 December 2015 was substantially
generated from: (i) fee income from sales of land development for sale,
representing our fee income derived from development of industrial town
projects; (i) revenue from sales of properties; and (iii) a minor portion derived
from revenue from property leasing. The table below sets forth a breakdown
of our revenue:

i qE)-

Wz
HMEZE2015F 12 A3NMAEFERNREEBR
B ()FEHinFEEENEEBAKRA - BR
MEREXTEEBNERRA  (VWEHEEK
= AN RAG)DERERE - TRET
BAPIE R RA A -

Year ended 31 December

BE12A31MALEE
2015 2014
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥T T AREF T

Fee income from the sales of FEIHHAZERN

land development for sale HEZERWA 472,197 1,046,312
Revenue from the sales of properties W SHE W 940,921 1,332,033
Revenue from property leasing SNl 10,588 12,860
1,423,706 2,391,205

Revenue of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2015 amounted to
RMB1,423.7 million, representing a decrease of 40.5% compared with the
total revenue of RMB2,391.2 million for the same period in 2014.

For the year ended 31 December 2015, an aggregate of 243,206 sg.m. of
land in Longhe Park was sold by the relevant local government for a total
land premium of RMB757.3 million. Compared to the aggregate of 610,171
sg.m. of land sold in Longhe Park by the relevant local government for a total
land premium of RMB1,627.1 million for the year ended 31 December 2014,
the land area sold and land premium were less due to the postponement of
the land sale plan by the local government following the issue of “Beijing-
Tianjin-Hebei Coordinated Development Plan” by the Central Politburo of the
Communist Party of China on 30 April 2015, hence affecting our fee income
from sales of land. Apart from the fee income received from sales of land,
we also received other comprehensive services fee income of RMB77.8
million, which was calculated with reference to a certain proportion to the tax
imposed on Longhe Park resident enterprises during the year. We recorded
fee income of RMB472.2 million from development projects of land for sale
for the year ended 31 December 2015, representing a decrease of RMB574.1
million as compared with RMB1,046.3 million for the year ended 31 December
2014.

REEHZE2015F12A31H FFENRFBAR
11,423 7B BT B2014E R HAR AR A R
2,391.28 & TR 40.5% ©

HZE2015F12A318LLFE - BRI BUTHE
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We recorded revenue from the sales of properties of RMB940.9 million for
the year ended 31 December 2015, a decrease of 29.4% compared with
RMB1,332.0 million for the year ended 31 December 2014. For the year ended
31 December 2015, we delivered commercial and residential properties of
148,878 sq.m., representing a decrease of 100,189 sg.m compared with the
area of property delivered of 249,067 sp.m. for the year ended 31 December
2014.

In respect of fee income from development projects of land for sale, the
Group continued to actively develop Longhe Park, and at the same time
implemented the land development project in the Beijing-Tianjin-Hebei region
SO as to maintain a stable income source.

Cost of Sales and Services

Our cost of sales and services consists of (i) cost of development projects of
land for sale, (i) cost of properties sold, and (jii) direct operating expense of
property leasing. For the year ended 31 December 2015, our cost of sales and
services amounted to RMB812.7 million, representing a decrease of 35.7% as
compared with that of RMB1,263.1 million for the year ended 31 December
2014. Such decrease was primarily due to the decrease in the area of land
sale and area of property sale for the year ended 31 December 2015.

Gross Profit and Gross Profit Margin

For the year ended 31 December 2015, our gross profit amounted to
RMB611.0 million, a decrease of 45.8% compared with RMB1,128.1 million
for the year ended 31 December 2014. Gross profit margin was 42.9% for the
year ended 31 December 2015, compared with 47.2% for the same period in
2014, due to a change in our revenue composition as a result of the increase
in the percentage of sales of properties in the year ended 31 December 2015,
which generally has a lower gross profit margin compared with development
projects of land for sale.

Other Income

Our other income increased from RMB33.5 million for the year ended 31
December 2014 to RMB142.5 million for the same period in 2015, representing
an increase of RMB109.0 million. The increase was mainly due to the land
compensation income of RMB109.2 million receivable from the relevant local
government and the decrease of RMB14.7 million in interest income on bank
deposit.

R R AR TR E R B R A ) China VAST Industrial Urban Development Company Limited
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Other Expenses

The Company had incurred an expense of RMB2.0 million for the year ended
31 December 2015. The listing expenses incurred for the same period in 2014
amounted to RMB28.9 million, and no such expenses had incurred for the
same period in 2015.

Other Gains and Losses

Other gains and losses increased from RMB25.3 million for the year ended 31
December 2014 to RMB34.6 million for the same period in 2015. The increase
was mainly due to a gain of RMB13.6 million obtained by the Company due to
the disposal of properties under development to local government for local
commercial development purpose.

Finance Costs
Our finance cost decreased by RMB35.5 million, or 31.8%, from RMB111.6
million for the year ended 31 December 2014 to RMB76.1 million for the same
period in 2015. The decrease in finance cost was mainly due to a decrease in
our average outstanding balance of trust loans with higher interest rate and
other loan facilities.

Gain on the Fair Value Change of Investment
Properties

Gain on the fair value change of investment properties increased from
RMB17.6 million for the year ended 31 December 2014 to RMB115.5 million
for the same period in 2015. Such increase was mainly due to an appreciation
in the value of an investment property project, Foxconn Technology Complex
(E T ERIEIE), which was caused by the following transactions: the
Company obtained Foxconn Technology Complex (5 +EERHEE) through
open tender, auction and listing in May 2015. A land cost of RMB101.3 million
incurred, including an inter-company land cost of RMB77.2 million eliminated
by the Group on consolidation. The land cost after the Group's inter-company
elimination was RMB24.1 million, resulting in an appreciation in value of
RMB77.2 million. In addition, the investment properties have appreciated due
to the increase in the value in the region as a whole.

Profit Before Tax

Our profit before tax decreased by RMB250.6 million, representing 26.9%,
from RMB931.6 million for the year ended 31 December 2014 to RMB681.0
million for the same period in 2015.
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Income Tax Expense

Income tax expense decreased from RMB231.0 million for the year ended
31 December 2014 to RMB167.4 million for the same period in 2015,
representing a decrease of RMB63.6 million or 27.5%, which primarily due to
a decrease in land appreciation tax of RMB15.4 million for the year ended 31
December 2015 as a result of a decrease in delivery of properties; and the
decrease in profit before tax recorded for the year ended 31 December 2015.

Profit

As a result of the foregoing factors, profit attributable to owners of the
Company for the year ended 31 December 2015 decreased by RMB187.0
million, representing 26.7%, to RMB513.6 million from RMB700.6 million for
the year ended 31 December 2014, which was primarily due to the decrease
in the area of land sold by the relevant local government.

Earnings Per Share

The basic earnings per share for the year ended 31 December 2015
calculated based on the weighted average number of ordinary shares of
1,637,641,000 was RMB0.31 (basic earnings per share for the year ended 31
December 2014: RMBO0.50). The diluted earnings per share for the year ended
31 December 2015 calculated based on the weighted average number of
ordinary shares for the purpose of diluted earnings per share of 1,637,979,000
was RMB0.31 (diluted earnings per share for the year ended 31 December
2014: N/A).

Cash Position

Our cash and cash equivalents increased by RMB255.9 million to RMB1,058.5
million as of 31 December 2015 from RMB802.6 million as of 31 December
2014, principally attributable to: (i) the net cash outflow of RMB102.9 million
from our operating activities; (i) the net cash outflow of RMB236.2 million
from investing activities which was primarily resulting from restricted bank
deposits withdrawn of RMB240.8 million, offset by restricted bank deposits
placed of RMB380.3 million and investment in associates of RMB39.2 million;
(iil) the net cash inflow of RMB569.2 million from financing activities which
was primarily due to repayment of bank loans and other loans of RMB1,483.2
million and interest payment of RMB300.0 million, as well as dividend
payment of RMB197.8 million ; new bank loans and other loans of RMB1,911.8
million and proceeds from issue of convertible bonds and notes of RMB637.5
million.

R R AR TR E R B R A ) China VAST Industrial Urban Development Company Limited
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Trade Receivables

Trade receivables decreased from RMB399.5 million as at 31 December 2014
to RMB535.4 million as at 31 December 2015 mainly due to the aggregate
of 140,713 sg.m. of land sold in Longhe Park by the Langfang government
for a total land premium of RMB631.7 million in December 2015 which
correspondingly incurred trade receivables of RMB374.3 million. We had
recovered part of the trade receivables generated from the development
project of land for sale in Longhe Park.

Prepayments and Other Receivables

Prepayments and other receivables increased from RMB74.6 million as at 31
December 2014 to RMB464.9 million as at 31 December 2015 primarily due to
the increase of the receivables on disposal of properties under development
and compensation for land development activities by RMB321.5 million in
2015.

Advance from Customers for Properties Developed for
Sale

Advance from customers for properties developed for sale decreased
from RMB248.9 million as at 31 December 2014 to RMB96.6 million as at 31
December 2015, primarily due to the delivery of part of the property project.

Interest in Associates

Since the Group proportionately contributed capital of RMB32.2 million to
Langfang Huayuan Shengshi Heating Co., Ltd. (BRtF i E R 2 B R A 7)),
a company owned by the Group as to 35%) and the Group invested capital
of RMB7.0 million in Huarong ShengShi (Langfang) Investment Company
Limited ((FEgha%tt (BRI EBBR AR, a company owned by the Group as
to 35%), together with the appreciation in the net assets of Langfang Kaihong
Furniture Mart Company Limited (Es$h 8l 25X B EHB AR A F), a company
owned by the Group as to 30%) as a result of valuation, interest in associates
increased from RMB89.6 million as at 31 December 2014 to RMB147.4 million
as at 31 December 2015.

Completed Properties for Sale

completed properties for sale increased from RMB679.1 million as at 31
December 2014 to RMB1,440.6 million as at 31 December 2015, primarily due
to the completion of property projects such as Hongtai Meishuguan Phase
Il (ZZ=345 65 —HA), Chuangye Plaza Phase Il (g% K& —H#f) and Hongtai
Longdi Phase Il in 2015.
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Bank and Other Borrowings

The Group's total borrowings increased by RMB443.2 million from
RMB2,909.7 million as at 31 December 2014 to RMB3,352.9 million as at 31
December 2015. Secured bank loans increased from RMB932.4 million as at
31 December 2014 to RMB1,386.3 million as at 31 December 2015 while other
secured loans increased from RMB1,932.4 million as at 31 December 2014
to RMB1,946.6 million as at 31 December 2015. Properties for sale under
development were pledged to banks to secure certain banking increased
significantly from RMB236.5 million as at 31 December 2014 to RMB364.5
million as at 31 December 2015, primarily due to the new bank loans facilities
were granted to the Group which led to the increase of the relevant collateral.

Convertible bonds and notes

The Group issued convertible bonds and notes in USD50 million and USD50
million respectively with a term of 3-year on 30 December 2015. The coupon
rates of the convertible bonds and the notes are 6% and 12% respectively
and interest would be paid semi-annually. The convertible bonds can be
converted to a maximum number of 125,000,000 shares of the Company
at a conversion price of HKD3.1 per share before maturity. The total net
proceeds received by the Company from the issue of Convertible Bonds
and Notes have been split between a liability component and a conversion
option derivative component. The effective interest rate of the liability portion
measured at amortised cost is 16.10% per annum. And highest the effective
interest rate of the transaction as a whole is 12.44% per annum.

Contingent Liabilities

The Group provided guarantees to banks and non-financial institutions which
granted mortgage loans to certain purchasers of the Group's properties.
As at 31 December 2015, such mortgage loan guarantees amounted to
RMB786.0 million compared to RMB583.7 million as at 31 December 2014.
Such guarantees would be released upon the earlier of: (i) the transfer of
the relevant building ownership certificates to the purchasers; or (ii) the
satisfaction of obligations under the mortgage loans by the purchasers.

The Group also provided a guarantee of RMB227.0 million to a bank in respect
of a banking facility granted to Langfang Kaihong Furniture Mart Company
Limited (st M9\ 2K & BB A R A 7)), an associate indirectly owned by the
Company as to 30% in the year ended 31 December 2014. Such guarantee
was released on 1 December 2015 and no other such guarantee was
recorded as at 31 December 2015.

R R AR TR E R B R A ) China VAST Industrial Urban Development Company Limited
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Pledge of Assets

Certain assets of the Group have been pledged to the banks, trust fund
companies and non-financial institutions to secure certain loans and banking
facilities granted to the Group. For details, please refer to note 32 to the
consolidated financial statements in this report.

The Convertible Bonds and the Notes are jointly guaranteed by Ultimate
Controlling Shareholders and secured by the pledge of entire equity interest
of Shing Cheong Holdings, China Vast International, King Billion and Sheng Shi
International.

Liquidity and Financial Resources

The Group’s principal financial instruments comprise of borrowings,
convertible bonds and notes and cash. The main objective for the use of
these financial instruments is to maintain a continuity of funding and flexibility
at the lowest cost possible.

As at 31 December 2015, bank balances and restricted bank deposits was
RMB1,565.0 million, among which RMB1,161.8 million was denominated
in Renminbi, RMB398.5 million denominated in USD and RMB4.7 million
denominated in HKD.

As at 31 December 2015, our total borrowings were RMB3,352.9 million,
among which RMB3,127.2 million was denominated in Renminbi and
RMB225.7 million denominated in USD, with maturities as follows:
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Over 5 years AEUE 20.0

Among the RMB3,352.9 million borrowings, RMB633.2 million was with
floating rate, RMB2,699.7 million was with fixed rate and RMB20.0 million was
interest-free.

As at 31 December 2015, the Convertible Bonds and the Notes (excluding
derivate portion) was RMB579.7 million, which was denominated in USD.

As at 31 December 2015, the Group's gearing ratio (total liabilities to total
assets) was 66.0%. The Group’s financing capability became stronger after
Listing. The Group will continue to adopt more conservative financial policies
and control its gearing ratio at the industry average level.

EARME3329BELERS - AR#6332E
BLRATEER  ARMK2697TEETRELRE
o ARB2008ETRESEN -

MR20156F12A318 » AJEREHEZER(TEIE
PTHEEMD) - AFETLEHE - MAEARBE79.7E6E
77‘: o

M2015F12A31H - AEBMNEEABLE (2
BEBRUNBEE)H6G0% - BEEREE AR
B Hitos - AEBBEESFITEMNBENIE
BR - BEBBLEGESEITET KT -
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Foreign Currency Risk

The Group’s business is principally denominated in Renminbi. Apart from
certain cash, bank deposits, bank and other borrowings and convertible
bonds and notes denominated in foreign currencies, the Group is not subject
to any significant risk from fluctuations in exchange rates. No currency
hedging arrangement had been made by the Group during the year. The
Group will closely monitor and manage its exposure to fluctuations in foreign
exchange rates.

Significant Investments, Acquisitions and Disposals
The Group has disposed of its entire equity interest in a subsidiary to an
independent third party for a consideration of RMB30,480,000 during the
Period. The Group recognised a gain of RMB34,567,000 in the profit or loss
for the year ended 31 December 2015. This transaction did not constitute a
discloseable transaction of the Company pursuant to Chapter 14 of the Listing
Rules as none of the applicable percentage ratios reached 5% or more at the
time of the entering into of such disposal agreement.

Save as disclosed above, the Group did not make any material acquisition
or disposal of subsidiaries and associated companies and significant
investments during the year ended 31 December 2015.

Employee Remuneration and Relations

As at 31 December 2015, the Group had a total of 667 employees (31
December 2014: 562 employees). The Group provides employees with
competitive remuneration and benefits, and the remuneration policy will be
reviewed on a regular basis based on the performance and contribution of
the employees and the industry remuneration level. In addition, the Group
also provides various training courses to enhance the employees” skills and
capabilities in all aspects.

The Company adopted a share option scheme (the “Scheme”) pursuant to
a resolution passed on 21 July 2015 for the primary purpose of providing
incentives to Directors and eligible employees. Under the Scheme, the
Company may grant the share options to eligible employees including
Directors, employees, consultants, business partners or advisers, to
subscribe for shares in the Company.

At 28 July 2015, 90,750,000 share options to subscribe for up to a total of
90,750,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each of the Company were granted to
certain individuals under the Scheme.

Among the total share options, one-third of which are exercisable during the
periods from 28 July 2016 to 31 July 2019, from 28 July 2017 to 31 July 2019
and from 28 July 2018 to 31 July 2019, respectively.

At 31 December 2015, the number of shares in respect of which options
remained outstanding under the Scheme was 82,350,000.

R R AR TR E R B R A ) China VAST Industrial Urban Development Company Limited
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Business Review

Industrial Town Development

We are one of the pioneer service providers in planning, development and
operation of large-scale industrial towns (Z 2 §#) in China. Our primary
business focus, being industrial town development business, significantly
differentiates us from a traditional property developer. When we commenced
development of Longhe Park, our first industrial town project, in 2005, there
were very few market players in the PRC offering a similar range of services,
and industrial towns only became a development model to drive China’s
urbanization process in the recent decade. We currently co-operate with
certain local governments in Hebei, Hubei and Anhui provinces in relation to
development of seven industrial town projects. As one of the pilot models
to drive China’s urbanization process, an industrial town typically hosts a
cluster of enterprises with a selected common industry theme, together with
supporting facilities such as logistics, residential and commercial properties,
creating a fully integrated working and living community for its residents (&
. —%82). In addition to our industrial town development business, we also
develop and invest in residential, commercial and industrial properties in
both our industrial town projects and other areas in Hebei province, which
accounted for only a portion of our total revenue. As a key part of our
industrial town business, we (i) plan and design industrial towns and position
industrial towns with selected industry themes, (ii) convert land planned
for development into land suitable for sale by the local governments in
accordance with our cooperation agreements, (iii) promote the sale of such
land to attract target customers to set up businesses in our industrial town
projects, and (iv) provide follow-up management and operation services to
enterprise customers in our industrial towns.

We currently provide planning, development and/or operation services in
seven industrial town projects, consisting of: (i) Longhe Park; (ii) Longhe
Resort; (iii) Guangyang Technology Regeneration Park, all of which are located
in Langfang, Hebei province; (iv) VAST Zhangjiakou City New Industrial Park
in Zhangjiakou City, Hebei Province; (v) Chuzhou Park in Chuzhou, Anhui
province; (vi) Shijiazhuang General Aviation Industrial Town Park in Shijiazhung
City, Hebei province; and (vii) VAST Ezhou Industrial Park in Ezhou City, Hubei
province. Longhe Park is progressing towards an active development stage.
The remaining six projects are in the early stage of development, and we
have entered into legally binding cooperation agreements with the local
governments for the development of each of these projects. We expect our
existing industrial town projects to continue to generate land parcels for sale
until 2035.

E 3 qE)
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The following map shows the locations of the cities where our industrial town LA T 1Bl 88 R B PR EE £ T A 18 B BT i RIfL
projects situated. i

Beijing-Tianjin-Hebei Integration

and Development Wanjiang City Belt
SREBRRE BT

& Yangtze River Delta Economic Zone
BIIERE

hE=SE X M EERE AR A 7 China VAST Industrial Urban Development Company Limited
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Langfang, Hebei Province
> . - @ Airport #ig
AL B o
. N Higlh-speed .

feETEXE/AETEREL i At
From Longhe Industrial Park/Longhe Resort
Eﬂ?fit?%%ﬁﬁ%%i’% Beijing
To Beijing Capital International Airport 70km/R 2 o o=

Beijing Capital InternitlonaAlrpon @
FERERGHEEES ERRERAR
To Tianjin Binhai International Airport 70knm/ A 2 T it ST ) O
AIEIL R EHE —BRES e R
To the Second Beijing Capital International Airport 26km/A 2 LRESR= 8
RIERES

ianii 7 G j echnology
To Tianjin Port 100km/2A B
EENEREE
&E&%ﬂ&ﬁ{b Lz:nghe Park and N
. onghe Resort \

From Guangyang Technology Regeneration Park HABTER \
AL R E BER S s .
To Beijing Capital International Airport 70km/AE ya
AIEREE SRS
To Tianjin Binhai International Airport 75km/R B

AL R EHME _BRKS

To the Second Beijing Capital International Airport 15km/2 &
RIEREE

To Tianjin Port 105km/2 &

Geographical Advantage

e Praised as “the Pearl of the Corridor between Beijing and Tianjin”,
Langfang is situated in the Bohai Coastal Metropolises, one of the major
economic growth regions in China

— Locates in the central east of Hebei province, with Beijing, the capital,
“lies in the north and Tianjin in the east”

— Eight expressways, five major railway lines as well as eleven national
and provincial highways crossing this area

— Construction work of the Second Beijing Capital International Airport
was approved on 16 December 2014 which will be completed in 2018.
As an ancillary facility, airport express railway will commence operation
synchronously by then

¢ Driven by the national strategy of “Beijing-Tianjin-Hebei Integration and
Development Plan”, Langfang is well positioned to seize opportunities
arising from the economic growth in Beijing

— As a result of the significant increase in the lands and properties price in
Beijing, population and certain industries have migrated to surrounding
areas

— The coordination development in the region requires the integration
planning and construction in respect of transportation, public service
and environment protection

— The strategic location of Langfang enables itself to capture opportunities
arising from the economic growth of Beijing. Coupled with the
integration development of Beijing-Tianjin-Hebei, Langfang is expected
to further its economic growth, land appreciation and property price
increase

jing-Tianjin-
Hebei Region
TRRBE
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—RIRAIE B R ERE - [JhAE &L R - &
BRE]

—\EEERDE » AIEEERBRUAR &
BlE A EE F UL

— b RE IS TIZE2014F 12 A16BIER
FEBHE - BR2018F %L - (EAREN
SRR th SRR R P

o B'RRE B ERAIE -EREMAOE
BT - BY T RN A R E R A
R RS
— b M L R EEREL AR LK - A

ANETEXEGZEBLR

- RTERZRENHRHRR A8 2
ARG RIRREAHF BHEE —RRE
Bk

-~ BUNEBUEERE I RNEEERSD
ERBRE BEAERRNUEEESER -
BRI RS R — HEES R - DTt
ERYZEER LR

Annual Report 2015 &%

25



Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENWmEDN

Zhangjiakou, Hebei Province
AL ERRA
RESHEAE

Inner Mongolia
Autonomous

Beijing

(I} 1

Shanxi
Geographical Advantage BAER
- Located in the transport hubs of Beijing, Hebei, Shanxi and Inner Mongolia, - REOTURR £ - & - SIS ERTRE
Zhangjiakou is the intersection of Beijing-Tianjin-Hebei Metropolises and it ERERMMBEMEZSHMERN
Hebei-Shanxi-Inner Mongolia Metropolises RIER
— Thanks to the national strategy of “Beijing-Tianjin-Hebei Integration and - SR EERRZEE E—BFZRBES - 7Rk
Development Plan”, the Beijing-zhangjiakou high-speed railway will = EHE R R MR R O KNG

accelerate growth from Beijing to Zhangjiakou

— The joint bid of Zhangjiakou and Beijing for 2022 Winter Olympics will bring - SR O B4t B S BB 20202F X ETRES -
new development opportunities TR B R B

26 hE=SE X M EERE AR A 7 China VAST Industrial Urban Development Company Limited
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Shijiazhuang City, Hebei Province
ALEBARET

o BXA

Zhangjlakou

bl
Beijing

Tianjin

ARE O ?:Eanmgznou

Shijiazhuang

Hengshui (

ma
Xingtai

Geographical Advantage

¢ Shijiazhuang City is one of the important and major cities in the capital
of Hebei province and Beijing and Tianjin region, as well as the political,
economic, technological, financial, cultural and information center of
Hebei province. Shijiazhuang City is a city which the implementation of its
coastal open-door policy and open financial market was approved by the
State Council.

¢ Shijiazhuang is the transport hub of the nation-wide rail transport in which
four railways lines, namely Beijing-Guangzhou, Shijiazhuang-Taiyuan,
Shijiazhuang- Dezhou and Shuo Huang, converges. Expressways such
as Beijing-Shijiazhuang, Shijiazhuang-Taiyuan, Huanghua-Shijiazhuang,
Shian(AZ =R A HK) intersects at Shijiazhuang City with an aggregate
mileage of highway of over 6,400 kilometers.

o Shijiazhuang clearly puts forward to develop into the second major city in
Beijing-Tianjin-Hebei area and the economic center of the southern region.
It strives to become a new economic growth pole of the Beijing-Tianjin-
Hebei region.

e Three cities, Luancheng City, Gaocheng City and Luguan City, had turned
into districts. The area under the jurisdiction of the Shijiazhuang City
had expanded from 469 square kilometers to 2,206 square kilometers,
representing an increase in the area of approximately 4 times, and hence
providing more room for development.
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Chuzhou, Anhui Province
ZHEBRMNE
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Geographical Advantage

hE=SE X M EERE AR A 7 China VAST Industrial Urban Development Company Limited

Chuzhou is a prefecture-level city in eastern Anhui province in close
proximity to the Yangtze River Delta, only approximately 50 kilometers from
Nanjing, Jiangsu province

Chuzhou is also in Wanjiang City Belt (52T %) which has been
approved by the State Council as a national pilot zone (Bl A ~#i1&) for
the development of industries shifted from the eastern Yangtze River Delta

These industries primarily include new materials manufacturing, energy,
new equipment manufacturing, provision of modern services and
production of high-quality natural food

Relying on the advantageous geographical position in the greater Yangtze
River Delta, Chuzhou strives to create a new growth in the development of

urbanization

Our service offered in Chuzhou is limited to marketing and promotion
activities
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Ezhou City, Hubei Province
LB M

Yangtze River Delta Economic Zone
RIBER

&

Huanggang

RE =0 Wuxue
koL H\Bﬁéﬁi@ Chibi X'a""'"g e ‘@\ _
) /\W
Geographical BES
e Ezhou City is located in the eastern part of Hubei Province and the south  ® SBNTZ AL AR - RIIFHEF o &
bank at the mid-stream of Yangtze River. Neighbouring with Wuhan in the HOEVE - BT B A AZ Sk T AN 5B SRk T
west, Ezhou City is the core city of the Wuhan Metropolises, the major city BT - YD AR O A A BAR A ©

of the Edong Cities, the regional logistic center and the transport hub.

e Ezhou City is an important node of the Yangtze River Delta Economic Zone.  ® SBMMEBRRILETHEZEH S - RILK

As the new Reform and Opening of the PRC transits to the development EEEAPRIF — RN ERMEA B RN
strategy of implementation of opening of new regions, the Yangtze River B FA A BB - KRS KBRS RIT
Delta Economic Zone, Ezhou City can leverage on the Golden waterway to OB ER - TR BB B o
promote the development of the Yangtze River Delta Economic Zone and
thus creating a new Chinese economic support belt.

e The construction of Hubei Province made Wuhan as the center and linked ~ © It EEEREUEIZAFH L - ER@ %MII =
other cities like Ezhou, Huangshi, Huanggang in a radial intercity transport A EREEE T ARG AR 2 EAE o 2
network. The fastest train from Wuhan Station to Ezhou Station only takes Uh = SRAN N B IRE TR 22568 ©

22 minutes.

e The Shun Feng airport (IE22#£15) locating in Ezhou specializes in high-end o IEZ#IZELEBMN - EFTARSHIRESN 2

express delivery on an all-cargo basis. The airport will become the forth HEER  ZWISHEKAZIKEN - HME
in the world and the first in Asia cargo airport distributing center which is —WEEBEBERFL - EREEE0RE

only 20 kilometers from the park.
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The following table sets forth our project status, industry themes, scope
of services and fee arrangement for each industrial town project as of 31

December 2015.

Industrial town

TREFIHMFEZETEABREE2015F124

NHEMBER - EEEE -

BRISHE K B R Rk

project™ Status Industry theme Scope of services Fee arrangement
EXmEEAN B E¥XTE R 75 43 BRRY

Langfang,

Hebei province

S E B

() Longhe Park e Progressing towards e Information e Planning and design, ¢ Calculated based on a

() Ea=HE

Planned site area:
28.0 million sg.m.
RENGHETE -
28088 K

() Longhe Resort
() Ry e B A IR
EREH

Planned site area:
9.5 million sg.m.
B ETE -
9.5mB T K

30

an active development
stage
o BEABRERERRER

¢ Binding agreement
signed; land preparation
and infrastructure
construction not yet
commenced

o BEITAARNHEG
# o ORFABTHEER

technology, advanced
manufacturing, modern
services and property
development

o BB - SRS
BRI LR

¢ \acation home and .
facilities, business
headquarters and
culture business subject
to finalization

o ERERRE  HFEL
RS (FF

T

EE)

industry positioning,
land preparation,
infrastructure
construction, marketing
and follow-up services e
to manage and operate
the project

RE - BREt - EXTE

iz « EHbEEIR - EAERR
MR - TIHTTHHA R
BB ETHE NS R
MRS

Planning and design, e
industry positioning,

land preparation,
infrastructure
construction, marketing
and follow-up services e
to manage and operate
the project

BB RET EXETE

i~ THIERTE - B
MR - TIHTTIHN R
ERREETEENER
R

R R AR TR E R B R A ) China VAST Industrial Urban Development Company Limited

certain percentage of
land sale proceeds and
taxes paid by resident
enterprises.

174 4 R TS SRIB AP
SEOLRERDBES
IR -

Calculated based on a
certain percentage of
land sale proceeds and
taxes paid by resident
enterprises.

Rt RS IR ED
PEOLRERDES
MEHTHIEEHE o
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Industrial town

project® Status Industry theme Scope of services Fee arrangement

EXmEEAO B EXITE i e BERRH

(I Guangyang ¢ Binding agreement o Under planning e Planning and design, ¢ A portion of the net
Technology signed; land preparation e 7| industry positioning, land sale proceeds
Regeneration Park@  and infrastructure land preparation, representing the sum of

() BRI EE construction not yet infrastructure our actual investment

commenced
Planned site area: o BERTENR NN
15.0 million sg.m. F AR LIHEER
G HETE - ER MR R
15.05 8 FH %

Zhangjiakou City
RRO®

(IV) VAST Zhangjiakou e

City New Industrial
Park

(V) SRROTHE
RREXE

Planned site area:
1.6 million sg.m.
HENHHETE -
1.688FHAK

Binding agreement o Under planning
signed; land preparation  #2l
and infrastructure
construction not yet
commenced
FTEXR NI
P ARFR T EE R

%% SRR

construction, marketing
and follow-up services
to manage and operate
the project

o B RET EETE
fir itﬂ’ﬂi %
MERERR ~ TIHTTHHA K
%@&iﬁ“%lﬁ AER
IR

e Planning and design,
industry positioning,
land preparation,
infrastructure
construction and
marketing

o B Ret - EETE
iz « LHbEEIR - ERERR
BERERR A R T35 1T 84

amount with a pre-
agreed return and a
portion of the remaining
net land sale proceeds
in accordance with

our equity interest in
the relevant project
company.

T RIS RIE R
#—&5 - mABRE
BRMOERZRETE
(BHEEHEZBR)
AR AT 8L
BTG HIRF R (R E A
WNEBEEE ARz MRE
SHED AR o

Both one-off income and
recurring income, which
are calculated based
on a percentage of the
fixed return and part
from ancillary areas of
operating land premium,
and the percentage of
tax paid by the resident
enterprises of the park.
IR M B
)\Iﬁ " REE B &
TR EAS & 1 1o R
MO BES L RARE
EHMTEAES LA E

o
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Industrial town

project™ Status Industry theme Scope of services Fee arrangement
EXmEEAN B EXTE PR 7% &8 & BERRH
Shijiazhuang City

ARED

(V) Shijiazhuang General o Binding agreement o General aviation e Planning and design, ¢ Commission services

Aviation Industrial signed; land preparation  industry, modern industry positioning, income, which is
Town Park and infrastructure services and property land preparation, calculated based on a
V) AREEA construction not yet development infrastructure certain proportion of
MEEXTERR commenced o BAMTEX - construction and a fixed return and the
o BETENRIN WRIR K& marketing aggregate investment in
20.0 million sg.m. o AFBRLTHEER  WEME o B Rt EETE the park.
20088FAK AR iz~ TR - EHER o ZIEMBUA - ZEE
MERERR R 51T (] 37 2 (B [ 42 & 42 R Y
—ELEBIEtE -
Chuzhou,
Anhui province
RREABMNT
(VI) Chuzhou Park ¢ Binding agreement o New materials, new o Marketing e Calculated based on net

(V1) BRI R & E R signed; marketing energy, equipment o THIHITHY land sale proceeds of a

Planned site area:
15.0 million sg.m.

activities commenced
BT EHR DKW
& CHBMSTIHE

manufacturing, modern
services and natural
food

certain size of land sites
B E R T E L
TSR FEEATE -

FRENEHETE - ) o FMEL - HTEEIR - BB
15.088FHK g BRRERGE
R
Ezhou City,
Hubei province
LB SN
(V1) VAST Ezhou ¢ Binding agreement o Intelligent e Planning and design, e Commission services
Industrial Park signed; land preparation  manufacturing, industry positioning, income, which is
V) ZRBMNEER and infrastructure e-commerce business, land preparation, calculated based on a
construction not yet energy conservation infrastructure certain proportion of
2.6 million sg.m. commenced and environmental construction and a fixed return and the
26ABFHK o BEITENERNIN® protection, modern marketing aggregate investment
o ORFABLHEBIRER  services o JRE - RE EXETE into the park.
AR iEEE o HEEHIE  EWES iz - TIEEIE - EREE o ZEMRBUA - REE

FNBEIRIR AR @3} % B @ 1 & 4 HE Y

—ELPIEE

TR MG TTIE
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Notes:

)

We have set up a project company, of which we hold 49% of the equity
interest, with an affiliated entity of the local government for the development of
Guangyang Technology Regeneration Park. Our Longhe Park, Longhe Resort, VAST
Zhangjiakou City New Industrial Park, Shijiazhuang General Aviation Industrial
Town Park, Chuzhou Park and VAST Ezhou Industrial Park are developed by our
wholly-owned subsidiaries.

We entered into a co-operation agreement with the local government for the
development of Guangyang Technology Regeneration Park on 27 April 2011.
As Guangyang Technology Regeneration Park is in close vicinity to the airport
currently under construction in the conjunction area of Beijing and Guangyang
District of Langfang (the “Second Beijing Capital International Airport”) which is
currently under development, the development plan of the surrounding area of
the Second Beijing Capital International Airport, including Guangyang Technology
Regeneration Park, have filed to the local government for review. As the
related government planning has not been released, we have not commenced
development of Guangyang Technology Regeneration Park as of 31 December
2015. The industry positioning and our scope of services for Guangyang Park are
subject to changes.

Longhe Park

For the year ended 31 December 2015, fee income derived from our
development of industrial town projects was solely from Longhe Park.
The table below sets forth selective information about the classification
of land, planned site area and site area sold of Longhe Park as of 31
December 2015:

TEE

M

m

KB R BB EERKRIIER AR - &
IR B E AR R949%E BHE - AR B E ISR B
c BFIRENRHE - BHETEBRBER
Hip  RROMMRATEEER - AFHRBM
ZEFMHERNLBNIREERE - ZRBME
FERERBRMANZENBARRE -

HAIR2011F4 B 27 B &3t 5 BT AT LA 1B 1
w0 REEGHNEIEE - AR EBHECE
B — AR ML RERFR S T RS (2 2 A R E &
R #Z ([IEREHE—#5])) - Bitde
REHERSEELR(BEESHBFCE)
AR RBIC XM T BUFHEITER - MR ER
RVERF AR BN AR T - BAPIRR2015512 A31 B IE
AHEEREGHEIMEERNRE - EEHECE
MEZEFEN N RGBEDAFFER -

ETEHE
HZE2015F12A31ALFE - BAREES
EIBEAMBEARASREETISHE -
TRHFIIN2015FE12ANBENSHEE
L oiE - RENGHEBERD LB
EEMETRE R}

Planned site
Classification ] area® Site area sold®@ Saleable land unsold
HEG
HEE" 2 E L EEF? REBFWAT HEL
SQ.m. sg.m. % sg.m. %
75K K % T K %
Saleable AJHE
¢ Residential and o FEENK
commercial area HER 10,288,300 1,957,318 19.0 8,330,982 81.0
e |ndustrial area o R 9,205,500 2,987,251 32.5 6,218,249 67.5
Subtotal of saleable land  A] 2% + /N5 19,493,800 4,944,569 25.4 14,549,231 74.6
Non-saleable FEHE
e Roads o iERK 4,431,300 NAA@A NATEA NATER NATEA
o Greenery space o SR (L2 4,074900 N/AT@EA NATEA NATER NATEA
Subtotal of non-saleable  JEH!iE 41
land INET 8,506,200 N/ANEA NATEA NATEA NATEA
Total @st 28,000,000 4,944,569 N/A ~ER 14,549,231 N/A FEHA
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Notes: BeE

(1) Planned site area is based on the planning approved by the relevant local (1) REUREE HEREER S BFILE
government. HIREIMETE

(2)  Percentages are calculated as the site area sold by the local governments (2 BB HBRFEBAHBE  BIEX

through public auction, tender or listing for sale process as a portion of the
total saleable site area under the same land classification.

0 L S R T S (MR E e T
AT (AR — L) B — 55
Tt -

The table below sets forth details regarding land sold by local
government, the relevant average selling price, land premium and a
breakdown of our fee income in the year ended 31 December 2015:

TREFINEZE2015F12A31MH IEFEEM
EOFT i ey L 1S - FERA I B (E -
T b RS A R BRI E AU AR BRAE

34

Our fee
Our fee income/ income
Land sold ASP sold percentage of land (after
by local by local Land premium (prior to Intra-group  intra-group
government government premium intra-group elimination) elimination® elimination)
E4 1)
BEMBERBA BRWA
BEBE  HHRRN L tEe SERE (RERD
HENIE  POHEE  DtnEe (RERIEER) Higo Hiuk)
sgm.  RMB/sq.m. RMB'000 RMB'000 % RMB'000 RMB'000
ARET/
ThHR Ak AREFT  AREFR % AREFT ARETR
Year ended HEN15F
31 December 2015 12A3BLER
Industrial land T4 64,511 376 24,250 20,112 82.9 - 20,112
Residential and EEREEL MO
commercial land® 178,695 4,102 733,000 451,485 61.6 (77,151) 374,334
Subtotal Nt 243,206 3114 757,250 471,597 62.3 (77,151) 394,446
Note 1: PRt -

An area of 37,978 sq.m of the residential and commercial land was sold in the
first half of 2015. Since the relevant local government conducted auction, tender
or listing for sale process again after repurchasing the land area sold in previous
years and changing the land planning, the land area is not included in the
remaining saleable area at the beginning of the year in Longhe Park.

Note 2:

Represents fee income that is derived from transaction within members of our
Group as a result of our purchase of land use rights in Longhe Park and eliminated

on combination.

R R AR TR E R B R A ) China VAST Industrial Urban Development Company Limited

015F EHFHENETERHELHEES
37,978F 73K = BRNA Rt J7 BT ER [ DA BT 4F /2
BRI EEY 2 E iR SR BOETIRA
# o Atz T EE SRR SR FEYR
FRA]HEmEAE

FiRE2

8T APIURER R = 8T [ A L b (8 AN B B
REBKRE DR ZEETHR S (ENAFRE
) MAELMERUEA -
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(I) Longhe Resort

The table below sets forth selective information about the classification
of land and planned site area of Longhe Resort as of 31 December 2015.

() ERLABET RIS FE E R E
TRV 2015512 A31 B Bt 50 @ 15
REERENE BT D EREE L E
TERER AR o

Classification o] Planned site area®
HENLHEED
sg.m.
Saleable oHE
* Residential and commercial area  FERNKEHER 4,525,200
e |ndustrial area o R 1,162,000
Subtotal of saleable land B HEE /N5t 5,687,200
Non-saleable FEHE
e Roads o ERR 563,700
e Greenery space o GR{b 2R 3,249,100
Subtotal of non-saleable land Bl F 3,812,800
Total Fe 9,500,000
Note: BT

(1) Planned site area is based on the planning approved by the relevant local

government.

() RENEEETIERES BT BUFILE
B EIMESE °
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(lll) Guangyang Technology Regeneration Park

During the year 2015, we continued our communication with people’s
government of Langfang and people’s government of Guangyang District
of Langfang in respect of the Guangyang Technology Regeneration Park.
As of 31 December 2015, the industrial positioning and service scope
of the park were still subject to adjustment as the detailed planning
for the second Beijing Capital Airport has not been released, thus no
development work had been carried out in respect of the park. The
Company will continue to communicate with people’s government of
Langfang and people’s government of Guangyang District of Langfang
in respect of the Guangyang Technology Regeneration Park and strive
to commence land consolidation and facility construction as soon as
possible.

(IV) VAST Zhangjiakou City New Industrial Park

The table below sets forth details regarding classification of land and
planned site area of VAST Zhangjiakou City New Industrial Park as at 31
December 2015.

() EERERCE

TE2015F H + B APEER S T A RIBA &
BR T RS & A R BUR S 5t E RS B
EIEBEERITER - HE2015F12 A
318 - BRI R EEE ISR E i R A8
o ZEREEENRIRSEEDE R
B WAREEERAE o ARSEER
Besh i A RBUN K B3 T B F5 [ A RIBUT
EREBEEBEEBEEREER - FI
BRI B) T b B IR I B SR MRS

(IV) RROTHERRERXRE

TREFFIN2015F 12 ATHERR Om#TE
REREXRBBAT D ELRES b EE
MENRER} o

Classification o8 Planned site area™
FEEHEED
sg.m.
5K
Saleable HE
¢ Residential and commercial area o FERNMEHER 360,832
e |ndustrial area o E¥E 1,130,865
Subtotal of saleable land AR et 1,491,697
Non-saleable FHHE
e Roads o JERK 82,303
Subtotal of non-saleable land e s/ NEt 82,303
Total st 1,574,000

Note:

(1) Planned site area is based on the planning submitted to the relevant local
government by us for approval.

R R AR TR E R B R A ) China VAST Industrial Urban Development Company Limited
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(V) Shijiazhuang General Aviation Industrial Town Park
The table below sets forth details regarding classification of land and
planned site area of Shijiazhuang General Aviation Industrial Town Park

as at 31 December 2015.

(V) AxHBEAMZEXRTHER

TREFIFH2015F12 A31 B ARt @ A
TEEMHEEREE LS ENRRE LD
AEMEIRER o

Classification o] Planned site area®
HENLHEED
sg.m.
Saleable oHE
* Residential and commercial area  FERNKEHER 5,313,000
e |ndustrial area o R 6,347,000
Subtotal of saleable land A s et 11,660,000
Non-saleable FEHE
e Roads o ERR 3,668,900
e Greenery space o 4x{bZe 2,716,200
e Supporting facilities o FEANRIE 1,954,900
Subtotal of non-saleable land e s/ Nat 8,340,000
Total @st 20,000,000
Note: BE -

(1) Planned site area is based on the planning submitted to the relevant local

government by us for approval.

(1) HREEWEBDHDEREMEXTHEBLS
B AR HERO R &) -
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(V1) Chuzhou Park
The table below sets forth details regarding classification of land and
planned site area of Chuzhou Park as at 31 December 2015.

(V1) BN rEEE
TREHIN2015F12 A31 B BRI R E &
BT R KRB EENEEER -

Classification gl Planned site area™
HENLHEEY
sg.m.
75K
Saleable AJHE
¢ Residential and commercial area e FEREKEHER 4,286,100
¢ |ndustrial area o EER 5,466,100
Subtotal of saleable land B HEE /N 9,752,200
Non-saleable FEH#E
e Roads o ERK 2,688,800
o Greenery space o GR{LZEfE 2,398,000
e Supporting facilities o THANRIE 159,100
Subtotal of non-saleable land JEH s/ NE 5,245,900
Total st 14,998,100
Note: BIE -

(1) Planned site area is based on the planning submitted to the relevant local
government by us for approval.

hE=SE X M EERE AR A 7 China VAST Industrial Urban Development Company Limited

M REEUEBRDERRMZXTAERLT
BT AR RERO SR B -
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(VII)VAST Ezhou Industrial Park

The table below sets forth details regarding classification of land and
planned site area of VAST Ezhou Industrial Park as at 31 December

(VINZZR=SBMEXRE

TREFIN2015F12 A3 B EH=PMEZE
EEE L B RRENbEENGRE

2015. o
Classification o] Planned site area®
HENLHEED
sg.m.
Saleable oHE
* Residential and commercial area  FERNKEHER 780,900
e |ndustrial area o R 1,113,100
Subtotal of saleable land B HEE /N5t 1,894,000
Non-saleable FEHE
e Roads o ERR 173,600
e Greenery space o GR{b 2R 522,400
e Supporting facilities o FEANRIE 16,000
Subtotal of non-saleable land JEHIEE /N5 712,000
Total @st 2,606,000
Note: BIE -

(1) Planned site area is based on the planning submitted to the relevant local

government by us for approval.

M REEHERDEREMZRXTAERLS
BT AR LR AR B -
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Property Development ) EE k"

As of 31 December 2015, we had 27 projects at various stages of  A2015F 128318 + KMEG27EARNTRHE
development, mainly concentrating on development of residential, EPEXEBMIEE @ TEEHFHRAE B B
commercial and industrial projects with a wide range of products including  I8H @ ERERSIEEE - A8 - B - EE*
residence, apartment, villa, garden houses, retail stores and office buildings. & - ZER#H L AESE - 2015128318 -
We had land reserves of gross floor area of 2,137,000 sg.m. as at 31  H{{EE - HEMEELMEN T EFERATER
December 2015. 52,137,0005F 7K ©

We classify our projects into four categories according to the stage of  FFIBIEFZEMEERBIEE » ANLELER :

development:

. Completed properties. Completed properties represent properties .

for which we have received the certified construction completion
report from the relevant government construction authorities. As of 31
December 2015, our completed properties consisted of Mingren Garden
(& A/N&), Foxconn City Phase | (= £ B — f), Hongtai Meishuguan
Phase | (=Z=3 1818 —Hf), Hongtai Meishuguan Phase Il (2= tE
ZHf), Yihejiayuan Block A (E&A{Es8ARR), Hongtai Longdi Phase | (7=
ZeBe&F —Hf), Hongtai Longdi Phase Il (Z2Z=8E&F — Bf), Chuangye Plaza
Phase Il (8% K& —Hi), Longhe Park — Talent Home (Be)a = #TE A A
X&), Yishujia (#2481%), Yulong Bay Phase | (&€& —Hi) and electronic
factory of Electronic Information Industrial Park Phase | (BF{5 8 &%
B —H).

. Properties under development. Properties under development represent .

properties for which we have received the requisite construction work
commencement permit with respect to all or a part of our projects
before completion of the entire projects. As of 31 December 2015, our
properties under development consisted of Foxconn City Phase Il (&4
EE, — HA) and Electronic Information Industrial Park Phase | (&F1{Z &
EXER—H).

hE=SE X M EERE AR A 7 China VAST Industrial Urban Development Company Limited

DR TYE - B THEEKDEBBRF
TREBSHEORTRABFRENWE - B
2015F12A318 - BMWERIMEE
BENNE - BTEHS—E REERE—
B RREHE S ENERAR R
REB—H - REENH - BIERE=
B #iafEASRE - RER - HiE
E—ELETEREXRE—B(EFHE)

FEh s - MEEPYER - NEEEA
B TR EPABAEE REIFFREET
B TRFAEE Y - R2015612 A 31
B BMOHRAETIYERES TRH =
H BT EEEZE—H-
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. Properties planned for future development. Properties planned for .

future development represent (i) properties for which we have received
the relevant land use rights certificates but have not yet received the
requisite construction work commencement permit; and (ii) properties
for which we are in the process of obtaining land use rights certificates
for our projects. As of 31 December 2015, our properties planned for
future development consisted of Foxconn City Phase Ill (&=
H), Electronic Information Industrial Park Phase Il (B F{Z B EX¥E —
H3), Hongtai Commerce Plaza (2= &), Shangshi liahua (it
=2), Qingnianhui (F4EFE), Yulong Bay Phase Il (#1382 — H3), Yulong
Bay Phase IIl (f188& = Hf), Huahang Apartment (Z#1/28) and Tanghai
Project (/815 B).

. Investment properties. As of 31 December 2015, we had five °

completed investment properties, namely, Chengxiang Building (4 %8
AJE), Jinyue Building (£1%;&%), Tianfu Center (X .03), Foxconn
Technology Complex A11 (2 LR ##A11) and Phase | and Phase
Il of SME Entrepreneurial Base (FF/Nb2AIZEE M —H « — ), and
two investment property planned for future development, including
Foxconn Technology Complex C10 (& £FEREHE#EC10) and Phase Il of
SME Entrepreneurial Base (17| > 2 81| 2 By = Hf).

REWERRFAENWE - RENERRME
BEENKD BB LI ERAEE  BX
WEIFMERETREIHUENDE &
(VERBBERMHIEER TibFEAREENB
12 o M2015F 12 A31 8 » HAFIREIERIE
FROYEBRECEN=ZS EFE8
EXE_H - RHENEES - MtEEE -
SEE - 2 MEE = =
NEBNESGER -

WEWE - N2015F12A318 » HFEE
FEETREME  HREBRBAE &
PUEE - REFO - B TERBIZATINUR
RNV EAIEE B 8 UARMIE
REWERRFAZMIZENE  BEELR
RHZIECT1OMA /M SR ZEE = 51 -

Some of our projects comprise multiple-phase developments on a rolling I8 A THER BETEERENZEEREER -
basis. One project may include different phases at various stages of HMHEB Al BIECET - BEP IR ENHE
development, i.e., completed properties, properties under development and KRGS TR ERERBEOME -

properties planned for future development.
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BEENWR DN

The following map shows the geographical locations and key data of our

properties as of 31 December 2015.

Type fEidl

Completed BE®T 33,000
Under construction pezy = 150,000
For future development  AR2EFAZE 130,000

Chuangye Plaza (Phase Il) £% A8 =5

Completed BT 29,000
Under construction e -

For future development A ZRFAEE -
Completed B®T 351,000
Under construction ez -

For future development  AZRFAEE -
Completed B®T -

Under construction EE -

For future development A& 2RFI% 153,000

Electronic Information Industrial Park in Longhe|

Park BEN S ¥ EE 75 S EXE

Completed B®T 11,000
Under construction pizy= 66,000
For future development  ARZEFAZE 127,000

Longhe Park - Talent Home

EUSHE - A7 KE

Langfang

BB T

Beijing ®
b

Tianjin
RiE

AT BB R 702015512 A 31 B B M 2 60318

UEFTEZHIE -

Chengde
EE

@ Tangshan
EL

Completed B®T 22,000
Under construction ez -
For future development — AZRFAEE -
Bel] Ing-
Tianjin-Hebei
Completed B®T 160,000 Region
Under construction e - :%_1: 5$ § iﬂ_’, B
For future development A ZRFAEE -
Completed B®T 85,000
Under construction e -
For future development A ZRFEE -

<

pe R
Mingren Garden & A/NE
Completed B®T 64,000
Under construction e -
For future development ~ RRFEEE -

Hongtai Meishuguan %= %&£

Completed B®T 252,000
Under construction 12 -
For future development ~ RFRFEZEE -

Shangshi Jiahua it E %
I —

Completed B
Under construction i -
For future development ~ A2KFA% 203,000

Qingnianhui FFE

Completed B%RT -
Under construction 1EE -
For future development  AR2RFA%E 11,000

Huahang Apartment EHAE
Completed B®T -
Under construction 12 -
For future development  R2RFA%& 10,000

Yulong Bay f#E#

Completed BT 159,000
Under construction 1EE
For future development A 3R A%

472,000

Tanghai Project &85

R R AR TR E R B R A ) China VAST Industrial Urban Development Company Limited

B
Completed B%T -
jea= -
RIRBEE 204,000

Under construction

For future development
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Saleable
Gross Floor Land-use Group's  Area Remaining
Site Area: Area Purpose Interest Unsold
) ) agg £5
Project Name and Location BEERRME i ER [ 1A% Frk g T EEE
(sg.m) (s.m) (Sqm)
(FhX) (FAK) (%) (FA%)
Langfang 53
Foxconn City (Phase | to ) BTRA(—BE=H) 126,545 313,000 Residential and commercial 100% 267,000
39 Fukang Road, Langfang BT E RE39% ETEH
Chuangye Plaza (Phase I} BEARE=H 8820 29,000 Commercial 100% 23,000
39 Nanlong Road, Langfang ESATA 395 [
Hongtai Longdi (Phase | and 1) ERED(-E . —5) 126929 351,000 Residential and commercial 100% 135,000
259 South Yinhe Road, Langfang BB SR B 259, ETHES
Hongtai Commerce Plaza TREERES 17486 153,000 Commercial 100% 153,000
West Chuangye Plaza, Nanlong Road, Langfang B mEEEsEAER [k
Electronic Information Industrial Park in Longhe Park EleHRETEEERE 187,815 204,000 Industrial 100% 190,000
(Phase land I) (8 —8) EX
89 Fukang Road, Langfang B M ERE89H
Longhe Park - Talent Home ETRNEATZRE 12,666 22000 Residential 100% 21,000
125 Furao Road, Langfang BT S S 1255 fix
Yishujia BER 94,829 160,000 Residential and commercial 100% 1,000
155 Glangyang Road, Langfang ARG E155% AERE%
Yihejiayuan (Block A) B (AR) 35430 85,000 Residential and commercial 100% 3000
300 Xichang Road, Langfang ErSHT G EFR 3008 ETEES
Minren Garden ZNE 29,141 64,000 Residential and commercial 100% 1,000
76 Heping Road, Langfang By mTEI6H FEREE
Hongtai Meishuguan (Phase I and Il TRERE(-E ) 120,739 252,000 Residential and commercial 100% 107,000
28 Huaxiang Road, Development Zone, Langfang By MRAREERK8T FEREE
Shangshi Jiahua (Phase 1 and I) AtEE(—5 —8) 70972 203,000  Residential and commercial 100% 191,000
South Jinyuan Road, Development Zone, Langfang BSmRERSBES fFEREx
Qingnianhui FEE 4279 11,000  Residential and commercial 100% 9,000
175 East Aimin Road, Langfang BHmERRESH: rEREE
Huahang Apartment ETNCY 10,557 10,000 Residential 100% 10,000
175 East Aimin Road, Langfang BymERRESH =
Chengde
Yulong Bay kS 142,341 631,000 Residential and commercial 100% 503,000
Junction of Sounthwest of Wuwei Road and Siiujing Road,  AEHHEREKES - ETEES
New District, Chengde LyaedS |
Tangshan Bl
Tanghai Project i8R 665,935 204,000 Residential 100% 204,000
North Shore, Caofei Hu, Qi Nongchang, G E
Caofeidian District, Tangshan [
Total At 1,684,984 2,692,000 1,818,000

Annual Report 2015 £ 3§



Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENME DI

The following table sets forth the revenue, gross floor area (“GFA”) sold, and &S Z2015F12A31 B I EERASES
average selling price ("ASP") for each of our revenue-generating property for — Wzs¥mizs  BeEgSERR((REEE )&

the year ended 31 December 2015: FHEE(TFHERE])
GFA sold ASP
Residential and commercial EEREE Revenue Year ended Year ended
Project EHA Project 31 December 2015 31 December 2015
CEEEME THEE
2 BZE2015% BZE2015F
HE 12A31HLLEE 12B31HILEE
RMB’'000 Sg.m. RMB/Sq.m.
ARKETTT Fak AR FHK
Mingren Garden Phase II EYNGN -
(F ANz )
Residential [Ea=2 2,073 320 6,478
Hongtai Meishuguan Phase | RIREREE— 8
(RERERIEE—H)
Residential F=E 104,262 19,687 5,296
Commercial [EES 8,849 959 9,227
113,111 20,646 5,479
Hongtai Meishuguan Phase Il IR N — B
(2R A8 6E — HA)
Residential F= 69,046 9,190 7,513
Hongtai Longdi Phase | TER e B —Hf
(2R EERR—HA)
Residential F= 76,018 13,300 5,716
Commercial [EES 5,162 338 15,272
81,180 13,638 5,952
Hongtai Longdi Phase I RZRBeRB—HA
(RZRBERL —Hf)
Residential F= 448,025 67,651 6,623
Shangbei Complex itERAIE
(L& E1E)
Commercial [EES 98,790 10,528 9,384
Chuangye Plaza (Phase Il) BIZERE_H
(BIZKRE—H)
Ccommercial [EES 59,789 5,386 11,101
Yulong Bay Phase | fEBEE—H
(B5E/E—HR)
Residential F= 95,077 20,942 4,540
Commercial S 5,687 577 9,856
100,764 21,519 4,683
Sub-total Net 972,778 148,878 6,534

44 TR g E A R AR A7) China VAST Industrial Urban Development Company Limited
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GFA sold ASP
Ancillary Area HWBPE Revenue Year ended Year ended
Project HE Project 31 December 2015 31 December 2015
CEREER THEE
Wz BZE2015% BZE2015%
EHE 12B31HLLEE 12A31HLEE
RMB'000 Sg.m. RMB/Sg.m.
AREFT FhHK ARET/FHK
Mingren Garden Phase I BNPNEZHIM T E
Underground Chamber
(BA/NE ZHAlh T =) 27 23 1,174
Hongtai Meishuguan Underground RERERETE
Chamber (ZZZEZEHIEH T =) 2,345 2,254 1,040
Hongtai Longdi Underground Chamber Z=Zz3e &Rt T =
(RRBERPIL T =) 8,147 5,106 1,596
Yulong Bay Phase | Underground HEEE - T =
Chamber (f138/& —HAth T =) 504 324 1,556
Yishujia Underground Chamber BRI =
(RRI T =) 24 24 1,000
Sub-total /Nt 11,047 7,731 1,429
Hongtai Meishuguan Car Park Unit RRFEMIERE L
(RIRERIEEEN) 4,715 53 88,962
Hongtai Longdi Car Park Unit BRIREERREAL
(R ZRREERE L) 6,885 71 96,972
Yulong Bay Phase | Car Park Unit fEBE /S —BAEE L
(D 3EE —HREE ) 184 2 92,000
Sub-total e 11,784 126 93,524
Total waEt 995,609 156,735 6,352
Less: Business tax and surcharges B EEREMINE 54,688
Total revenue after tax Tiig 940,921
Note: Ffi3E

(1) GFA sold represents the number of car park units and ASP represents the average (1

selling price for each car park unit.

DERFEEYEBREFEEUMNYE - FHERBE
F—FEMNTHHEES -
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HONGTAI LONGDI, LANG FANG, HEBEI

A 4L & BB ™ = 2R RE D

[

Hongtai Longdi (7= Z=#E8R) is an integrated
development of residential and commercial project
which is located in Longhe Park, the center of the
south of Langfang. Longhe Park not only enjoys
proximity to the central business district of the
capital, but also occupies a strategic position at
Langfang, Beijing and Tianjin. It is an ecologically
friendly city characterized by its modernization as
well as integration of production and municipal
functions in the south of Langfang. The Project is
conveniently located close to transport facilities
with Nanlong Road in the north and Yinhe Road
to the west, which is two kilometers away from
the Langfang stop of Beijing-Shanghai high-speed
railway.

In 2015, the contracted sales and contracted
sales in terms of GFA of Hongtai Longdi (%=
EEKB) amounted to RMB471,908 thousand and
72,810 sg.m., respectively. As at 31 December
2015, the total GFA and remaining future saleable
commercial and residential floor area (excluding
presold GFA) of Hongtai Longdi (Z=2=#E&R) project
were 351,000 sg.m. and 50,000 sg.m., respectively.

EBAFEMBELS
é‘%ﬁ {32 7 JBR B 98k 0 7 4
Bz O R AR — B2 = B
@ - L%E}EE%%BZ‘E‘%/H
BER LA EERR
J@ﬁﬁﬁf?‘?%%ﬁﬂtﬁ’\]ﬁ
BE R - TERRE R O R
BLE - BRI -
ERN—RBOEREE %ﬁ
W o IEEIUZ?E# BEE -
fEEROTEE - ﬁE%’E?E%
BREh i A BEEA - A2
mERE .

2015%F - REFEERR S A
ERARE4L71,908F 7T -

ARBEEEA72810F
- ﬁ“ R 201512 A 31
H - RREBEERESR

Eﬁ?%%'] L0005 2K -
EBRARR A B EREEA
(TBREERERERE)
/350,000 75K e

HONGTAI MEISHUGUAN (%% % %{£E) IN LANGFANG, HEBEI PROVINCE
STdE B BRI T =R KR

Hongtai Meishuguan (Z=Z=3451£g) is a residential
complex project comprising residence, apartment,
villa and garden houses which is located in
the center of the economic and technological
development zone of Langfang, Hebei province.
Located in the northeastern part of Langfang,
north to Oriental University City (375 AE )
and south to the Langfang financial recreational
center, the project is conveniently located close
to a developed transportation network and is only
500 meters away from the Langfang exit of Beijing-
Tianjin-Tanggu Expressway and 50 minutes driving
distance from CBD of Beijing.

In 2015, the contracted sales and contracted sales
in terms of GFA of Hongtai Meishuguan (%%
f&1£E) project amounted to RMB185,742 thousand
and 30,682 sg.m., respectively. As at 31 December
2015, the total GFA and remaining future saleable
commercial and residential floor area (excluding
pre-sold GFA) of Hongtai Meishuguan (7=Zz 5t
#E) project were 252,000 sg.m. and 61,000 sg.m.,
respectively.
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YULONG BAY (#iJ#€%) IN CHENGDE, HEBEI PROVINCE
A B AT EEE

(RERREEEEE 2}

Yulong Bay (#H& &) project is an integrated
development project of residential and commercial
in Chengde, Hebei province. Located in the
south part of Shuanggiao District, Chengde, the
project is conveniently located as it is less than
two kilometers away from the Beijing-Chengde
Expressway and only six kilometers away from
the Chengde stop of Beijing-Shenyang high-speed
railway. The project adjoins Chengde University
City (Ff=AZ4) with well-equipped surrounding
facilities and has huge development potential for
future real estate projects.

In 2015, the contracted sales and contracted
sales in terms of GFA of Yulong Bay (fH &g /&
project amounted to RMB145,456 thousand and
32,927 sg.m., respectively. As at 31 December
2015, the total GFA and remaining future saleable
commercial and residential floor area (excluding
pre-sold GFA) of Yulong Bay (f/&€/&) project were
631,000 sg.m. and 370,000 sg.m., respectively.
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ELECTRONIC INFORMATION INDUSTRIAL PARK IN LONGHE PARK (Withub and

Dreamwork)
ENSHES

FEEEXE(ZR EITR)

Electronic Information Industrial Park in Longhe
Park, Langfang (ERth 80 == 8 715 BREXR) is
a high-end office building industrial project located
in the center of industrial cluster in Longhe Park,
Langfang. The project is conveniently located as it is
5 minutes away from Langfang high-speed railway
and takes 20 minutes to the city center of Beijing
and Tianjin by high-speed railway. It adjoins Beijing-
Shanghai, Beijing-Hongkong-Macao and Beijing-
Taipei Expressway. The project mainly involves the
development of single buildings for enterprises
and is an industrial complex project which offers
services including commerce, office, exhibition,
communication and training.

In 2015, the contracted sales and contracted
sales in terms of GFA of Electronic Information
Industrial Park amounted to RMB38,222 thousand
and 6,395 sq.m., respectively. As at 31 December
2015, the total GFA and remaining future saleable
commercial and residential floor area (excluding
pre-sold GFA) of Electronic Information Industrial
Park were 204,000 sg.m. and 163,000 sg.m.,
respectively.
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CHUANGYE PLAZA (PHASE II)
RIEXRE=H

R RN

Chuangye Plaza is currently the most well-established large scale office
building in the south of Langfang. Located in the center of Longhe Park,
Chuangye Plaza is in close vicinity to Anci Administrative Service Center (%
RATBRFSH0) and is a landmark building of Longhe Park. Chuangye Plaza
is in the north of Nanlong Road and in the east of Changfu Road, which is
connected directly to the high-speed railway station and takes 20 minutes to
Beijing and Tianjin by high-speed railway. It is close to Yinhe Road and lianshe
Road. Its road network is extended to all directions with smooth and clear
connection to the south of Langfang. The area of a single floor ranges from 60
sg.m. to 1,870 sg.m. without indoor columns, enabling an open and practical
space with a large window facing area.

In 2015, the contracted sales and contracted sales in terms of GFA of
Chuangye Plaza (Phase Il) project amounted to RMB59,789 thousand and 5,386
sg.m., respectively. As at 31 December 2015, the total GFA and remaining
future saleable residential floor area (excluding pre-sold GFA) of Chuangye
Plaza (Phase Il) project were 29,000 sg.m. and 19,000 sg.m., respectively.

Property Leasing Income
For the year ended 31 December 2015, our property leasing income was
RMB10.6 million, and gross profit was RMB10.4 million. In the future, we will
consider the synergies created by the increase of housing units through
the development of real estate related business to determine the input of
resources on the leasing business.
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Outlook

In respect of our industrial town projects development, we will focus on the
development of Longhe Park and commence foundation works in respect of
projects located in Beijing-Tianjiang Hebei area in 2016. We have confidence
in executing this year's development plan and revenue proposal as laid out
by the management of the Company at the beginning of the year.

In respect of our property development, we intend to commence construction
of three projects in 2016, including Shangshi Jiahua (it 3 %), Tanghai
Project (/88 B) and Qingnianhui (54 [&). Revenue from sales of properties
during 2016 is expected to be derived mainly from sales carried forward from
four projects including Hongtai Longdi (Z=Z=5E&B), Hongtai Meishuguan (7%=
Z4818E), Yulong Bay (#H188)&) and Electronic Information Industrial Park (& -+
EREXERE).

Taking into account our cash and future operating cash flows, and bank and
other borrowings available, we believe that we have sufficient funding to
support these development plans.
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Biographies of Directors and Senior Management
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Board of Directors

The Board of Directors (the “Board”) consists of eight Directors, of whom four
are executive Directors, one is non-executive Director and the remaining
three are independent non-executive Directors.

Wang Jianjun (£ £ E)

Executive Director and Chairman

Mr. Wang Jianjun (E# %), aged 53, was appointed as our Chairman and
executive Director on 13 February 2014, and the chairman of nomination
committee on 6 August 2014. Mr. Wang is also the founder and the president
of our Group, responsible for our overall strategy, business development and
investment planning. Mr. Wang has 20 years of experience in the real estate
industry. Mr. Wang is the spouse of Ms. Zhao Ying. Mr. Wang is involved
in various governmental associations, including: deputy to the People’s
congress in Hebei province; member of the Standing Committee of the
People’s Congress in Langfang City, Hebei province; and Vice President (2|&
&) of Langfang Industrial and Commercial Association (B3t L g 254 ).
Mr. Wang received his college diploma (8%} in Administration Management
(fTEE12) from the Rural Enterprises Managers & Leaders Institute of
the Ministry of Agriculture (2234 iA M EE IR # I 20r), located in the
People’s Republic of China (the “PRC"), in June 1995. He was qualified as a
Senior Engineer (= 4% T#2RM) by the Title Reform Leadership Group of Hebei
Province (4h& BEiERE B8 /\48), a governmental authority, in December
2001.

Yang Yun (£ 7t)

Executive Director and Vice President

Mr. Yang Yun (#5 ), aged 42, was appointed as our executive Director on
17 March 2014. Mr. Yang is the vice president of our Group, responsible for
strategy and development, expansion of industrial town projects and property
development and overall process management of property development. Mr.
Yang has 17 years of experience in the real estate industry. He received his
bachelor’'s degree in real estate management (EithZEALZ &) from Jiangxi
University of Finance and Economics (T 788148 X&), located in the PRC, in
July 1998. He was qualified as an Assistant Economist (B3 45 8M) by the
Title Reform Office of Langfang Economic Development Zone (B34 5% & B
23%) in October 1999.
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Wang Yagang (E z5fl)

Executive Director and Vice President

Mr. Wang Yagang (E g5 fl), aged 35, was appointed as our executive Director
on 17 March 2014. Mr. Wang Yagang is the Vice President of our Group,
responsible for overall management of industrial town projects. Mr. Wang
has 13 years of experience in the real estate industry. He graduated from
Agriculture University of Hebei (AL £ 3£ K 22), located in the PRC, majoring
in Management of Urban Economics (5 $E4% 74 1), in December 2004.

Huang Peikun (Z1Z#)

Executive Director and Chief Financial Officer

Mr. Huang Peikun (& 1518), aged 53, was appointed as our executive Director
on 17 March 2014. Mr. Huang is the Chief Financial Officer of our Group,
responsible for our financial management and control. Mr. Huang has 12
years of experience in business management. He received his master’s
degree in Management Science and Engineering (&2 R} £8 T 72) from
Zhejiang University (4T K £2), located in the PRC, in December 1999 and his
Executive Master of Business Administration degree from The Hong Kong
University of Science and Technology (F#& %% K£2), located in Hong Kong,
in June 2012. He was qualified as a senior accountant (=4, € 5H4m) by the
Department of Personnel Affairs of Guangdong Province (EBH & AEEE) in
February 2000.

Zhao Ying (#%8)

Non-executive Director

Ms. Zhao Ying (#878), aged 45, was appointed as our non-executive Director
on 13 February 2014 and a member of remuneration committee on 6 August
2014. Ms. Zhao has 7 years of experience in the real estate industry. Ms. Zhao
is the spouse of Mr. Wang Jianjun.

Zhang Xiaomei (GRFEEH)

Independent Non-executive Director

Ms. Zhang Xiaomei (5REE#5), aged 45, was appointed as our independent
non-executive Director on 6 August 2014 and a member of the audit
committee, nomination committee and remuneration committee on é August
2014. Ms. Zhang has over 16 years of experience in business management.
She received her bachelor’s degree in Accounting from the Beijing College
of Economics (db R4 EFR), now known as the Capital University of
Economics and Business (& & EE 5 K&, located in the PRC, in July
1992 and her Executive Master of Business Administration degree from The
Cheung Kong Graduate School of Business (K;T BE2%), located in the PRC,
in September 2010.
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Wei Yu (Bi=)

Independent Non-executive Director

Mr. Wei Yu (3857, aged 46, was appointed as our independent non-executive
Director on 6 August 2014 and the chairman of the remuneration committee
and a member of the audit committee and the nomination committee on 6
August 2014. Mr. Wei has 12 years of experience in business management.
He attended the Executive Master of Business Administration Programme at
Cheung Kong Graduate School of Business ()T 25x), located in the PRC,
in October 2007. Mr. Yu has also served as an independent non-executive
director of 500.com Limited (a company listed on the New York Stock
Exchange, NYSE: WBAI) since November 2013.

Wong Wing Kuen, Albert (E k)

Independent Non-executive Director

Dr. Wong Wing Kuen, Albert (Fsk#i&E =), aged 64, was appointed as our
independent non-executive Director on 6 August 2014 and the chairman of
audit committee on 6 August 2014. Dr. Wong has 21 years of experience in
accounting. Dr. Wong has a broad range of experience serving as directors of
various listed companies, including as an independent non-executive director
of China Merchants Land Limited (@ company listed on the Stock Exchange
with stock code 00978) since June 2012, an independent non-executive
director of Solargiga Energy Holdings Limited (a company listed on the Stock
Exchange with stock code 00757) since January 2008, an independent non-
executive director of APAC Resources Limited (a company listed on the
Stock Exchange with stock code 01104) since July 2004. He holds a Doctor
of Philosophy in Business Administration from the Bulacan State University,
Republic of the Philippines since December 4, 2010. He is member of the
following institutions, including: a fellow member of The Institute of Chartered
Secretaries and Administrators; a fellow member of The Hong Kong Institute
of Chartered Secretaries; a fellow member of The Taxation Institute of Hong
Kong; a member of the Hong Kong Securities and Investment Institute;
a member of the Hong Kong Securities Institute; a fellow member of the
Association of International Accountants; a fellow member of the Society
of Registered Financial Planners; a member of The Chartered Institute of
Arbitrators; an associate member of The Chartered Institute of Bankers in
Scotland; and a full member of the Macau Society of Certified Practicing
Accountants.
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Senior Management
Our senior management is responsible for the day-to-day management of our
business.

Xu Ming (#88)

Mr. Xu Ming (#:88), aged 49, was appointed as our vice president on 20
March 2006. He is responsible for our capital management and the daily
operation of Langfang Sheng Shi Construction. Mr. Xu has over 30 years of
experience in business management. He has been a member of the Standing
Committee of the seventh Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference
in Anci district, Langfang City, Hebei province (L4 ERs T & X @ B i+ fE
Z8E&EHKZE 8) since January 2012. Mr. Xu graduated from Tianjin University
of Finance and Economics (KZBF 4 A E2), formerly known as Tianjin College
of Finance and Economics (R2E £ Ef57), located in the PRC, in master’s
course on economics (A&%22) in June 1999. He was qualified as a Senior
Economist (& 4% 25 6M) by the Agriculture Bank of China, Hebei branch (&
JRERITIIEE 917) In December 1999.

Cui Xiangxu (£ 8)

Ms. Cui Xiangxu (£1a]f8), aged 46, was appointed as our vice president on 3
August 2006. She is responsible for our finance, cost and legal management.
Ms. Cui has 20 years of experience in business management in the real
estate market. Ms. Cui graduated from the Lang Fang Radio & TV University
(BBYTEEEE AE), located in the PRC, majoring in accounting (&:1£2), a
correspondence course, in July 1992. She was qualified as an Economist (4%
JERM) by the Medium Level Title Assessment Committee for Langfang Rural
Enterprises (BR$h T #B5E > ¥ A R B FERFZ &) in September 2001.

Company Secretary

Ms. To Yee Man (t4x3), aged 31, was appointed as the company secretary
of our Group on 4 March 2014. Ms. To has more than 9 years of experience
in accounting and finance. She worked at Ernst & Young from September
2006 to August 2013 and served as an audit manager (F&t432) before
her resignation. Ms. To received her bachelor of Business Administration
in Operations Management and Accounting from Hong Kong University of
Science and Technology, Hong Kong, in June 2006. She has been a fellow
member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants since
January 2010.
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Enrpurate Governance Report
= 'MsAﬁd:

The Board is pleased to present the Corporate Governance Report of the
Company for the year ended 31 December 2015.

Corporate Governance Practices

For the year ended 31 December 2015, the Company has complied with all
the applicable code provisions set out in the Corporate Governance Code
(the “Code”) contained in Appendix 14 to The Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”)
except for the following deviation:

Code provision A.2.1 of the Code stipulates that the roles of chairman and
chief executive should be separate and should not be performed by the
same individual. Mr. Wang Jianjun has been assuming the roles of both the
chairman of the Board and the president of the Company since the listing of
the Company’s shares on 25 August 2014. The Board believes that resting
the roles of both the chairman and the president in the same person has
the benefit of ensuring consistent leadership within the Group and enables
more effective and efficient overall strategic planning for the Group. Although
these two roles are performed by the same individual, certain responsibilities
are shared with executive directors to balance the power and authority. In
addition, all major decisions are made in consultation with members of the
board as well as senior management. The Board has three independent non-
executive directors who offer different independent perspectives. Therefore,
the Board is of the view that there are adequate balances of power and
safeguards in place. The Board would review and monitor the situation on a
regular basis and would ensure that the present structure would not impair
the balance of power in the Group.

In respect of code provision A.1.3 of the Code, notice of at least 14 days
should be given of the regular board meeting to give all directors an
opportunity to attend. During the Period, one Board meeting was convened
with less than 14 days’ notice to enable the Board members to react timely
and make expeditious decision making in respect of transactions which were
of significance to the Group's business. As a result, the aforesaid regular
Board meetings were held with a shorter notice period than required with
the consent of all the Directors for that time being. The Board will do its best
endeavours to meet the requirement of code provision A.1.3 of the Code in
the future.

In respect of code provision A.6.7, independent non-executive directors and
other non-executive directors should attend general meetings and develop
a balanced understanding of the views of the shareholders. However, due to
other pre-arranged business commitments which must be attended: (i) Ms
Zhang Xiaomei, and Mr. Wei Yu, being independent non-executive directors
of the Company, were not present at the annual general meeting (“AGM")
of the Company held on 13 May 2015; and (ii) Ms. Zhao Ying, being non-
executive director of the Company, and Ms. Zhang Xiaomei, and Mr. Wei
Yu, being independent non-executive directors of the Company, were not
present at the extraordinary general meeting ("EGM”) of the Company held on
21 July 2015. The Board will do its best endeavours to meet the requirement
of code provision A.6.7 of the Code in the future.
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TEERBRE

Directors’ Securities Transactions

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules (the
"Model Code”) as the guidelines for the directors’ dealings in the securities of
the Company.

Specific enquiry has been made to all directors of the Company and all
directors have confirmed that they have complied with the applicable
standards set out in the Model Code throughout year ended 31 December
2015.

Board of Directors

The Board is responsible for overseeing the management, businesses,
strategic directions and financial performance of the Group. The Board holds
regular meetings to discuss the Group's businesses and operations. The
Board delegates the day-to-day management, administration and operation
of the Group to the management team. The delegated functions are reviewed
by the Board periodically to ensure that they accommodate the needs of the
Group.

The Board consists of eight Directors, of whom four are executive Directors,
one is non-executive Director and the remaining three are independent non-
executive Directors. The table below sets out the roles of each member of
the Board and their relationships:

Directors Position
Wang Jianjun Executive Director, Chairman of

(spouse of Ms. Zhao Ying) the Board and President of the Company
Yang Yun Executive Director and Vice President
Wang Yagang Executive Director and Vice President

Executive Director and Chief Financial
Officer

Huang Peikun

Zhao Ying Non-Executive Director

(spouse of Mr. Wang lianjun)
Zhang Xiaomei Independent Non-executive Director
Wei Yu Independent Non-executive Director

Wwong Wing Kuen, Albert Independent Non-executive Director

Brief biographical details of the Directors and senior management are set out
on pages 50 to 53. Upon specific enquiry by the Company, there has been no
change in the information of the Directors required to be disclosed pursuant
to Rule 13.51B of the Listing Rules since the Company’s last published annual
report.

The Company has received annual confirmations of independence from all of
the independent non-executive Directors and the Board is of the view that all
the independent non-executive Directors are independent in accordance with
Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.
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Appointment, Re-Election and Removal of Directors

All Directors are appointed for a specific term of three years which may be
extended as each and the Company may agree, subject to retirement by
rotation and re-election at the annual general meeting ("“AGM") in accordance
with the articles of association of the Company. Article 84 of the articles of
association of the Company provides that at each AGM, one-third of the
Directors for the time being (or if their number is not a multiple of three, the
number nearest to one-third) shall retire from office by rotation, provided that
every Director (including those appointed for a specific term) shall be subject
to retirement by rotation at least once every three years.

In accordance with the said provision of the Articles and the Code Provision
A4.1, in the last AGM held on 13 May 2015, at least one-third of the directors
(namely Mr. Wang Yagang, Mr. Huang Peikun and Ms. Zhang Xiaomei) were
subject to retirement by rotation and were re-elected. Mr. Yang Yun , Ms.
Zhao Ying and Mr. Wei Yu shall retire by rotation and, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-election at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting.

Attendance at Meetings of the Board, Shareholders
and Board Committees

During 2015, the Board held 4 regular board meetings, 2 audit committee
meetings, 1 remuneration committee meeting and 1 nomination committee
meeting. As regards general meetings, the Company held the AGM on 13
May 2015 and 1 SGM on 21 July 2015 in relation to the approval and adoption
the Share Option Scheme.

The table below sets out the attendance of each Director at the relevant
meetings:
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attend for the year ended 31 December 2015
BZ2015512A3MALFEEHE CEREENEEEE

General Audit Remuneration  Nomination
Board meeting  Committee = Committee = Committee
g8 ETN- EREEE FMEEE REZES
Executive Director HiTES
Wang Jianjun TEE 4/4 1/2 N/A N/A 11
TEHA T
Yang Yun B 4/4 1/2 N/A N/A N/A
TEHA T i
Wang Yagang F A 4/4 0/2 N/A N/A N/A
i TiE i
Huang Peikun =i 4/4 2/2 N/A N/A N/A
i T i
Non-executive Director FHTES
Zhao Ying sz 4/4 172 N/A 11 N/A
TiE A TEA
Independent BYEHTES
Non-executive Director
Zhang Xiaomei REE 4/4 0/2 2/2 11 11
Wei Yu 0¥ 4/4 0/2 2/2 (Al 11
Wong Wing Kuen, Albert FoxE 4/4 2/2 2/2 N/A N/A
A i

R R AR TR E R B R A ) China VAST Industrial Urban Development Company Limited



Corporate Governance Report
TEERBRE

Directors’ Continuous Professional Development

To assist Directors’ continuing professional development, the Company
has arranged trainings and recommended Directors to attend relevant
seminars to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills. All the Directors
understand the importance of continuous professional development and are
committed to participating in any suitable training to develop and refresh
their knowledge and skills. The directors are also continually updated with
legal and regulatory requirements, and business and market changes to
facilite the discharge of their responsibilities through various Board meetings
and resolutions. The table below sets out the individual training records of
each Director received for the year ended 31 December 2015:

Read materials

EENFHEEXRRE
RHBBERNFASEER  ARARERHHE
WiHEEHEERMN e ABRREMREN
MBI 2REFRAAFEEEXERNEE
1 WEHIRSIMEEE A AR S B3
BEMBNKEE - EENEBZETGERE N
AR TEHESEWERNEERTE - EBHRM
SEENENER  MERITEE - TRIIIN
BE2015F12A318 FFEREFMEX N
BRI :

Attending seminar(s)/programme(s)/
conference(s)/training(s) relevant to
the Group’s business or directors’ duties

SNERAEEEERESREN

BREAT R g RRE g8 5

Wang Jianjun TEE v/ -
Yang Yun B v/ -
Wwang Yagang F 2o v -
Huang Peikun gy v/ -
Zhao Ying fizb ] v/ -
Zhang Xiaomei R v -
Wei Yu ¥ v/ -
Wong Wing Kuen, Albert FoxiE v -

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee of the Company, consisting of three independent non-
executive Directors, namely Dr. Wong Wing Kuen, Albert (Chairman), Ms.
Zhang Xiaomei and Mr. Wei Yu, was established with specific written terms
of reference and is responsible for the review and supervision of the Group’s
financial reporting process and internal controls, and recommendation on the
re-appointment of external auditors. For the year ended 31 December 2015,
the Audit Committee has reviewed the unaudited interim financial statements
for the six months ended 30 June 2015 and the audited financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2015, reviewed reports on internal control
system of the Group, and discussed with the management and the external
auditors the accounting principles and practices which may affect the Group
and financial reporting matters.

The Audit Committee is of the opinion that the Group's consolidated financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2015 comply with the applicable
accounting standards, the Listing Rules and all other applicable legal
requirements. The Audit Committee therefore recommended for the Board's
approval of the Group's consolidated financial statements for the year ended
31 December 2015.
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Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee, consisting of two independent non-executive
directors and one non-executive director, was established with specific
written terms of reference, and is responsible for making recommendations
on the Company’s policy and structure for the remuneration of all the
Directors and senior management of the Company and on the establishment
of a formal and transparent procedure for developing remuneration policy
for approval by the Board. The Remuneration Committee met once a year
to review the remuneration policy for Directors and senior management of
the Company. The remuneration for the Directors and senior management
comprises basic salary, retirement benefits and discretionary bonus.
Details of the amount of emoluments of Directors paid for the year ended
31 December 2015 are set out in note 14 to the consolidated financial
statements. Members of the Remuneration Committee are Mr. Wei Yu
(Chairman), Ms. Zhao Ying and Ms. Zhang Xiaomei.

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee, consisting of one executive director and two
independent non-executive directors, was established with specific written
terms of reference, and is responsible for considering the suitability of a
candidate to act as a Director on the basis of the candidate’s qualification,
experience, integrity and potential contribution to the Company, and
approving and terminating the appointment of a Director. A candidate to
be appointed as independent non-executive Director must also meet the
independence requirement set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. Members
of the Nomination Committee are Mr. Wang Jianjun (Chairman), Mr. Wei Yu
and Ms. Zhang Xiaomei.

Board Diversity Policy

The Board has adopted a board diversity policy during the reporting period.
The Company seeks to achieve board diversity through the consideration of
a number of factors, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and
educational background, ethnicity, professional experience, skills, knowledge
and length of service. All board appointments will be based on meritocracy,
and candidates will be considered against objective criteria, having due
regard for the benefits of diversity on the Board. As at the date of this report,
the Board comprises eight directors, of whom six are males and two are
females. Three are independent non-executive Directors, thereby promoting
critical review and control of the management process. The Board is also
characterised by significant diversity, whether considered in terms of gender,
nationality, professional background and skills.

R R AR TR E R B R A ) China VAST Industrial Urban Development Company Limited
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Corporate Governance Functions

No corporate governance committee has been established. The Board is
responsible for performing the corporate governance functions such as
developing and reviewing the Company’s policies, practices on corporate
governance, reviewing and monitoring the training and continuous
professional development of Directors and senior management, reviewing
and monitoring the Company’s policies and practices on compliance with
legal and regulatory requirements, reviewing the Company’s compliance with
the Corporate Governance Code and disclosure in the Corporate Governance
Report.

Directors’ Responsibility in Respect of
Financial Reporting

The Directors acknowledge that they are responsible for overseeing the
preparation of the financial statements which give a true and fair view of
the state of affairs and results of the Group. In doing so, the Directors opted
for suitable accounting policies and applied them consistently and used
accounting estimates as appropriate in the circumstances. With the assistance
of the accounting and finance staffs, the Directors ensured that the
financial statements of the Group are prepared in accordance with statutory
requirements and appropriate financial reporting standards.

The statement of the external auditor of the Company, Deloitte Touche
Tohmatsu, in relation to their reporting responsibilities on the financial
statements of the Group is set out in the Independent Auditor’'s Report on
pages 76 to 77.

Internal Control

The Board acknowledges that it is responsible for the internal control system
of the Group, and an effective internal control system enhances the Group's
ability in achieving business objectives, safeguarding assets, complying with
applicable laws and regulations and contributes to the effectiveness and
efficiency of its operations. As such, the Group's internal control procedures
include a comprehensive budgeting, information reporting and performance
monitoring system. The Board has conducted a review of, and is satisfied
with the effectiveness of the internal control system of the Group during the
reporting period.
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Auditors’ Remuneration
For the year ended 31 December 2015, the total fees paid/payable in respect
of services provided by the Group's external auditors are set out below:

BEE &

HZE2015F12A31HILFE » AL BEINEZ
HE TR MR EN AN AE A
T~

Services rendered FriR AR S Fees paid/payable

et ENER

RMB'000

ARETFT

Audit services EZIR 2,801

Tax services Bl i5 RIS 454

Remuneration of Senior Management =R EEE B

For the year ended 31 December 2015, the remuneration of the members of & ZE2015F12A31H LFE - @REREREMN

the senior management is set out by band as follows:

FBMRARRE T -

Band of remuneration (HK$) AR (BT Number of person
A
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 702 1,500,000/ 7T 1

Company Secretary

Ms. To Yee Man (“Ms. To") was appointed as the company secretary of
the Company on 4 March 2014. The biographical details of Ms. To are set
out under the section headed "Biographies of the Directors and Senior
Management”. For the year ended 31 December 2015, Ms. To has taken no
less than 15 hours of relevant professional training in accordance with Rule
3.29 of the Listing Rules.

Shareholders’ Rights

The general meetings of the Company provide an opportunity for
communication between the shareholders of the Company and the Board. An
AGM of the Company shall be held in each year and at the place as may be
determined by the Board. Each general meeting, other than an AGM, shall be
called an extraordinary general meeting (‘EGM").

R R AR TR E R B R A ) China VAST Industrial Urban Development Company Limited
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Right to Convene EGM

Any one or more members holding at the date of the deposit of
the requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the
Company carrying the right of voting at general meetings of the
Company shall at all times have the right, by written requisition to the
Board or the Company Secretary of the Company, to require an EGM to
be called by the Board for the transaction of any business specified in
such requisition; and such meeting shall be held within 2 months after
the deposit of such requisition.

The written requisition must state the purposes of the meeting, be
signed by the requisitionist(s) and deposited to the Board or the
company secretary of the Company at the Company’s principal
place of business at Room 1902, China Merchants Tower, Shun Tak
Centre, 168-200 Connaught Road Central, Hong Kong, and such may
consist of several documents in like form, each signed by one or more
requisitionists.

The request will be verified with the Company'’s branch share registrars
in Hong Kong and upon their confirmation that the request is proper
and in order, the company secretary of the Company will ask the Board
to convene an EGM by serving sufficient notice in accordance with the
statutory requirements to all the registered members. On the contrary,
if the request has been verified to not be in order, the shareholders
will be advised of this outcome and accordingly, an EGM will not be
convened as requested. If within 21 days from the date of the deposit of
the requisition the Board fails to proceed to convene such meeting, the
requisitionist(s), may convene a meeting in the same manner, and all
reasonable expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result of the
failure of the Board shall be reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the
Company.

The notice period to be given to all the registered members for
consideration of the proposal raised by the requisitionist(s) concerned
at the EGM varies according to the nature of the proposal, as follows:

- Atleast 21 clear days’ notice (and not less than 10 clear business
days) if the proposal constitutes a special resolution of the
Company in EGM,;

- Atleast 14 clear days’ notice (and not less than 10 clear business
days) for proposal of all other EGMs.
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2. Right to Put Enquiries to the Board
Shareholders have the right to put enquiries to the Board. All enquiries
shall be in writing and sent by post to the principal place of business of
the Company in Hong Kong for the attention of the company secretary.

3. Right to Put Forward Proposals at General
Meetings
There are no provisions allowing shareholders to propose new
resolutions at the general meetings under the Cayman Islands
Companies Law (2011 Revision). However, shareholders are requested
to follow Article 58 of the Company’s Articles of Association for
including a resolution at an EGM. The requirements and procedures
are set out above. Pursuant to Article 85 of the Company’s Articles
of Association, no person other than a director retiring at a meeting
shall, unless recommended by the directors for election, be eligible for
appointment as a director at any general meeting unless a notice signed
by a member (other than the person to be proposed) duly qualified to
attend and vote at the meeting for which such notice is given of his
intention to propose such person for election and also a notice signed
by the person to be proposed of his willingness to be elected shall have
been lodged at the head office or at the registration office provided
that the minimum length of the period, during which such notice(s) are
given, shall be at least 7 days and that (if the notices are submitted after
the despatch of the notice of the general meeting appointed for such
election) the period for lodging of such notice(s) shall commence on the
day after the despatch of the notice of the general meeting appointed
for such election and end no later than 7 days prior to the date of
such general meeting. The written notice must state that person’s
biographical details as required by Rule 13.51(2) of the Listing Rules. The
procedures for shareholders of the Company to propose a person for
election as director is posted on the Company’s website.

Investors Relations

The Company has maintained a continuing dialogue with the Company's
shareholders and investors through various channels, including, among
others, the Company’s interim reports, notices, announcements and the
company’s website at www.vastiud.com. The Company also holds press
conferences from time to time at which the Executive Directors and senior
management of the Group are available to answer questions regarding the
Group's business and performance.

Change in Constitutional Documents
For the year ended 31 December 2015, there had been no change to the
Company’s memorandum and articles of association.
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Director's Report

EEEHRE

The Board is pleased to present its report and the audited financial
statements of the Company and of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2015.

Principal Activities and Analysis of Operations
The Company is an investment holding company. The principal activities of
the Group are the provision of services in the planning, development and
operation of large-scale industrial towns in China.

Business Review and Performance

A fair review of the business of the Group and a discussion and analysis of
the Group's performance during the year and the material factors underlying
its results and financial position as required by schedule 5 to the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the Laws of Hong Kong) are included in
the Chairman’s Statement and Management Discussion and Analysis sections
from pages 6 to 13 and pages 14 to 49 of this report, respectively. The
future development of the Group'’s business is discussed in the Chairman’s
Statement from pages 6 to 13 of this report. The Chairman’s Statement and
the Management Discussion and Analysis section form part of this Directors’
Report.

Results

Results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2015 are set out in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income on
page 78.

Dividends

The Board has proposed to recommend the payment of a dividend of
HKDO.10 per share in cash to the shareholders of the Company for the year
ended 31 December 2015, representing a total payment of approximately
HKD163,764,100. The annual dividend is subject to approval of the
shareholders at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company
proposed to be held on 24 june 2016.

Upon shareholders’ approval to be obtained at the AGM, the annual dividend
will be payable on or around 13 July 2016 to the shareholders of the Company
whose names appear on the register of members of the Company at the
close of business on 29 June 2016.
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Closure of Register of Members and Record
Date

The register of members of the Company will be closed from 22 June 2016
to 24 June 2016, both days inclusive, during which period no transfer of
shares of the Company will be registered, for the purpose of ascertaining
shareholders’ entitlement to attend and vote at the AGM. In order to be
eligible to attend and vote at the AGM, all transfers of shares of the Company
accompanied by the relevant share certificates and appropriate transfer
forms must be lodged for registration with the Company’s branch share
registrar in Hong Kong, Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited,
at Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East,
Wan Chai, Hong Kong not later than 4:30 p.m. on 21 June 2016.

In order to qualify for the entitlement of the annual dividend, all transfers
of shares of the Company accompanied by the relevant share certificates
and appropriate transfer forms must be lodged for registration with the
Company's branch share registrar in Hong Kong, Computershare Hong Kong
Investor Services Limited, at Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre,
183 Queen'’s Road East, Wan Chai, Hong Kong not later than 4:30 p.m. on 29
June 2016.

Five Year Financial Summary
Five year financial summary of the Group is set out on page 196.

Tax Relief and Exemption
The Directors are not aware of any tax relief and exemption available to the
Shareholders by reason of their holding of the Company’s securities.

Property, Plant and Equipment
Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of the Group are
set out in note 18 to the consolidated financial statements.

Investment Properties
Details of the movements in investment properties of the Group are set out in
note 19 to the consolidated financial statements.

Borrowings and Capitalization of Interests
Details of borrowings are set out in note 32 to the consolidated financial
statements. Details of the Group's capitalized interest expenses and other
borrowing costs during the year under review are set out in note 12 to the
consolidated financial statements.
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Convertible Bonds and Notes

On 23 December 2015, the Company entered into the Subscription
Agreement with Goldmark Success Ltd. (the “Subscriber”) and other parties,
pursuant to which the Subscriber has conditionally agreed to subscribe
for, and the Company has conditionally agreed to issue, the three-year
term 6% convertible bonds in the principal amount of US$50,000,000 (the
“Convertible Bonds”) and the three-year term 12% notes in the principal
amount of US$50,000, 000 (the “Notes”)(the “Subscription”). The Convertible
Bonds and the Notes were secured by the pledge of equity interests in
certain subsidiaries of the Company and guaranteed by Mr. Wang Jianjun
(the executive Director and chairman of the Board) and Ms. Zhao Ying (the
non-executive Director and controlling shareholder of the Company).

Completion of the Subscription took place on 30 December 2015 and the
Convertible Bonds and Notes were issued to the Subscriber on the same
day. Holders of the Convertible Bonds have the right at any time during the
term of the Convertible Bonds requiring the Company to convert all or any
part of the principal amount outstanding under the Convertible Bonds into
Shares of the Company at the conversion price of HK$3.1 per Share, subject
to adjustments. Upon full conversion of the Convertible Bonds, a total of
125,000,000 Shares (the “Conversion Shares”) will be issued, representing
approximately 7.63% of the existing issued share capital of the Company and
approximately 7.09% of the issued share capital of the Company as enlarged
by the issue of the Conversion Shares. The Conversion Shares, upon issue,
shall rank at least pari passu in all respects with the Shares then in issue. As
at the latest practicable date prior to the issue of this report, no conversion
rights under the Convertible Bonds had been exercised.

The net proceeds from the issue of the Convertible Bonds and the Notes,
which amounted to approximately US$98.3 million, was received by the
Company and was intended to be used for the purpose of capital expenditure
(including those relating to merger and acquisition, but excluding repurchase
of shares and any other margin financing related activities) and general
working capital.

Details of the Group's Convertible Bonds and Notes are set out in note 33 to
the consolidated financial statements.

Share Capital

Movements in the share capital of the Company during the year under review
and as at 31 December 2015 are set out in note 34 to the consolidated
financial statements.

Share Premium and Reserves

Movements in the share premium and reserves of the Group and the
Company during the year under review are set out on pages 81 to 82 in
the consolidated statement of changes in equity and in note 45 to the
consolidated financial statements.

Distributable Reserves
The Company’s total distributable reserves as at 31 December 2015
amounted to RMB792,791,000.

AERESEREE

201512 231 A2 R]EGoldmark Success
Ld. ([REA D) REMITHF I RERZ
Bt REBAEBKEGRERBEMALARER
BKHERBET=ZFHFMNERN XA
50,000,0003 JT K Pl 88 A E 5 ([ ATERES ) &
= FHFF R B12% + 7% 58 550,000,0003 5T
WER(EED(REFE]) - AJEBRELRE
BEREAQRNE THEB AR RER BT A TE
BEE(RITESTREFSEE) MiEEZ T GE
WITEEFAD AHERAER )R -

REZIEN2015F12A308% ERK - REIBER
ARBARTIBRESLER - ATERESRS
BAGENABIRESFHRATRERZFAR
FIRB R E BRI 1EB T (A FHE) i§m i
BESFETH2BREMSBOREESSRER
RERA - REBERAIERERK - &1/
125,000,000 B fn ([ 2R An 1) % T PA 1T
HEERARNRFREG B HITRALT.63%MARNE
EEITH A R B BATARAAI7.09% © 2
BRAD TR B TIR A O P 7 T B8 B 2 B AT AR
ELZFEREHMA - RARE TIEANRZER
TR SRR EIRE S IR T AR E O T
1

AR BB UERETT A EBIE R LR RS R0A
FREHRBIAERTT  UREZEMIRIEF
HAFEAH(BRAMEERE - BTE7
BRI MEMEMRESBRERRLTY) k-

AEEAERESESIEFBEHANGA M HHE
BiEE33 -

[}
A B BB ERER2015F12 B31H AL A
BENH I RNER A IS HRERMGE34

B 40 a8 I 1t 44

S8 A 2 ) A P9 OB 3 1 T B
SEH BRI FE SQAG A MR RDE b
AT RN RS -

At R
R2015F 12 A3MB AR A A H Y RFEEREAA
R#792,791,0007T °

Annual Report 2015 £ 3§

65




66

Director's Report

EEEHRS

Contingent Liabilities

The Group provided guarantees to banks and non-financial institutions which
granted mortgage loans to certain purchasers of the Group's properties.
As at 31 December 2015, such mortgage loan guarantees amounted to
RMB786.1 million compared to RMB583.7 million as at 31 December 2014.
Such guarantees would be released upon the earlier of: (i) the transfer of
the relevant building ownership certificates to the purchasers; or (i) the
satisfaction of obligations under the mortgage loans by the purchasers.

The Group also provided a guarantee of RMB227.0 million to a bank in respect
of a banking facility granted to Langfang Kaihong Furniture Mart Company
Limited (B35 8l AR /& 5B R A R), an associate indirectly owned by the
Company as to 30% in the year ended 31 December 2014. Such guarantee
was released on 1 December 2015 and no other such guarantee was
recorded as at 31 December 2015.

Pledge of Assets

Certain assets of the Group have been pledged to the banks, trust fund
companies and non-financial institutions to secure certain loans and banking
facilities granted to the Group. For details, please refer to note 32 to the
consolidated financial statements in this report.

The Convertible Bonds and the Notes are jointly guaranteed by the Ultimate
Controlling Shareholders and secured by the pledge of entire equity interest
of Shing Cheong Holdings, China Vast International, King Billion and Sheng Shi
International.

significant Investments, Acquisitions and
Disposals

The Group has disposed of its entire equity interest in a subsidiary to an
independent third party for a consideration of RMB30,480,000 during the
Period. The Group recognised a gain of RMB34,567,000 in the profit or loss
for the year ended 31 December 2015. This transaction did not constitute a
discloseable transaction of the Company pursuant to Chapter 14 of the Listing
Rules as none of the applicable percentage ratios reached 5% or more at the
time of the entering into of such disposal agreement.

Save as disclosed above, the Group did not make any material acquisition
or disposal of subsidiaries and associated companies and significant
investments during the year ended 31 December 2015.

Major Suppliers and Customers

During the year ended 31 December 2015, the percentages of purchases
from the Group’s largest supplier and the five largest suppliers were 28.9%
and 66.5%, respectively. The percentages of sales attributable to the Group’s
largest customer and the five largest customers were 26.3% and 43.5%,
respectively.

As far as the Directors are aware, none of the Directors, their close associates,
nor the substantial shareholders had any interest in the five largest customers
and suppliers of the Group.
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Donations
Charitable donations made by the Group during the year amounted to
RMB600,000 (2014: RMB997,000).

Remuneration Policy and Retirement Benefits
of the Group

As at 31 December 2015, the Group had a total of 667 employees (31
December 2014: 562 employees). The Group provides employees with
competitive remuneration and benefits, and the remuneration policy will be
reviewed on a regular basis based on the performance and contribution of
the employees and the industry remuneration level. In addition, the Group
also provides various training courses to enhance the employees” skills and
capabilities in all aspects.

Details of the Group's the retirement benefit plans are set out in note 36 to
the consolidated financial statements.

Share Option Scheme

The Company adopted a share option scheme (the “Scheme”) pursuant to
a resolution passed on 21 July 2015 which will be valid for 10 years from the
adoption date for the primary purpose of providing incentives to Directors
and eligible employees as incentives or rewards for their contribution or
potential contribution to the development and the growth of the Group.

Under the Scheme, the Company may grant to eligible employees including
Directors, employees, consultants, business partners or advisers, to
subscribe for shares in the Company. Under the rules of the Scheme, the
Board has discretion to set a minimum period for which a share option has
to be held before it can be exercised. Such discretion allows the Board to
provide incentives to grantees to remain employed with the Group during
the minimum period and thereby enabling the Group to benefit from the
continued services of such grantees during such period. This discretion,
coupled with the power of the Board to impose any performance target as it
considers appropriate before any share option can be exercised, enables the
Group to incentivise the grantees. Subject to the Listing Rules, the Board also
has discretion in determining the subscription price in respect of any share
option.

The total number of Shares that may fall to be allotted and issued under the
Scheme after the resolution regarding the adoption of the Scheme is passed
on 21 July 2015 were 163,764,100 shares, representing 10% of the total
number of shares in issue.

At 28 July 2015, 90,750,000 share options to subscribe for up to a total of
90,750,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each of the Company were granted to
certain individuals under the Scheme.

At 31 December 2015, the number of shares in respect of which options
remained outstanding under the Scheme was 82,350,000.
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The following share options were outstanding under the Scheme during the
year:

VAT Bt B A AR R A At 8 T MR TTHE

Price of Company's
Number of share options shares
RO HEHA ARARGBHRE
Date of Exercise Exercise
At1 At 31 grant of priceof  period of
January Granted Lapsed  December share share share
Name or category 2015 during during 2015 options options option At grant At exercise
of participant #2015%  theyear  theyear 20155  ROEE  RAEE  ROBE date date
SmEHEERER 1818 RERRE REFRXX 128318 R AH i IS RREAE  ROEAH
HKS HKS HKS
BT BT BT
Executive directors
HiTES
Yang Yun - 4,500,000 - 4,500,000  28-Jul-2015 3.02 Note 1 2.80 N/A
B 20158 i3l NER
7H288
Wang Yagang - 4,500,000 - 4,500,000  28-Jul-2015 302 Note 1 2.80 N/A
B 20155 il ~Em
7H28H
Huang Peikun - 4,500,000 - 4,500,000  28-Jul-2015 302 Note 1 2.80 N/A
HiEH 20155 T TR
7R288
- 13,500,000 - 13,500,000
Other employees and - 77,250,000 (8,400,000  68,3850,000  28-Jul-2015 302 Note 1 2.80 N/A
those who have 20155F (i TEA
contributed or may 7H288
contribute to the Group
HitEEREERTHHEFEE
EHERHAL

- 90,750,000 (8,400,000 82,350,000

Note 1: One-third of which are exercisable during the periods from 28 July 2016 to 31
July 2019, from 28 July 2017 to 31 July 2019 and from 28 July 2018 to 31 July
2019, respectively.

Details of the Group's Share Option Scheme are set out in note 40 to the
consolidated financial statements.
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Purchase, Sale or Redemption of the
Company'’s Listed Securities

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries had purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the period.

Directors
The directors of the Company during the year ended 31 December 2015 and
up to the date of this report were:

Directors Position
Wang Jianjun Executive Director, Chairman of

(spouse of Ms. Zhao Ying) the Board and President of the Company
Yang Yun Executive Director and Vice President
Wang Yagang Executive Director and Vice President
Huang Peikun Executive Director and Chief Financial Officer
Zhao Ying Non-Executive Director

(spouse of Mr. Wang Jianjun)
Zhang Xiaomei Independent Non-executive Director
Wei Yu Independent Non-executive Director

wong Wing Kuen, Albert Independent Non-executive Director

Brief biographical details of the Directors and senior management are set out
on pages 50 to 53. Upon specific enquiry by the Company, there has been no
change in the information of the Directors required to be disclosed pursuant
to Rule 13.51B of the Listing Rules since the Company's last published annual
report.

All Directors are appointed for a specific term of three years which may be
extended as each and the Company may agree, subject to retirement by
rotation and re-election at the annual general meeting (“AGM") in accordance
with the articles of association of the Company. Article 84 of the articles of
association of the Company provides that at each AGM, one-third of the
Directors for the time being (or if their number is not a multiple of three, the
number nearest to one-third) shall retire from office by rotation, provided that
every Director (including those appointed for a specific term) shall be subject
to retirement by rotation at least once every three years.

Directors’ Service Contracts

None of the Directors who are proposed for re-election at the forthcoming
AGM has a service contract with any member of the Group which is
not determinable by the Group within one year without the payment of
compensation other than statutory compensation.

Directors’ Interests in Significant Contracts
Save as disclosed in note 44 to the consolidated financial statements, no
contract of significance in relation to the Group’s business to which the
Company, any of its subsidiaries or its fellow subsidiaries was a party and in
which any Director of the Company had a material interest, whether directly
or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the financial year or at any time during
the financial year under review.
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Directors’ Rights to Purchase Shares or
Debentures

Save as disclosed in this report, at no time during the year under review,
was the Company or any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangement that
would enable the Directors of the Company to acquire benefits by means of
acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body
corporate, and none of the Directors or any of their spouses or children
under the age of 18, were granted any right to subscribe for the equity or
debt securities of the Company or any other body corporate or had exercised
any such right.

Disclosure of Interests

Directors

As at 31 December 2015, the interest or short positions of the directors or
the chief executive of the Company in the Shares or underlying shares and
debentures of the Company and its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO")) as
recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company pursuant to
Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code contained in Appendix 10 to the
Listing Rules, were as follows:

Long positions in the ordinary Shares:

Name of Director Nature of interest

EEREROIESFHNER

BAREREES AR HEEMMBR RN
Ol BA 4 Z R R R LR ST 2 B - AR
AIERAHERB AR AR EMEAB BN
RESFMEE - MEEFRRSEMAEEH18
BRA T F BRI T (AT ] BB A R B S AE
EAE AN B RSB SAE TS E R - R TR
BITRERZE RN -

B=

20155128318 » AARIEFLREEZTHAE
RARB R EREER(EE R E R RARED
(TR R HEED ) EXVER) 8 B0 RARRIAX D
REFTHEERER S PG GIIEI2GER
AR EMERMATRCE - RE LR RN
THREIRAEST RIZE BTG AN A B R i 22 P )
HIRBIAT

REBARAITA -
Approximate

percentage of
shareholding

Number of
securities held

IhRRRE
EEpE EEME &S HE BHAED
Ms. Zhao Ying (Note 1) Interest in a controlled corporation 1,156,083,000 70.59%
rEREA T (FIEET) R EE R
Mr. Wang Jianjun (Note 2) Interest of spouse 1,156,083,000 70.59%
TEEEEMTE2) [
Mr. Huang Peikun Beneficial owner 20,000 00.00%

EIEEL BmlEAA

Notes:

(1) Ms. Zhao Ying is the sole shareholder of Profit East Limited and is deemed to be
interested in the Shares held by Profit East Limited.

(20 Mr. Wang Jianjun, the spouse of Ms. Zhao Ying, is deemed to be interested in all
the Shares in which Ms. Zhao Ying is interested.

Saved as disclosed above and in the sub-section headed "Share Option
Scheme" above, so far as the Directors are aware, none of the Directors or
chief executives had registered an interest or short position in any Share or
underlying Shares of the Company that was required to be recorded pursuant
t0 Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified.
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Substantial Shareholders

As at 31 December 2015, the interests of relevant persons (other than a
Director or chief executive of the Company) who had interests or short
positions in the Shares or the underlying shares, as recorded in the register

FERR

M2015612A318 - HEA L (KRARESHKE
ZITHABBRIN R D SABER DR EFRE
FBH N EEEDIFEIB6IEBFE R E L MATE 8k

required to be kept under Section 336 of SFO, were as follows: HEmSOAB AT ¢
Long positions in the ordinary Shares: AT BREITFA -
Approximate
Number of percentage of
Name of shareholder Nature of interest securities held shareholding
1R AR AE
RREE EREE RS e G ER:
Profit East Limited Beneficial Owner 1,156,083,000 70.59%
FERBRAA BEEAA
CCB International (Holdings) Limited Interest in a controlled corporation
(Notes 1 & 2) 174,200,000 10.89%
EIREIRR () AR AR (71 52) SPGB R
CCB Financial Holdings Limited (Notes 1 & 2) Interest in a controlled corporation 174,200,000 10.89%
BiTemiEiRaRAa (M1 &%2) ZiEHEE R
CCB International Group Holdings Limited Interest in a controlled corporation
(Notes 1 & 2) 174,200,000 10.89%
EITER EEIERAR AR (M1 5%2) RiEHEE R
China Construction Bank Corporation Interest in a controlled corporation
(Notes 1 & 2) 98,095,000 5.99%
PR RI TR AR A R (K521 %2) ZIEHEE
Central Huijin Investment Ltd. (Notes 1 & 2) Interest in a controlled corporation 98,095,000 5.99%
PRESREFRETAT(MEF1%2) RiEHEE kR
Chance Talent Management Limited Beneficial Owner
(Notes 1 & 2) 125,000,000 7.81%
Chance Talent Management Limited EmEEA
(MI5E152)
CCBI Investments Limited (Note 2) Interest in a controlled corporation 125,000,000 7.81%
BIRERIEEFR AR (MEE2) ZiEHEE R
China Orient Asset Management Corporation  Interest in a controlled corporation
(Note 3) 125,000,000 7.81%

o B ER 7 A A E IR AR E (H15E3)

S AE R
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Notes:

(1) CCB International Capital Limited, being one of the international underwriters
of the Global Offering, is interested in 49,200,000 Shares through the over-
allotment option granted by the Company to the international underwriters of
the Global Offering. CCB International Capital Limited is directly wholly-owned by
CCB International (Holdings) Limited which is, in turn, directly wholly-owned by
CCB Financial Holdings Limited. CCB Financial Holdings Limited is directly wholly-
owned by CCB International Group Holdings Limited which is, in turn, directly
wholly-owned by China Construction Bank Corporation. China Construction
Bank Corporation is owned as to 57.26% by Central Huijin Investment Ltd. and is
controlled by Central Huijin Investment Ltd. Therefore, each of CCB International
(Holdings) Limited, CCB Financial Holdings Limited, CCB International Group
Holdings Limited, China Construction Bank Corporation and Central Huijin
Investment Ltd is deemed to be interested in the 49,200,000 Shares in which CCB
International Capital Limited was interested.

(2)  Chance Talent Management Limited is directly wholly-owned by CCBI Investments
Limited which is, in turn, directly wholly-owned by CCB International (Holdings)
Limited; therefore, each of CCBI Investments Limited, CCB International (Holdings)
Limited, CCB Financial Holdings Limited, CCB International Group Holdings
Limited, China Construction Bank Corporation and Central Huijin Investment Ltd
is also deemed to be interested in the 125,000,000 Shares held by Chance Talent
Management Limited.

(3)  China Orient Asset Management Corporation is the ultimate controlling
shareholder of Goldmark Success Ltd., the subscriber of the Convertible Bonds
issued by the Company on 30 December 2015, pursuant to which a maximum
number of 125,000,000 Shares may fall to be allotted and issued upon exercise
of the conversion rights in full; therefore, China Orient Asset Management
Corporation is deemed to be interested in the 125,000,000 Shares in which
Goldmark Success Ltd. is interested.

Saved as disclosed above, so far as the Directors are aware, no other persons
had registered an interest or short position in any Shares or underlying shares
of the Company that was required to be recorded pursuant to Section 352 of
the SFO, or as otherwise notified.

Competing Interests

During the year ended 31 December 2015, none of the Directors is considered
to have an interest in any business which competes or is likely to compete,
either directly or indirectly, with the businesses of the Group.

Ms. Zhao Ying and Profit East Limited, the controlling shareholders of the
Company (the “Controlling Shareholders”), have entered into a deed of non-
competition in favour of the Company on 6 August 2014 (the “"Deed of Non-
competition”). Details of the Deed of Non-Competition have been set out in
the prospectus of the Company dated 13 August 2014. There has been no
change to the terms of the Deed of Non-competition for the year ended 31
December 2015.
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During the reporting period, no written notice of any New Opportunity
(as defined in the Deed of Non-competition) had been received by the
Ccompany. The Company has received confirmations on compliance with
their undertakings under the Deed of Non-Competition from the Controlling
Shareholders for the year ended 31 December 2015 (the “Confirmation”).
Upon receiving the Confirmation, the independent non-executive Directors
of the Company have reviewed the same as part of the annual review
process. In view of the above, the independent non-executive Directors have
confirmed that, as far as they can ascertain, there is no breach by any of the
Controlling Shareholders of the non-competition undertakings in the Deed of
Non-competition given by them.

Loan Agreements with Covenants relating

to Specific Performance of the Controlling

Shareholders

(i On2 April 2014, we entered into a facility agreement with Fine Process
Limited, an independent third party and a wholly-owned subsidiary of
ICBC International Investment Management Limited, pursuant to which
a loan facility of up to US$100.0 million was granted to the Company.
The term of this loan is two years from the date on which such loan is
drawn down and the effective interest rate is 15.76% per annum after
taking into consideration initial transaction costs of approximately
RMB13.1 million. This facility agreement contains specific performance
obligations on the controlling shareholders of the Company.

Under the facility agreement, Ms. Zhao Ying must maintain control
over Profit East Limited, the Controlling Shareholder of the Company;
otherwise, it will constitute an event of default under the facility
agreement.

(i) Pursuant to the terms of the Convertible Bonds and the Notes issued
by the Company on 30 December 2015, Ms. Zhao Ying and Profit East
Limited, being the Controlling Shareholders of the Company, have
undertaken to, so long as any part of the Convertible Bonds or the
Notes is outstanding, maintain an aggregate beneficial ownership
(directly or indirectly) of not less than 51% in the issued share capital
of the Company except as a result of the conversion of the Convertible
Bonds. A breach of such covenant may constitute an event of default
pursuant to the terms of the Convertible Bonds and the Notes.

The above requirements as to the maintenance of control result in the
disclosure obligation under Rule 13.18 of the Listing Rules.
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Connected Transactions and Related Party
Transactions

For the year ended 31 December 2015, there was no connected transaction
of the Group that need to be disclosed pursuant to Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules. Details of the related party transactions undertaken by the Group in the
normal course of business are set out in Note 44 to the consolidated financial
statements. None of these related party transactions constitute connected
transactions or continuing connected transactions under Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules.

Management Contracts

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the whole
or any substantial part of the business of the Company were entered into or
existed during the Period.

Pre-Emptive Rights

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the articles of association
of the Company or the laws of Cayman Islands, the jurisdiction in which the
Company was incorporated, and there is no restriction against such rights
which would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to
existing shareholders.

Permitted Indemnity Provision

The Articles of Association provide that the Directors are entitled to be
indemnified and secured harmless out of the assets and profits of the
Company from and against all actions, costs, charges, losses, damages and
expenses which they shall or may incur or sustain in or about the execution
of their duty in their respective offices, provided that this indemnity shall not
extend to any matter in respect of any fraud or dishonesty which may attach
to such Director. The Company has purchased and maintained Directors’
liability insurance during the year under review, which provides appropriate
coverage for the Directors.

Compliance with Laws and Regulations

The Company is incorporated in the Cayman Islands with its shares listed
on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. The
Group's subsidiaries are incorporated in the British Virgin Islands, Hong Kong
and China. The Group’s operations are mainly carried out by the Group’s
subsidiaries in China while the Group also has a corporate and administrative
office in Hong Kong. Our establishments and operations accordingly shall
comply with relevant laws and regulations in the Cayman Islands, the British
Virgin Islands, China and Hong Kong. During the year under review, the
Company was not aware of any non-compliance with any relevant laws and
regulations that had a significant impact on the Group.

R R AR TR E R B R A ) China VAST Industrial Urban Development Company Limited
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Corporate Governance Practices
The Company is committed to the principles of corporate governance and
corporate responsibility consistent with prudent management. The Board has
adopted the Corporate Governance Code as set out in Appendix 14 to the
Listing Rules and the Model Code as the guidelines for the Directors’ dealings
in the securities of the Company since the Listing Date.

Sufficient Public Float

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and within
the knowledge of the Directors, as at the date of this report, the Company
has maintained a sufficient public float of not less than 25% of the Company’s
issued shares as required under the Listing Rules.

Use of Proceeds from the Global Offering

The net proceeds from the issue of new shares of the Company in its global
offering in August 2014 (after deducting the underwriting fees and related
expenses, and without taking into account the exercise of over-allotment
option) amounted to approximately HKD927.1 million. Up to 31 December
2015, the Group has used part of the net proceeds of approximately
HKD811.3 million in accordance with the proposed usage as set out in the
announcement of the Company dated 22 August 2014 and details can be
referred to the prospectus of the Company dated 13 August 2014.

Auditors

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2015
have been audited by Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu, who will retire and, being
eligible, offer themselves for reappointment, at the forthcoming AGM.

On behalf of the Board

Wang Jianjun
Chairman

23 March 2016, Hong Kong
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INDEPENDENT RUDITOR'S REPORT
18 M A% B

Deloitte.
=2

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
CHINA VAST INDUSTRIAL URBAN DEVELOPMENT COMPANY LIMITED
(incorporated in the Cayman Island with limited liability)

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of
China VAST Industrial Urban Development Company Limited (the “’Company”)
and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the "“Group”) set out on pages
78 t0 196, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as
at 31 December 2015, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes in equity
and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and a
summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Directors’ Responsibility for the Consolidated
Financial Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance
with International Financial Reporting Standards and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal
control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’'s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial
statements based on our audit and to report our opinion solely to you, as
a body, in accordance with our agreed terms of engagement, and for no
other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability
to any other person for the contents of this report. We conducted our audit
in accordance with International Standards on Auditing. Those standards
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated
financial statements are free from material misstatement.
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Auditor’'s Responsibility (continued)

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about
the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements.
The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments,
the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in order
to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s
internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the financial position of the Group as at 31 December 2015, and of its
financial performance and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with International Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly
prepared in accordance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

23 March 2016
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF

PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

meBmkHMEEKER

For the year ended 31 December 2015 & 220154 12 H31H 1 F/Z

Year ended 31 December

HZE1283181LEE
2015 2014
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
bz AR¥ T ANRETTT
Revenue & 8 1,423,706 2,391,205
Cost of sales and services HE KRB (812,723) (1,263,113)
Gross profit EF 610,983 1,128,092
Other income EugA 10 142,484 33,476
Other expenses HEabF 10 (1,989) (32,789)
Other gains and losses H e K g8 1 34,573 25,298
Selling and marketing expenses HE RS TTIEMY (55,248) (41,616)
Administrative expenses THRAX (107,936) (82,39¢)
Finance costs RLE A 12 (76,069) (111,575)
Gain on fair value change of REMENTE
investment properties gk olle 19 115,529 17,600
Share of profits (losses) of associates B N B E R (B18) 22 18,637 (4,443)
Profit before tax M BT A 13 680,964 931,647
Income tax expense RSB 15 (167,383) (231,049)
Profit and total comprehensive income FRAQNRHEE ARG EF X
attributable to owners of HERE BT
the Company for the year 513,581 700,598
Earnings per share =l
Basic (RMB) —ER(ARE) 17 0.31 0.50
Diluted (RMB) —BE(ARE) 0.31 N/A
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

e PRI R

AS at 31 December 2015 )R2015F 12931 H

At 31 December

HZE12A318LL
2015 2014
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
(= ARETR ARETT
Non-current assets EMENEE
Property, plant and equipment W - B MR 18 30,715 29,865
Investment properties wEYE 19 942,800 747,600
Prepaid lease payments AT ERIE 20 2,053 2,128
Interests in associates REEE R R A= 22 147,427 89,590
Available-for-sale investment At ERE 23 3,300 -
Trade receivables B Z RWIE 27 57,116 30,472
Deferred tax assets BEFIEAE 24 34,548 26,086
1,217,959 925,741
Current assets MENEE
Land development for sale FETHFAZEIER 25 1,753,260 1,312,463
Properties under development for sale HERRPYE 26 1,382,620 2,409,626
Completed properties for sale FEBBRITYE 1,400,628 679,147
Prepaid lease payments ENEERIE 20 75 75
Trade receivables B ZRWIE 27 478,266 368,992
Prepayments and other receivables TR R K E At fE U RIE 28 464,865 74,619
Amounts due from related parties FEUL BB 5 R0R 44(a) 3,606 -
Income tax recoverable AT Bl TS 42,989 -
Restricted bank deposits SR HIRITER 29 506,477 367,002
Bank balances and cash IRITHEB LIRS 29 1,058,518 802,596
7,091,304 6,014,520
Total assets BERE 8,309,263 6,940,261
Current liabilities VoEN=N
Trade and other payables B REMEMNFIE 30 963,520 1,032,077
Bills payable FERT =K 31 15,000 -
Advance from customers for properties BRIEHEMENTERAR
developed for sale 96,616 248,877
Amount due to a related party FESF— % BaEsE 5 5O 44(a) 3,104 3,104
Current tax liabilities RBHBERE 340,187 200,733
Bank and other borrowings RITREAMER 32 1,854,559 1,815,906
3,272,986 3,300,697
Net current assets MBEEFE 3,818,318 2,713,823
Total assets less current liabilities BELERREAE 5,036,277 3,639,564
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION (CONTINUED)
e M AR R (&)

AS at 31 December 2015 )R2015F 12931 H

At 31 December

BZE12A31AL
2015 2014
Notes RMB’'000 RMB'000
IS AR¥T T ARETF T
Non-current liabilities ERBEE
Bank and other borrowings RITREMER 32 1,498,327 1,093,813
Convertible Bonds and Notes AeERES REE 33 579.714 -
Derivative PTHEMBEIA 33 62,643 -
Deferred tax liabilities R B & 24 74,270 44,943
2,214,954 1,138,756
Net assets BEFE 2,821,323 2,500,808
Capital and reserves BEA M e
Share capital [[E&N 34 13,031 13,031
Reserves E 35 2,808,292 2,487,777
Equity attributable to owners of RATHEE AR E
the Company 2,821,323 2,500,808

BEESTN20165E3 A23 B #EE I FRE T FH R
F78EBF19BMGAMIEHRE  YHUTE
ERREZEHE

The consolidated financial statements on pages 78 to 196 were approved and
authorised for issue by the board of directors on 23 March 2016 and signed
on its behalf by:

Director % Director %
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
mERERBER

For the year ended 31 December 2015 & Z2015F 12531 H 1 F/Z

Attributable to owners of the Company

BERARMEE
Share Share Merger Capital ~ Statutory Shareoption  Retained
capital  premium reserve reserve reserve reserve profits Total
RA  BRERE  AHRE  ERDNE BHLR REHERE KOEAE @it
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETR  ARETR AR%TR ARETR ARMTR ARETR ARETR ARETR
(note34)  (note35)  (note35  (note35)  (note 35)
(W=34)  (W&35) (W35 (W35 (M35
At 1 January 2014 01451818 - - 1 Q76 137,183 SR <1/ 1 /)
Issue of new shares on the date  FEEMACL RE{TRIFR

of incorporation (note a) (Ma) - - - - - - - -
Isstie of new shares to ARSI (D)

the public (note b) 2907 898,466 - - - - - 901,373
Transaction costs attributable to /T L EREIEL T AR

issue of new ordinary shares - (64,199) - - - - - (64,199)
Capitalization of RAGEE A (i)

share premium (note ¢) 10,124 (10,124) - - - - - -
Capitalization of Shareholder's — REEZEA(Mizc)

Loan (note ¢) - 234216 - - - - - 23216
Profitand total comprehensive  EREFIR 2B ELE

income for the year - - - - - - 700,598 700,598
Appropriations to statutory reserve  B{EEFBEATE - - - - 62,458 - (62,458) -
Waiver of debt owed to SRYTRENER(NE)

Mr. Wang Jianjun (note d) - - - 41,001 - - - 4,00
Tax charge onthe waiver hote )~ R ERFIBI M (Ffid) - - - (10.273) - - - (10.273)
At 31 December 2014 20145125318 13031 105835 1 B 199641 - 100667 2500808
Profit and total comprehensive FREFR2ENEEE

income for the year - - - - - - 513,581 513,581
Appropriations to statutory reserve  E{EEFBBAE - - - - 57,790 - (57,790) -
Dividend distribution AERF = (197,817) - - - - - (197,817)
Recognition of equity-settled TRigsE S MR

share-based payments - - - - - 4,751 - 4,751
At 31 December 2015 2015%12531A 13,031 860,542 48 28,062 257,431 4751 1,657,458 2,821,323
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY (CONTINUED)
REERSER(E)

For the year ended 31 December 2015 & F20154F 12 531 H 1 F /&

Notes:
(@) Details of which are set out in note 34(ii).

(b)  The Company issued a total number of 365,641,000 new shares through its initial
public offering and partial exercising of over-allotment option during 2014, details
of which are set out in note 34(v) and (vi).

(c)  Details of which are set out in note 34(iv).

(d)  During the year ended 31 December 2014, Mr. Wang Jianjun, one of the ultimate
controlling shareholders of China VAST Industrial Urban Development Company
Limited (the “"Company”), agreed to waive an amount of RMB41,091,000 payable
to him by the Company and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) which was accounted for
as a deemed contribution to the Group by the Ultimate Controlling Shareholders
(see note 1 for definition). This deemed contribution is subject to a tax charge of
approximately RMB10,273,000.

hE=SE X M EERE AR A 7 China VAST Industrial Urban Development Company Limited
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CONSOLIDATED STHATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
ll_\éiﬁ$ﬁ§§

For the year ended 31 December 2015 & Z2015F 12531 H 1 F/Z

Year ended 31 December

HZE1283181LEE
2015 2014
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥F ANRETTT
OPERATING ACTIVITIES KESEE
Profit before tax BT AT 680,964 931,647
Adjustments for: BAT B IEML AL -
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment W BEMEETE 3,329 3,844
Prepaid lease payments released to EREIERMBEMNAENE
profit or loss 75 75
Changes in fair value of investment properties KEMELNTFER (115,529) (17,600)
Share of (profits) losses of associates PRGBS A B E () (18,637) 4,443
Loss on dissolution of an associate R B — B i N RS 1R - 236
Exchange gains and losses B 3 W K 518 (17,335) (814)
Gain on disposal of property, HEWE  BE
plant and equipment Bl e (499) (508)
Interest income FBIA (12,499) (27,207)
Finance costs RbE P 76,069 111,575
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary BE—HTF AR (34,567) -
Gain of acquisition of the remaining g oG]
equity interest in the joint venture TR EARR A 89 W - (1,515)
Share-based payment expenses RO AHER 4,751 -
Operating cash flows before movements EEASFHINELERSNE
in working capital 566,122 1,004,176
Increase in land development for sale FELHFHZIEE N (330,604) (212,389)
Decrease in properties under development for sales ﬁ% SEPER D 1,133,371 493,805
Increase in completed properties for sale FEB® YL (721,481) (275,291)
Increase in trade receivables B 5 FEW R IEE AN (135,918) (121,886)
(Increase) decrease in prepayments TE(F 308 & H A E UG TR FIE
and other receivables ($&Hn)m (358,342) 50,731
Decrease in refundable deposits T bR R ERE € R
on land development activities (4,500) (67,899)
Decrease in trade and other payables B 5 & Bt FOEm > (216,524) (867,194)
Increase in bills payables FERT IR AL AN 15,000 -
Decrease in amounts due to related parties JE U BRES 5 SRR = (858)
Cash (used in) generated from operations LEEENIR S (FTR) TS (52,876) 3,195
Income tax and land appreciation tax paid AT A R L AR (50,053) (113,711)
Net cash used in operating activities KRB TR SR 5 (102,929) (110,516)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (CONTINUED)
GERERERE)

For the year ended 31 December 2015 & Z2015F 12531 H 1 F/Z

Year ended 31 December

HZE1283181LEE
2015 2014
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥BTT ARETTT
INVESTING ACTIVITIES BEEH
Interest income received EUFLE A 12,499 27,207
Payments for acquisition of property, BEME - BE
plant and equipment &SRR eE (4,572) (3,404)
Payment for acquisition of investment BB EMESHHRIE
properties (79,464) (127,882)
Loan receivables made LB = (20,000)
Repayment of loan receivables EERWER 20,000 68,568
Payments for investment in associates MEEE N AR E (39,200) -
Payments for acquisition of available-for-sale g a it B ERE
investment (3,300) -
Proceeds from dissolution of an associate R BR—FEI B & A R PTG SR8 - 24,764
Proceeds from disposal of property, BEME - BEREE
plant and equipment FriS 38 892 925
Cash inflow on disposal of a subsidiary RATHRE R E
in prior period WEARRER = 10,000
Net cash outflow on acquisition of the YA &R RIFIERRIER
remaining equity interest in the joint venture WERA = (5,516)
Restricted bank deposits withdrawn B HRENHY PR Il R T K 240,845 649,744
Restricted bank deposits placed EFARZREIRITFR (380,320) (349,736)
Repayment of advance to [EAE: T R X
related parties = 9,097
Advance to related parties m) RAHE 5 B K (3,606) (1,304)
Net cash (used in) from investing activities REEE (TR ) TSR &R (236,226) 282,463

B E R E E TR E B R A 7] China VAST Industrial Urban Development Company Limited



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (CONTINUED)

HERERERE)

For the year ended 31 December 2015 & Z2015F 12531 H 1 F/Z

Year ended 31 December

HZE1283181LEE
2015 2014
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET ANRETT
FINANCING ACTIVITIES AEEE
New bank borrowings raised e ARITIER 1,131,373 1,073,689
New other loans raised g AH M ER 780,475 1,204,975
Repayment of bank borrowings IRITIEFUER (677,500) (2,049,407)
Repayment of other loans HEsuER (805,662) (512,082)
Repayment of advance from related parties IR R T IR AL E R = (40,997)
Advance from related parties g REN T TR A B R = 40
Proceed from initial public offering EWNNGESIE PN = 901,373
Payment on transaction costs attributable ST B
to issue of new ordinary shares R A = (64,199)
Interest paid B E (299,952) (304,143)
Dividend paid EATARFI (197,817) -
Issuing Convertible Bonds and Notes BITAIBIRES R EE 637,520 -
Issuance costs of Convertible Bonds BITAERESNER 724 -
Net cash from financing activities BEEBMAIREFE 569,161 209,249
NET INCREASE IN CASH AND ReRBEEEYFIEME
CASH EQUIVALENTS 230,006 381,196
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS FUNRERBLEEY
AT BEGINNING OF YEAR 802,596 420,586
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes SNETE RSB 25,916 814
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS EXREAE
AT END OF YEAR RBESEEY
represented by bank balances and cash BRTERRRS 1,058,518 802,596
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General Information

The Company was incorporated and registered as an exempted
company with limited liability in the Cayman Islands under the
Companies Law of the Cayman Islands on 13 February 2014. The shares
of the Company have been listed on the Main Board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) with effect from
25 August 2014. The addresses of the registered office and principal
place of business of the Company are stated in Cricket Square, Hutchins
Drive, PO Box 2681, Grand Cayman KY1-1111, Cayman lIslands. The
principal activity of the Company is investment holding. Its subsidiaries
are primarily engaged in the land development, property development
and property leasing.

The ultimate holding company and immediate holding company of the
Company is Profit East Limited (“Profit East”), a company which was
incorporated in the British Virgin Islands (the “BVI”) and is ultimately
controlled by Ms. Zhao Ying. Ms. Zhao Ying together with her husband,
Mr. Wang Jianjun, are collectively referred to as the Ultimate Controlling
Shareholders of the Company.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in RMB which is
also the functional currency of the Company and its subsidiaries, and
all values are rounded to the nearest thousand (‘000) unless otherwise
indicated.
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Basis of Presentation

The Reorganization

Prior to the group reorganization (the “Reorganization”), all the land
development, property development and property leasing business
operations of the Group were carried out by the companies either
controlled by King Billion Corporation (“King Billion”) or Sheng Shi
International (HK) Development Limited (“Sheng Shi International”), both
of which were wholly owned by Shing Cheong Holdings Limited (“Shing
Cheong Holdings"), a company incorporated in the BVI which was
wholly owned by Profit East and is ultimately controlled by Ms. Zhao
Ying. On 25 June 2013, the entire issued share capital of King Billion and
Sheng Shi International were transferred to China Vast International
Holdings Limited (“China Vast International”), a company wholly owned
by Shing Cheong Holdings, for nil consideration. To rationalize the
corporate structure in preparation of the listing of the Company's
shares on the Stock Exchange, the Company was incorporated in the
Cayman Islands on 13 February 2014. One share was allotted and
issued to the initial subscriber, an independent third party, and then
transferred to Profit East on 13 February 2014. On the same day, the
Company issued and allotted an additional 9,999 shares, credited as
fully paid, to Profit East at par value. On 21 February 2014, the Company
acquired all the issued share capital in Shing Cheong Holdings from
Profit East, in consideration of which the Company allotted and issued
10,000 ordinary shares of par value of HK$0.01, credited as fully paid,
to Profit East. Upon completion of the share transfer, the Company
became the holding company of the Group as at 21 February 2014. The
companies that took part in the Reorganization were controlled by the
Ultimate Controlling Shareholders during the year of 2014 or since their
respective date of incorporation or establishment up to 31 December
2014 where this is a shorter period.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e PR R MR (&)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e PR R MR (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2015 & Z2015F 12531 H 1 F/Z

2. Basis of Presentation continueq) 2. REEE -

The Reorganization (continued)

The Group resulting from the Reorganization, which involves
interspersing the Company between Shing Cheong Holdings and Profit
East, is regarded as a continuing entity. As there was no change in the
Ultimate Controlling Shareholders before and after the Reorganization,
the consolidated financial statements relating to the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, the
consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated
statement of cash flows of the Group for the year of 2014 include the
results of operations and cash flows of the companies now comprising
the Group as if the current group structure had been in existence
and remained unchanged throughout the year of 2014 or since their
respective dates of incorporation or establishment where this is a
shorter period. All material intra-group transactions and balances have
been eliminated on consolidation.

Application of New and Revised International
Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs")

The Group has applied the following amendments to IFRSs for the first
time in the current year:

Defined Benefit Plans:
Employee Contributions

Annual Improvements to
IFRSS 2010-2012 Cycle

Annual Improvements to
IFRSS 2011-2013 Cycle

Amendments to IFRS 19
Amendments to IFRSs
Amendments to IFRSs
The application of the amendments to IFRSs in the current year has had
no material impact on the Group'’s financial performance and positions

for the current year and prior years and/or on the disclosures set out in
these consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e ISR R R ()

For the year ended 31 December 2015 & Z2015F 12531 H 1 F/Z

3. Application of New and Revised International 3.

Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs")
(Continued)

The Group has not early applied the following new and revised IFRSS
that have been issued but are not yet effective:

FE R $e] & © & 5] B BR BY 7%
HEZEER )

FAEBIIBERBIMEMD EEFTERE
R B B 5 3R o R A

IFRS 9

IFRS 15

IFRS 16
Amendments to IFRS 11

Amendments to IAS 1

Amendments to IAS 16
and IAS 38

Amendments to IFRSs

Amendments to IAS 16
and IAS 41
Amendments to IAS 27

Amendments to IFRS 10
and IAS 28

Amendments to IFRS 10,
IFRS 12 and IAS 2

Amendments to IAS 7
Amendments to IAS 12

Financial Instruments?

Revenue from Contracts with
Customers?

Leases?

Accounting for Acquisitions of
Interests in Joint Operations3

Disclosure Initiatives

Clarification of Acceptable Methods
of Depreciation and Amortisations

Annual Improvements to
IFRSs 2012-2014 Cycle3

Agriculture: Bearer Plants?

Equity Method in Separate Financial
Statements?

Sale or Contribution of Assets
between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Ventures

Investment Entities: Applying the
Consolidation Exception3

Disclosure Initiatives
Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets
for Unrealised Lossess

1 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018.

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019.
3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2016.
4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be determined.
5 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2017.
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Application of New and Revised International
Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs")
(Continued)

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments

IFRS 9 issued in 2009 introduced new requirements for the classification
and measurement of financial assets. IFRS 9 was subsequently
amended in 2010 to include requirements for the classification and
measurement of financial liabilities and for derecognition, and in
2013 to include the new requirements for general hedge accounting.
Another revised version of IFRS 9 was issued in 2014 mainly to
include a) impairment requirements for financial assets and b) limited
amendments to the classification and measurement requirements by
introducing a ‘fair value through other comprehensive income”’ (FVTOCI)
measurement category for certain simple debt instruments.

Key requirements of IFRS 9:

° all recognised financial assets that are within the scope of IAS 39
Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement are required
to be subsequently measured at amortised cost or fair value.
Specifically, debt investments that are held within a business
model whose objective is to collect the contractual cash flows,
and that have contractual cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal outstanding are generally
measured at amortised cost at the end of subsequent accounting
periods. Debt instruments that are held within a business model
whose objective is achieved both by collecting contractual cash
flows and selling financial assets, and that have contractual
terms that give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are
solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount
outstanding, are generally measured at FVTOCI. All other debt
investments and equity investments are measured at their fair
value at the end of subsequent accounting periods. In addition,
under IFRS 9, entities may make an irrevocable election to present
subseqguent changes in the fair value of an equity investment (that
is not held for trading) in other comprehensive income, with only
dividend income generally recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e PR R MR (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2015 & Z2015F 12531 H 1 F/Z

3. Application of New and Revised International
Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs")
(Continued)

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments (Continued)

with regard to the measurement of financial liabilities designated
as at fair value through profit or loss, IFRS 9 requires that the
amount of change in the fair value of the financial liability that
is attributable to changes in the credit risk of that liability is
presented in other comprehensive income, unless the recognition
of the effects of changes in the liability’s credit risk in other
comprehensive income would create or enlarge an accounting
mismatch in profit or loss. Changes in fair value of financial
liabilities attributable to a financial liabilities” credit risk are not
subsequently reclassified to profit or loss. Under IAS 39, the entire
amount of the change in the fair value of the financial liability
designated as fair value through profit or loss is presented in profit
or loss.

in relation to the impairment of financial assets, IFRS 9 requires an
expected credit loss model, as opposed to an incurred credit loss
model under IAS 39. The expected credit loss model requires an
entity to account for expected credit losses and changes in those
expected credit losses at each reporting date to reflect changes in
credit risk since initial recognition. In other words, it is no longer
necessary for a credit event to have occurred before credit losses
are recognised.

the new general hedge accounting requirements retain the three
types of hedge accounting mechanisms currently available in I1AS
39. Under IFRS 9, greater flexibility has been introduced to the
types of transactions eligible for hedge accounting, specifically
broadening the types of instruments that qualify for hedging
instruments and the types of risk components of non-financial
items that are eligible for hedge accounting. In addition, the
retrospective quantitative effectiveness test has been removed.
Enhanced disclosure requirements about an entity’s risk
management activities have also been introduced.

The Directors of the Company (the “Directors”) are of the view that the
expected credit loss model may result in early provision of credit losses
which are not yet incurred for the Group’s financial assets measured at
amortised cost. However, it is not practicable to provide a reasonable
estimate of the effect until a detailed review has been completed.
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Application of New and Revised International
Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs")
(Continued)

IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers

IFRS 15 was issued which establishes a single comprehensive model
for entities to use in accounting for revenue arising from contracts with
customers. IFRS 15 will supersede the current revenue recognition
guidance including IAS 18 Revenue, IAS 11 Construction Contracts and
the related Interpretations when it becomes effective.

The core principle of IFRS 15 is that an entity should recognise revenue
to depict the transfer of promised goods or services to customers in
an amount that reflects the consideration to which the entity expects
to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services. Specifically, the
Standard introduces a 5-step approach to revenue recognition:

Step 1: Identify the contract(s) with a customer

. Step 2: Identify the performance obligations in the contract

. Step 3: Determine the transaction price

. Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to the performance
obligations in the contract

. Step 5: Recognise revenue when (or as) the entity satisfies a
performance obligation

uUnder IFRS 15, an entity recognises revenue when (or as) a performance
obligation is satisfied, i.e. when ‘control’ of the goods or services
underlying the particular performance obligation is transferred to the
customer. Far more prescriptive guidance has been added in IFRS 15
to deal with specific scenarios. Furthermore, extensive disclosures are
required by IFRS 15.

The Directors anticipate that the application of IFRS 15 in the future
may have a material impact on the amounts reported and disclosures
made in the Group’s consolidated financial statements. However, it is
not practicable to provide a reasonable estimate of the effect of IFRS 15
until the Group performs a detailed review.
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Significant Accounting Policies

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with IFRSs. In addition, the consolidated financial
statements include applicable disclosures required by the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (“Listing
Rules”) and by the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (“CO").

The provision of the new Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap 622)
regarding preparation of accounts and director’s reports and audits
became effective for the Company for the financial year ended 31
December 2015. Further, the disclosure requirements set out in the
Listing Rules regarding annual accounts have been amended with
reference to the new CO and to streamline with IFRSs. Accordingly the
presentation and disclosure of information in the consolidated financial
statements for the financial year ended 31 December 2015 have
been changed to comply with these new requirements. Comparative
information in respect of the financial year ended 31 December 2014
is presented or disclosed in the consolidated financial statements
based on the new requirements. Information previously required to be
disclosed under the predecessor CO or Listing Rules but not under the
new CO or amended Listing Rules is not disclosed in these consolidated
financial statements.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the
historical cost basis, except for investment properties and conversion
option derivative which are measured at fair values at the end of each
reporting period, as explained in the accounting policies set out below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the consideration
given in exchange for goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to
transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants
at the measurement date, regardless of whether that price is directly
observable or estimated using another valuation technigue. In estimating
the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Group takes into account the
characteristics of the asset or liability if market participants would take
those characteristics into account when pricing the asset or liability at
the measurement date. Fair value for measurement and/or disclosure
purposes in these consolidated financial statements is determined
on such a basis, except for share-based payment transactions that
are within the scope of IFRS 2, leasing transactions that are within the
scope of IAS 17, and measurements that have some similarities to fair
value but are not fair value, such as net realisable value in IAS 2 or value
inuse in 1AS 36.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e PR R MR (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2015 & Z2015F 12531 H 1 F/Z

4. EESTHE

RAMBRACRRERMEREELR
o lbsh  GRAFTBHRRBIEBHRMES
ETRENT ETHRR L) REFB R RHED
(TR BEHERI)) BB R EE IR -

AFNTEERERERA2015812A318
TESTHE B AR AR E B B IR
R CEERENEANHER - AR - LW
EPIRENBERFERENEEZREL
WRARFT B2 RHE B 715 7T B2 B0 R B 75 o
HEART B - MER - REMB®RE
LA20154 12 A31H A& LE B BT 7K
Tk - HE2014F12 A31 B E LB 515
BIRRHTA BRI TR o LART A AIEGIk
HLETEAIZRMERHNIRIETH L
TEG8E EROERHER G B HwEF
THEE -

FAMBRERCRER TSt BRERE
BESERAERE - MATEFENRE
MEBI - BELRA—RIBBEABE R
KRB N REQHETE -

Bk ARERBERMRERBEOHAT
BFTEH] °

RFERTHLEENRTEARNEFFR
SHHEEER RN AE R AL

NEER  TR%ERETERBERARE
A S B EETDEMGR - At EER
BEMNAFER  AEEZEET HH2HE
EEGFERMAZAERRBETEER
BEEZRNEENEBERE - £EZEHE
FBRRPIAERFENRFEDEUE
L TFUIAMETE - RABRBREBIRELRE2
S AR D AR REE AN S AR D R E
RNFRS - BRI B REERE1755E
SHEANNEER S AR B ERLE
WIRFENFEDIN  BEREEeHERE
R EFEHR A RRFERBRSHREE
AIEE 3657 & R ET M EREEIRIN -

Annual Report 2015 £

93



94

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value measurements
are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based on the degree to which
the inputs to the fair value measurements are observable and the
significance of the inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety,
which are described as follows:

. Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets
for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can access at the
measurement date;

. Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included within
Level 1, that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly
or indirectly; and

. Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

The principal accounting policies adopted are as follows:

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and entities controlled by the Company (its
subsidiaries). Control is achieved when the Company:

. has power over the investee;

o iS exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement
with the investee; and

o has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Company reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts
and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more of
the three elements of control listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Company obtains control
over the subsidiary and ceases when the Company loses control
of the subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses of a subsidiary
acquired or disposed of during the year are included in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income from the
date the Company gains control until the date when the Company
ceases to control the subsidiary.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e PR R MR (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2015 & Z2015F 12531 H 1 F/Z

Significant Accounting Policies (continueq)

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive income are
attributed to the owners of the Company and to the non-controlling
interests. Total comprehensive income of subsidiary is attributed to the
owners of the Company and to the non-controlling interests even if this
results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit balance.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements of
subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies into line with the Group’s
accounting policies.

All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and
cash flows relating to transactions between members of the Group are
eliminated in full on combination.

Loss of control of subsidiaries

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it (i) derecognizes the
assets (including any goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary at their
carrying amounts at the date when control is lost, (ii) derecognizes
the carrying amount of any non-controlling interests in the former
subsidiary at the date when control is lost (including any components of
other comprehensive income attributable to them), and (jii) recognizes
the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration received and the
fair value of any retained interest, with any resulting difference being
recognised as a gain or loss in profit or loss attributable to the Group.

When assets of the subsidiary are carried at revalued amounts or fair
values and the related cumulative gain or loss has been recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity, the amounts
previously recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated
in equity are accounted for as if the Group had directly disposed of the
related assets (i.e., reclassified to profit or loss or transferred directly to
(accumulated losses) retained profits as specified by applicable IFRSS).
The fair value of any investment retained in the former subsidiary
at the date when control is lost is regarded as the fair value on
initial recognition for subsequent accounting under IAS 39 Financial
Instruments: Recognition and Measurement or, when applicable, the
cost on initial recognition of an investment in an associate or a joint
venture.
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Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Loss of control of subsidiaries (Continued)
Investments in associates

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant influence.
Significant influence is the power to participate in the financial and
operating policy decisions of the investee but is not control or joint
control over those policies.

The results and assets and liabilities of associates are incorporated
in the consolidated financial statements using the equity method
of accounting, except when the investment is classified as held for
sale, in which case it is accounted for in accordance with IFRS 5 Non-
current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations. The financial
statement of associates used for equity accounting purposes are
prepared using uniform accounting policies as those of the Group for
like transactions and events in similar circumstances.

Under the equity method, an investment in an associate is initially
recognised in the consolidated statement of financial position at cost and
adjusted thereafter to recognise the Group’s share of the profit or l0ss
and other comprehensive income of the associate. When the Group’s
share of losses of an associate exceeds the Group’s interest in that
associate (which includes any long-term interests that, in substance,
form part of the Group’s net investment in the associate), the Group
discontinues recognising its share of further losses. Additional losses
are recognised only to the extent that the Group has incurred legal or
constructive obligations or made payments on behalf of the associate.

When a group entity transacts with an associate of the Group (such
as a sale or contribution of assets), profits and losses resulting from
the transactions with the associate are recognised in the Group’s
consolidated financial statements only to the extent of interests in the
associate that are not related to the Group.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received
or receivable and represents amounts receivable for goods sold and
services rendered in the normal course of business, net of discounts
and sales related taxes.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e PR R MR (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2015 & Z2015F 12531 H 1 F/Z

Significant Accounting Policies continued) BEEETHE e
Loss of control of subsidiaries (continued) KEMBARZES (#)
Revenue recognition (Continued) WA RERR (@)

Fee income from land development T HbFEUA

The Group is given the right to carry out construction and preparation
works in respect of land infrastructure within certain districts pursuant
to land development agreements entered into between the Group
and the local government authority. When the land plots are sold
by the local government authority to land buyers through public
auction, tender or listing, the Group is entitled to receive from the local
government authorities a proportion of the proceeds from land sales.

Fee income from the land development is recognised upon the transfer
of risk and rewards in connection with the land development and when
the amount of fee income can be measured reliably, which occurs
upon the completion of related construction works as well as sales of
land plots by the local government authority. Accordingly, at the time
of the sales of land, proceeds entitled to be received from the local
government authorities by the Group are recognised as fee income.

Marketing and promotional service income pursuant to land
development agreements entered into between the Group and the local
government authority is recognised when the services are provided.

Sales of properties

Revenue from sales of properties in the ordinary course of business
is recognised when the respective properties have been completed
and delivered to the buyers. Deposits and prepayments received from
purchasers prior to meeting the above criteria for revenue recognition
are included in the consolidated statement of financial position under
current liabilities.

Operating lease income

Operating lease income from investment properties is recognised on
the straight-line basis over the lease term which is the non-cancellable
period for which the lessee has contracted to lease the properties.

Interest income

Interest income from a financial asset is accrued on a time basis, by
reference to the principal outstanding and at the effective interest rate
applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future
cash receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to that
asset’s net carrying amount on initial recognition.
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Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment including buildings held for use in
the production or supply of goods or services, or for administrative
purposes other than construction in progress are stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position at cost less subsequent
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Depreciation is provided to write off the cost of items of property,
plant and equipment other than construction in progress over their
estimated useful lives and after taking into account of their estimated
residual value, using the straight-line method. The estimated useful
lives, residual values and depreciation method are reviewed at the end
of each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in estimate
accounted for on a prospective basis.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal
or when no future economic benefits are expected to arise from the
continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition
of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the item) is included in profit or
loss in the period in which the item is derecognised.

Investment properties

Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals and/or for
capital appreciation (including properties under construction for such
PUrpOSES).

Investment properties are initially measured at cost, including any
directly attributable expenditure. Subsequent to initial recognition,
investment properties are measured at their fair value using the fair
value model. Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of
investment property are included in the profit or loss for the period in
which they arise.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or when the
investment property is permanently withdrawn from use and no future
economic benefits are expected from its disposals. Any gain or l0ss
arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the
asset) is included in the profit or loss in the period in which the item is
derecognised.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e PR R MR (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2015 & Z2015F 12531 H 1 F/Z

Significant Accounting Policies (continueq)
Land development for sale

Development cost of land development for sale comprises the
aggregate cost of development, materials and supplies, capitalised staff
costs, capitalised borrowing costs on related borrowing funds during
the period of construction and other costs directly attributable to such
land development for sale.

Land development for sale is stated at the lower of cost and net
realizable value. Net realizable value takes into account the Group's
share of estimated proceeds derived from the sale of land development
for sale by the local government authorities, less costs to completion
and the costs to be incurred in realizing the revenue derived from
the sale of land development for sale based on prevailing market
conditions.

Properties under development for sale

Properties under development which are intended to be sold in the
ordinary course of business upon completion of development are
classified as current assets, and carried at the lower of cost and net
realizable value. Net realisable value takes into account the price
ultimately expected to be realised, less applicable variable selling
expenses and anticipated cost to completion. Costs include the related
land cost, development expenditure incurred and, where appropriate,
borrowing costs capitalised.

Properties under development for sale are transferred to completed
properties for sale upon completion.

Completed properties for sale

Completed properties for sale are stated at the lower of cost and net
realizable value. Net realizable value is determined based on prevailing
market conditions.

Leases

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease
transfer substantially all risks and rewards of ownership to the lessee.
All other leases are classified as operating leases.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e PR R MR (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2015 & Z2015F 12531 H 1 F/Z

4. Significant Accounting Policies continued 4. EEESTHBE®

Leases (Continued) HE@®)
The Group as lessor AEEERHBEA

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in profit or oss on a
straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease. Initial direct costs
incurred in negotiating and managing an operating lease are added to
the carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised as an expense
on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

The Group as lessee
Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a straight-
line basis over the lease term.

Leasehold land and building

When a lease includes both land and building elements, the Group
assesses the classification of each element as a finance or an operating
lease separately based on the assessment as to whether substantially
all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of each element have
been transferred to the Group, unless it is clear that both elements are
operating leases in which case the lease is classified as an operating
leases. Specially, the minimum lease payments (including any lump-
sum upfront payments) are allocated between the land and the building
element of the lease at the inception of the lease.

To the extent the allocation of the lease payments can be made reliably,
interest in leasehold land that is accounted for as an operating lease is
presented as “prepaid lease payments” in the consolidated statement
of financial position and is amortised over the lease term on a straight-
line basis except for those that are classified and accounted for as
investment properties under the fair value model.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or
production of qualifying assets, which are assets that necessarily take
a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale,
are added to the cost of those assets until such time as the assets are
substantially ready for their intended use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment of specific
borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted
from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalization.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period in
which they are incurred.
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Significant Accounting Policies (continueq)
Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group entity,
transactions in currencies other than that entity’s functional currency
(foreign currencies) are recorded in the respective functional currency
at the rates of exchange prevailing on the dates of the transactions. At
the end of reporting period, monetary items denominated in foreign
currencies are re-translated at the rates prevailing at that date. Non-
monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a
foreign currency are not re-translated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items, and
on the re-translation of monetary items, are recognised in profit or 10ss
in the period in which they arise.

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to state-managed retirement benefits schemes are charged
as an expense when employees have rendered service entitling them
to the contributions.

Share-based payment transactions of the Company
Equity-settled share-based payments to employees and others
providing similar services are measured at the fair value of the equity
instruments at the grant date. Details regarding the determination of
the fair value of equity-settled share-based transactions are set out in
note 40 to these consolidated financial statements.

The fair value determined at the grant date of the equity-settled share-
based payments is expensed on a straight-line basis over the vesting
period, based on the Group’s estimate of equity instruments that will
eventually vest, with a corresponding increase in equity (share options
reserve). At the end of each reporting period, the Group revises its
estimate of the number of equity instruments expected to vest. The
impact of the revision of the original estimates, if any, is recognised
in profit or loss such that the cumulative expense reflects the revised
estimate, with a corresponding adjustment to equity-settled employee
benefits reserve.

When share options are exercised, the amount previously recognized
in share options reserve will be transferred to share capital and share
premium. When the share options are forfeited after the vesting date
or are still not exercised at the expiry date, the amount previously
recognized in share options reserve will be transferred to retained
profits.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e PR R MR (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2015 & Z2015F 12531 H 1 F/Z

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until there is reasonable
assurance that the Group will comply with the conditions attaching to
them and that the grants will be received.

Government grants that are receivable as compensation for expenses or
losses already incurred or for the purpose of giving immediate financial
support to the Group with no future related costs are recognised in
profit or loss in the period in which they become receivable.

Taxation
Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable
and deferred tax.

Current tax

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable
profit differs from profit before tax as reported in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income because
it excludes items of income or expense that are taxable or deductible
in other years and it further excludes items that are never taxable or
deductible. The Group's liability for current tax is calculated using tax
rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of
the reporting period.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated financial
statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation
of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for
all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are generally
recognised for all deductible temporary differences to the extent that
it is probable that taxable profits will be available against which those
deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such deferred tax
assets and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference
arises from goodwill or from the initial recognition (other than in a
business combination) of other assets and liabilities in a transaction that
affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.
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Significant Accounting Policies (continueq)
Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax (Continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries, interests in associates and
joint ventures, except where the Group is able to control the reversal
of the temporary difference and it is probable that the temporary
difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets
arising from deductible temporary differences associated with such
investments and interests are only recognised to the extent that it is
probable that there will be sufficient taxable profits against which to
utilise the benefits of the temporary differences and they are expected
to reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of
reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable
that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the
asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are
expected to apply in the period in which the liability is settled or the asset
is realised, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax
consequences that would follow from the manner in which the Group
expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover or settle the
carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

For the purpose of measuring deferred tax liabilities for investment
properties that are measured using the fair value model, the carrying
amounts of such properties are presumed to be recovered entirely
through sale, unless the presumption is rebutted. The presumption is
rebutted when the investment property is depreciable and is held within
a business model whose objective is to consume substantially all of
the economic benefits embodied in the investment property over time,
rather than through sale.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss, except when it
relates to items that are recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity, in which case, deferred tax is also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e PR R MR (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2015 & Z2015F 12531 H 1 F/Z

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position when a group entity
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair
value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition
or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other than financial
assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are
added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or
financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction
costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

Financial assets
The Group's financial assets are classified into available-for-sale (“AFS”)
financial assets and loans and receivables.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised
cost of a financial asset and of allocating interest income over the
relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash receipts (including all fees and points
paid or received that form an integral part of the effective interest
rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through the
expected life of the financial asset, or, where appropriate, a shorter
period to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest income is recognised on an effective interest basis for debt.
AFS financial assets

AFS financial assets are non-derivatives that are either designated as
available-for-sale or are not classified as loans and receivables.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e PR R MR (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2015 & Z2015F 12531 H 1 F/Z

Significant Accounting Policies continued) BEEETHE e
Financial instruments (continued) [ = NG
Financial assets (Continued) MBEE®)

AFS financial assets A ENTIEEE

Equity securities held by the Group that are classified as AFS financial
assets and are traded in an active market are measured at fair value at
the end of each reporting period. Changes in carrying amount of AFS
monetary financial assets related to interest income calculated using
the effective interest method and dividends on AFS equity investments
are recognised in profit or loss. Other changes in the carrying amount
of AFS financial assets are recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated under the heading of investment revaluation reserve.
When the investment is disposed of or is determined to be impaired,
the cumulative gain or loss previously accumulated in the investment
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revaluation reserve is reclassified to profit or loss. HEREEPT RN S EEAREBRET
%E -

Dividends on AFS equity instruments are recognised in profit or loss
when the Group's right to receive the dividends is established.

AFS equity instruments that do not have quoted market price in an
active market and whose fair value cannot be reliably measured and
derivatives that are linked to and must be settled by delivery of such
unguoted equity instruments are measured at cost less any identified
impairment losses at the end of each reporting period.
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Loans and receivables fE R B R E IR

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed B R pE W IR 2T R EE RS R

or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market.
Subsequent to initial recognition, loans and receivables (including trade
and other receivables, amounts due from related parties, restricted
bank deposits and bank balances and cash) are carried at amortised
cost using the effective interest method, less any identified impairment
losses (see accounting policy on impairment of financial assets set out
below).

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets are assessed for indicators of impairment at the end of
reporting period. Financial assets are considered to be impaired when
there is objective evidence that, as a result of one or more events that
occurred after the initial recognition of the financial asset, the estimated
future cash flows of the financial assets have been affected.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e PR R MR (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2015 & Z2015F 12531 H 1 F/Z

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

For loans and receivables, objective evidence of impairment could
include:

. significant financial difficulty of the issuer or counterparty; or

. breach of contract, such as default or delinguency in interest or
principal payments; or

. it becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or
financial re-organization; or

. the disappearance of an active market for that financial asset
because financial difficulties.

For certain categories of financial asset, such as trade and other
receivables that are assessed not to be impaired individually are
subsequently assessed for impairment on a collective basis. Objective
evidence of impairment for a portfolio of receivables could include
the Group's past experience of collecting payments, and observable
changes in national or local economic conditions that correlate with
default on receivables.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, an impairment |0ss is
recognised in profit or loss when there is objective evidence that the
asset is impaired, and is measured as the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of the estimated future cash
flows discounted at the original effective interest rate.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by the impairment
loss directly for all financial assets with the exception of trade and
other receivables, where the carrying amount is reduced through the
use of an allowance account. Changes in the carrying amount of the
allowance account are recognised in profit or loss. When a receivable is
considered uncollectible, it is written off against the allowance account.
Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off are credited to
profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e PR R MR (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2015 & Z2015F 12531 H 1 F/Z

Significant Accounting Policies (continueq)
Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in a subsequent
period, the amount of impairment loss decreases and the decrease
can be related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment
loss was recognised, the previously recognised impairment loss is
reversed through profit or loss to the extent that the carrying amount
of the asset at the date the impairment is reversed does not exceed
what the amortised cost would have been had the impairment not been
recognised.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by the Group are
classified according to the substance of the contractual arrangements
entered into and the definitions of a financial liability and an equity
instrument.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised
cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest expense over the
relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash payments (including all fees and points,
paid or received that form an integral part of the effective interest
rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through the
expected life of the financial liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter
period to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest basis.

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities are classified as at FVTPL when the financial liabilities
are either held for trading or those designated as at FVTPL on initial
recognition.

A financial liability is classified as held for trading if:

. It has been acquired principally for the purpose of repurchasing it
in the near term; or

. On initial recognition it is a part of a portfolio of identified financial
instruments that the Group manages together and has a recent

actual pattern of short-term profit-taking; or

o It is a derivative that is not designated and effective as a hedging
instrument.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e PR R MR (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2015 & Z2015F 12531 H 1 F/Z

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments (continued)
Financial liabilities (Continued)

Financial liabilities at FVTPL are stated at fair value, with any gains or
losses arising on remeasurement recognised in profit or loss. The net
gain or loss recognised in profit or loss includes any interest paid on the
financial liability.

Other financial liabilities of the Group including trade and other
payables, bank and other borrowings and amounts due to related
parties are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the
effective interest method.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest
in the assets of the Group after deducting all of its liabilities. Equity
instruments issued by the Company are recognised at the proceeds
received, net of direct issue costs.

Financial guarantee contracts

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that requires the issuer
to make specified payments to reimburse the holder for a loss it
incurs because a specified debtor fails to make payment when due in
accordance with the original or modified terms of a debt instrument.

A financial guarantee contract issued by the Group and not designated
as at fair value through profit or loss is recognised initially at its fair
value less transaction costs that are directly attributable to the issue
of the financial guarantee contract. Subsequent to initial recognition,
the Group measures the financial guarantee contract at the higher
of (i) the amount determined in accordance with IAS 37 Provisions,
Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets; and (ii) the amount initially
recognised less, when appropriate, cumulative amortization recognised
in accordance with IAS 18 Revenue.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e PR R MR (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2015 & Z2015F 12531 H 1 F/Z

Significant Accounting Policies continued) BEEETHE e
Financial instruments (continued) MBITR®

Financial liabilities and equity instruments (continued) MEaEURRETIA @)
Convertible bonds AJERES

The component parts of convertible bonds issued by the Company are
classified separately as financial liabilities and equity in accordance
with the substance of the contractual arrangements and the definitions
of a financial liability and equity instrument. A conversion option that
will be settled other than by the exchange of a fixed amount of cash or
another financial asset for a fixed number of the Company’s own equity
instruments is a conversion option derivative.

At the date of issue, both the liability component and conversion option
derivative are recoginised at fair value. In subsequent periods, the
liability component of the convertible bonds is carried at amortised cost
using the effective interest method. The conversion option derivative is
measured at fair value with changes in fair value recognised in profit or
loss.

Transaction costs that relate to the issue of the convertible bonds are
allocated to the liability and derivative components in proportion to their
relative fair values. Transaction costs relating to the liability component
are included in the carrying amount of the liability portion and are
amortised over the period of the convertible bonds using the effective
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interest method. Transaction costs relating to the derivative component e
are charged to profit or loss immediately.
Derecognition BUERERR

Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive cash
flows from the assets expire or, the financial assets are transferred
and the Group has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of the financial assets.

On derecognition of a financial asset, the difference between the
asset’s carrying amount and the sum of the consideration received and
receivable is recognised in profit or 10ss.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the obligation specified in
the relevant contract is discharged, cancelled or expires. The difference
between the carrying amount of the financial liability derecognised
and the consideration paid and payable is recognised in profit or
loss, expect for waiver of financial liabilities by Ultimate Controlling
Shareholders which is considered as deemed contribution.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e ISR R R ()

For the year ended 31 December 2015 & Z2015F 12531 H 1 F/Z

Significant Accounting Policies continued) 4. EEESTHBE®

Financial instruments (Continued) BB IR

Impairment losses on tangible assets BREEREEFE

At the end of the reporting periods, the Group reviews the carrying EREHBERE  NEBHEHELE
amounts of its tangible assets to determine whether there is any EMREELETES  UKETEDAER
indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any BLRZEEECRLERERE - BEHRZ
such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated LER - RIAMBFEENTRE S5 - U
in order to determine the extent of the impairment loss, if any. BER AR (B )MZE -

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of disposal AElEEAAFEREEXARERE
and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash BEMENERSE - LT EEREER - &
flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate FFRRIREMERE AR ATITIREFIR
that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money ZHRE  URBBERTSHEERKEE
and the risks specific to the asset for which the estimates of future cash RS R EE (RARTRRBESRERT
flows have not been adjusted. FR)FBEHER

If the recoverable amount of an asset is estimated to be less than its EMsrEEMN KL EENHREE -
carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset is reduced to its Al ZEEMERERABERZEATKE S
recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognised as an expense B o BEFBBRERARY -
immediately.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount EREBRERER  MZEENKREDE
of the asset is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable g MEE IR S ERLEREE B
amount, but the increased carrying amount does not exceed the ENENREEETSBEZEEREFR
carrying amount that would have been determined had no impairment FE RO E R E S BE R RE
loss been recognised for the asset in prior year. A reversal of an B - BEBERODRTESANER A
impairment loss is recognised immediately as income in profit or loss. A e

Critical Accounting Judgments and Key 5. B@&< s+ H Rk (45T F8H B

Sources of Estimation Uncertainty

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which are
described in note 4, the Directors are required to make judgments,
estimates and assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates
and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and
other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may
differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing
basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in
which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period or in
the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both
current and future periods.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e PR R MR (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2015 & Z2015F 12531 H 1 F/Z

Critical Accounting Judgments and Key
Sources of Estimation Uncertainty (continuea)
Critical judgments in applying accounting policies
The following is the critical judgment, apart from those involving
estimations, that management has made in the process of applying the
Group’s accounting policies and that have the most significant effect on
the amounts recognised in these consolidated financial statements.

Deferred taxation on investment properties

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax liabilities arising from
investment properties that are measured using the fair value model,
the Directors have reviewed the Group’s investment properties and
concluded that the Group's investment properties are held under a
business model whose objective is to consume substantially all of the
economic benefits embodied in the investment properties over time
through rental income. Therefore, in determining the Group's deferred
taxation on investment properties, the Directors have determined that
the presumption that investment properties measured using the fair
value model are recovered through sale is rebutted.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future, and other
key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of reporting period,
that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next twelve months.

Investment properties

Investment properties were stated at fair values based on the valuation
performed by independent professional valuers. In determining the fair
values, the valuers have based on a method of valuation which involves
certain estimates of market condition. In relying on the valuation
report, the Directors have exercised their judgment and are satisfied
that the assumptions used in the valuation are reflective of the current
market conditions. Changes to these assumptions would result in
changes in the fair values of the Group's investment properties and the
corresponding adjustments to the amount of gain or loss reported in
profit or loss.

The carrying amount of investment properties as at 31 December
2015 were approximately RMB942,800,000 (31 December 2014:
RMB747,600,000). More details are set out in note 19.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e PR R MR (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2015 & Z2015F 12531 H 1 F/Z

Critical Accounting Judgments and Key
Sources of Estimation Uncertainty continueq)
Key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)
Carrying amount of land development for sale

The Group's land development for sale is stated at the lower of cost
and net realizable value. Based on the Group's recent experience and
the nature of the subject land development, the Group makes estimates
of cost allocated to each parcel of land infrastructure, and its net
realizable value, i.e., the fee income to be derived from the sale of land
development for sale by the local government authorities, less costs
to completion and the costs to be incurred in realizing the fee income
from the sale of land development for sale based on prevailing market
conditions.

If the cost is higher than the estimated net realizable value, provision
for the excess of cost of land development for sale over its net
realizable value should be made. A provision for loss on onerous
contracts would be made by the Group if it has a contract under which
the unavoidable costs of meeting the obligations under the contract
exceed the economic benefits expected to be received from the
contract. Determination of these provisions would require the use of
judgment and estimates. Where the expectation is different from the
original estimate, the carrying amount and provision for loss on land
development for sale and the provision for loss on onerous contract
in the periods in which such estimate is changed will be adjusted
accordingly.

The carrying amount of land development for sale as at 31 December
2015 was approximately RMB1,753,260,000 (31 December 2014:
RMB1,312,463,000). More details are set out in note 25.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e PR R MR (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2015 & Z2015F 12531 H 1 F/Z

Critical Accounting Judgments and Key
Sources of Estimation Uncertainty (continueq)
Key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)
Land appreciation tax

The Group is subject to land appreciation tax in the People’s Republic
of China (the “PRC"), according to the requirements set forth in the
relevant PRC tax laws and regulations. The actual land appreciation
tax liabilities are subject to the determination by the tax authorities
upon completion of the property development projects. Accordingly,
significant estimate is required in determining the amount of land
appreciation and its related income tax provisions. The Group
recognizes land appreciation tax based on management'’s best
estimates. The final tax outcome could be different from the amounts
that were initially recorded, and these differences will impact the
income tax expense and the related income tax provisions in the
periods in which such tax is finalised with local tax authorities.

As at 31 December 2015, the amount of provision for land appreciation
tax which were included in current tax liabilities on the consolidated
statement of financial position were RMB2,697,000 (31 December 2014:
RMB10,778,000).

Income tax expense

As at 31 December 2015, deferred tax assets of RMB34,548,000 were
recognised in the consolidated statement of financial position (31
December 2014: RMB26,086,000) and deferred tax assets in respect
of certain tax losses of RMB57,923,000 were not recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position (31 December 2014
RMB7,290,000) due to the unpredictability of future profit streams.
The realization of the deferred tax assets mainly depends on whether
sufficient future profits or taxable temporary differences will be available
in the future. In cases where the actual future profits generated are less
or more than expected, a reversal or future provision of deferred tax
assets may arise, which will be recognised in profit or loss in the period
in which such a reversal takes place.

B S 5T ¥ BT & (L 5T T BE B
HAENFEERE )
EEFTTHEBARZNEERR (%)

T i EH
AEEBREDEARLTE(HE )
B3 1% 350 1 B 80 0 350 0 A o D o
(BB - FRE + AR (8 B SR B e
WMERBIAR SRERE - B ERE
+ B S 4 R AR R S R R RS B M
BEARGE - AEEREEEENSER
SHRER L AR o Bk B BIS SR
AYSRENSERE  MXSEREY
28400 75 T 7 M R B AR HE S 7 B AR B
PRSI AR SRS -

EHZE2015 128318 - EHEA MK
RAFTATB B IE B EM T G E B
+ 58 A AR #2,697,0007T (2013412 A 31
B : AR#10,778,0007T) °

Friefip

BZE20154 128318 + A R# 34,548,000
TLREIETR B & EfE 4R A ISR LR R i
(2014412 4318 A R 26,086,000
JC) - MR AREETERRKRAOFER - WL
BoE THRIBEEAREES7,923,000TELR
B PBARR R AERELER B A ZE (20144
128318 : AR¥7,290,0007T) © ELFIE
BEESHEFEIFANAREESETEHF
HRESRERNERE - EERELENRK
FEREER D% - Bl g IR IEER
THEERL SR KRB E - A RO A5
B AR B FERR o

Annual Report 2015 £

113



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e ISR R R ()

For the year ended 31 December 2015 & Z2015F 12531 H 1 F/Z

Critical Accounting Judgments and Key
Sources of Estimation Uncertainty continueq)
Key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)
Recoverability of trade receivables from sale of
blocks of buildings to entities controlled by local
government authorities

Impairment on trade receivables from sale of blocks of buildings to
entities controlled by local government authorities is determined by
management when there is objective evidence, e.g., it becoming
probable that a debtor will enter bankruptcy or is having significant
financial difficulty. When the actual future cash flows are less than
expected, a material impairment loss may arise.

As at 31 December 2015, the carrying amount of trade receivable of
this nature was RMB92,116,000 (31 December 2014: RMB45,472,000).
Further details are set out in note 27.

Capital Risk Management

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the Group will
be able to continue as a going concern; to maintain the confidence
of creditors; to sustain future development of the group entities
and to maximize the return to the owners of the Company through
optimization of debt and equity balances.

The capital structure of the Group consists of borrowings, net of cash
and cash equivalents, and total equity of the Group.

The Directors review the capital structure on a regular basis. As
part of this review, the Directors consider the cost of capital and the
risks associated with the capital. Based on recommendations of the
Directors, the Group will balance its overall capital structure through
the payment of dividend, raise of new capital, issue of new debt or the
reduction of existing debts.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e PR R MR (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2015 & Z2015F 12531 H 1 F/Z

7. Financial Instruments 7. WBIA
a. Categories of financial instruments a. MBIAEH

At 31 December

M12A31H
2015 2014
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®BTT ARETT
Financial assets HHEE
Trade receivables B 5 RGIE 535,382 399,464
Other receivables H b FEY R IE 436,770 43,861
Amounts due from related parties fEUR REEs: 5 5RIE 3,606 -
Bank balances and cash RITERRIRS 1,058,518 802,596
Restricted bank deposits ZRFIRITFR 506,477 367,002
Financial liabilities at amortised cost TR K ARSI BRI S B (&
Trade and other payables B 5 RHEMERFIE 928,308 984,046
Amount due to a related party JE 1<) BB 5 BB 3,104 3,104
Bank and other borrowings RITREMER 3,352,886 2,909,719
Convertible Bonds and Notes AEnES KRR 579,714 -
Financial liabilities at fair value through FFASE R N FEFEH)
profit or loss HHEE
Derivative PTHEBMBIA 62,643 -

Financial risk management objectives and
policies

The Group's financial instruments consisted of bank balances
and cash, restricted bank deposits, trade and other receivables,
amounts due from/to related parties, trade and other payables,
bank and other borrowings, convertible bonds and notes and
derivative. Details of the financial instruments are disclosed
in respective notes. The risks associated with these financial
instruments include interest rate risk, credit risk, foreign currency
risk and liquidity risk. The Company does not have any significant
exposure to financial risks.

The policies on how to mitigate these risks are set out below. The
management manages and monitors these exposures to ensure
appropriate measures are implemented on a timely and effective
manner.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e PR R MR (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2015 & Z2015F 12531 H 1 F/Z

7. Financial Instruments continued)

b.

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to fair value interest rate risk in relation to
fixed-rate trade receivable, other receivables, convertible bonds
and notes (note 33) and bank and other borrowings (note 32).

The Group is also exposed to cash flow interest rate risk due
to the fluctuation of the prevailing market interest rate on cash
and cash equivalents and bank and other borrowings carried at
prevailing market interest rates based on or by reference to the
interest rates promulgated by the People’s Bank of China and
London Interbank Offered Rate.

The Group currently does not have a specific policy to manage
their interest rate risk and has not entered into interest rate swaps
to hedge its exposure, but will closely monitor its interest rate
exposure in the future.

The variable rate sensitivity analysis below has been determined
based on the exposure to interest rates for bank balances and
variable rate borrowings at the end of the reporting period and
assumed that the amounts outstanding at the end of reporting
period was outstanding for the whole year.

Sensitivity analysis

If interest rates on borrowings had been 100 basis points lower (but
not consider further decrease in interest rates on restricted bank
deposits and bank balances) and all other variables were held
constant, there would have no impact on the Group's total equity
apart from retained profits and the potential effect on profit after
tax, after taking into account the interest capitalization effect, for
the each of reporting period is as follows:

7. B I REwm
b. MEBEREEEEREEE)
F) 2= [ By

AEEEZBHERE P EEK

Ho Al fE YRR —Jﬁv?ﬁﬁ\%&%ﬂ?ﬁ
(BI3E33) - SRIT R EMERNO R FE
% e (B RE32)

HAREE MBS SEYMRTLEM
AR TSN EEE - MIRET
SHEARERSERBEARRITR
R R AR BERTT R 7B TR A
Ret®E - A AEETTAERE S LR
SEBYHIRE TS FRB AR
imiﬂiﬂ&

il

AKE A AL AR MR TR A
A'Tﬂﬂjﬂ%ﬁwuﬁﬁﬂﬁv

MRS ) B R H H AR ORI L fe
TXEFE BN EGREIMIERE

BE AR RITERITEER
MM XERME  TRRESHREH
MEREHRBENSEEREFE
BRARBE -

GRENM

ERERHEETRIEH(EXLFE
B BR B IRTT I R R RITAEERAO IR
E—F TR MAEEbEEERFT
2 BRTHREENI  AEEOER
BETeXITE  MEBMNBER
ek - SREPEEBRBLEHN
B ENT

Year ended 31 December

BE128318LLEE
2015 2014
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®BTT ARBTT
Increase in post-tax profit for the year FRBRTE 5 A N 1,165 1,584
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e PR R MR (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2015 & Z2015F 12531 H 1 F/Z

7. Financial Instruments continued)

b.

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

Interest rate risk (continued)

Sensitivity analysis (Continued)

If interest rates on restricted bank deposits and bank balances
had been 50 basis points higher and borrowings had been 100
basis points higher and all other variables were held constant,
there would have no impact on the Group’s total equity apart from
retained profits and the potential effect on profit after tax, after
taking into account the interest capitalization effect, for the each
of reporting period is as follows:

BT R

b.

BERREEEERBE®)

== @B ()
FURE DT ()

BRI HIRITIF R R IBI T A A =
EFB0EZE BT B R £ FH1005
BMATE MR R B%Tﬁ%
BmAoh - REEMBREETE
e mEEIANEL ﬁﬂﬂt?ﬁ;
& SRS AR ERBE R A B
7 SN

Year ended 31 December

BZE12A318LFE
2015 2014
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBT T AREFIT
Decrease in post-tax profit for the year FRRTE = AR (5,449) (5,276)
Foreign currency risk HMEE = B

The carrying amount of the Group's foreign currency denominated
monetary assets and monetary liabilities at the end of each of
reporting period are as follows:

ARE BB S B A R ASMES
ENEEEERERKABRAMEN
T

At 31 December

A12831H
2015 2014
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥ T AREF T
Assets BE
United States dollars ("US$") Ey(E )
Bank balances and cash RITHEHBRIRS 398,475 124,223
Hong Kong dollars (“HK$") ([ ])
Bank balances and cash RITHEHB LIRS 4,734 338,343
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e PR R MR (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2015 & Z2015F 12531 H 1 F/Z

7. Financial Instruments continued) 7. MBI Auw
b. Financial risk management objectives and b. MERMREEEEZEREK®)

policies (continued)
Foreign currency risk (continued)

SINGE JEL B ()

At 31 December

M®12A31H
2015 2014
RMB’'000 RMB'000
ARETR ARETT
Liabilities =N
uss FEIT
Bank and other borrowings RIT R HEMIEFK 225,722 587,552
Convertible bonds and Notes AERELSRER 579,714 -
Derivative PTHEMBIA 62,643 -
Sensitivity analysis BRE DT
The Group is mainly exposed to the fluctuation in US$ and HK$ AEEHFZERRIKREFETRAEEH
against RMB. AREHEERE -

The following table details the Group's sensitivity to a 5% increase
and decrease in the exchange rates of RMB against relevant
foreign currencies. 5% represents management’s assessment of
the reasonably possible change in foreign exchange rates. The
sensitivity analysis includes only outstanding foreign currency
denominated monetary items and adjusts their translation at
the end of reporting period for a 5% change in foreign currency
rates. A positive (negative) number below indicates an increase
(decrease) in post-tax profit for the year where RMB strengthens
against the relevant currency. For a 5% weakening of RMB against
the relevant currency, there would be an equal and opposite
impact on the profit for the year.

TRENAEEHARE L BRINE
BE R T R T EE5% 2 BURE R 15 o
SRR EREHINEERAIGERIEE
HHRHE - HREDTEBRIEAINE
SHEMEHAXNEEERE - TRER
& HAF] 4 2R Ry LA SNIS B R A2 5% 1 TE
P THES(BBR)BTREA
RERBRINEERE - FRRBIE
EAMEIEMORD) - AREEBRE
HE355% - WERENRBREE
MERFE -

Year ended 31 December

BZ12A31HLEE
2015 2014
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT R ARETT
Increase in profit for the year (US$) FREFBIEIN(ET) 24,669 24,706
Decrease in profit for the year (HK$) RS TR A G i) (237) (16,917)

In management’'s opinion, the sensitivity analysis is
unrepresentative of the inherent foreign exchange risk as the year
end exposure at the end of reporting period does not reflect the
exposure during that particular year.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e PR R MR (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2015 & Z2015F 12531 H 1 F/Z

7. Financial Instruments continued)

b.

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

Credit risk

At the end of reporting period, the Group’s maximum exposure
to credit risk which will cause a financial loss to the Group due
to failure to discharge an obligation by the counterparties and
financial guarantees issued by the Group is arising from the
carrying amount of the respective recognised financial assets as
stated in the consolidated statement of financial position and the
amount of contingent liabilities in relation to financial guarantee
issued by the Group as disclosed in note 38.

The Group’s credit risk primarily relates to the Group's trade
receivables, other receivables, bank balances and restricted
bank deposits. The credit risk on bank balances and deposits is
limited because the bank balances and restricted bank deposits
are maintained with large commercial banks in the PRC and Hong
Kong.

As at 31 December 2015, 83% of trade receivables were from the
fee income derived from land development for sale (31 December
2014: 89%), details of which are set out in note 26, and therefore
there is concentration of risk as all these receivables would be
settled by the local government authorities to the Group after
the local government authorities received the proceeds from the
successful land buyers. The Directors consider that the credit risk
is low as land development for sale is sold through public auction,
tender or listing to qualified land buyers, whose qualifications are
verified by relevant government authorities and buyers have paid
a portion of proceeds to the Group as performance bonds which is
disclosed as refundable deposits received for land auction, tender
and listing in note 30.

In addition, the Group has concentration of credit risk in respect of
trade receivables in respect of sale of the whole block of buildings
to entities controlled by local government authorities (note 27) and
other receivables from the government authority (note 28(a)and
(). In order to minimize the credit risk on trade receivables and
other receivables, the Directors continuously monitor the credit
quality and financial conditions of those debtors and the level of
trade receivables and other receivables to ensure that follow-up
action is taken timely to recover overdue debts. In this regard, the
Directors consider that the Group’s credit risk in respect of the
above is significantly reduced.
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e PR R MR (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2015 & Z2015F 12531 H 1 F/Z

7. Financial Instruments continued)

b.

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

Credit risk (continued)

For properties that are presold but development has not been
completed, the Group typically provides guarantees to banks in
connection with the customers’ borrowing of mortgage loans to
finance their purchase of the properties for an amount up to 70%
of the purchase price of the individual property. If a purchaser
defaults on the payment of its mortgage during the period of
guarantee, the bank holding the mortgage may demand the
Group to repay the outstanding loan and any interest accrued
thereon. Under such circumstances, the Group is able to forfeit
the sales deposit received and resell the repossessed properties.
Therefore, the management considers the Group would likely
recover any loss incurred arising from the guarantees. The
management considers the credit risk exposure to financial
guarantees provided to property purchasers is limited because
the facilities are secured by the properties and the market price
of the properties is usually higher than the guaranteed amounts.
In this regard, the directors consider that the Group’s credit risk is
significantly reduced.

In addition, the Group is exposed to credit risk in relation to
financial guarantees provided to banks for facilities granted to
independent third party and an associate of the Group. The Group's
maximum exposure in this respect is the maximum amount the
Group could have to pay if the guarantee is called on (note 38).
The Group's exposure in this respect and the credit rating of the
counterparty is continuously monitored. As such, the Directors
are of the view that the credit risk on financial guarantees issued
by the Group in this respect is limited.

Liquidity risk
The Group finances its working capital requirements through a
combination of funds generated from operations and bank and
other borrowings.

The following table details the Group’s remaining contractual
maturity for its non-derivative financial liabilities. The table has
been drawn up based on the undiscounted cash flows of financial
liabilities based on the earliest date on which the Group can be
required to pay. Specifically, bank loans and other borrowings
with a repayable on demand clause were included in the earliest
time band regardless of the probability of the lenders choosing to
exercise their rights. The maturity dates for other non-derivative
financial liabilities are based on the agreed repayment dates.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e PR R MR (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2015 & Z2015F 12531 H 1 F/Z

7. Financial Instruments (continueq)
Financial risk management objectives and

b.

policies (continued)
Liquidity risk (continued)

The table includes both interest and principal cash flows. To the
extent that interest flows are floating rate, the undiscounted
amount is derived from interest rate at the end of reporting

BT HE e
b. HEEKEERE
RBESER(E)

ERBUR(8)

TRAKBENEEREHEERE -
ENERERZEFE  KINESEE
R E S WG SRR FE -

period.
Undiscounted cash flows
AMBERERER
Over Over
Weighted ~ On demand, oneyear  twoyears Total
average  orlessthan butlessthan butlessthan  More than undiscounted Carrying
interest rate oneyear  twoyears  fiveyears  fiveyears  cashflows amount
BREX —E4B REAE bS]
mE  AIR-E SRTE HREE ity ReRE
FHRIE hiEE hiEE hiEE EE E e
% RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT  ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR
At 31 December 2015 #2015%12A31A
Trade and other payables N REMENTE 928,308 - - - 928,308 928,308
Amounts due to related parties R BB 53R 3,104 - - - 3,104 3,104
Bank and other borrowings BIREMER
- Fixed rate -8 10.40 1,954,864 701,389 311,817 - 2,968,070 2,699,668
- Variable rate %8 6.13 105,405 372,426 203,262 20,613 701,706 633,218
- Interest free -28 - 20,000 - - - 20,000 20,000
Convertible Bonds and Notes BES G EY 16.10 58,655 58,655 638,369 - 755,679 579,714
Financial guarantee contracts  BI2RAYN 786,105 - - - 786,105 -
Total et 3,856,351 1,132,470 1,153,448 20,613 6,162,882 4,864,012
At 31 December 2014 #2014512A31R
Trade and other payables [ER REMERNTE - 984,046 - - - 984,046 984,046
Amounts due to related parties  FEBE A FUA - 3,104 - - - 3,104 3,104
Bank and other borrowings FIRAMER
-Fixed rate -EE 1276 1,772,386 321970 429993 2,524,349 2,245,593
- Variable rate 3 699 267,163 93,169 296,495 93,146 749973 664,126
Financial guarantee contracts  BIERAHD - 843713 - - - 843713 -
Total st 3,870,412 415139 726,438 93,146 5,105,185 3,896,869
The amounts included above for bank and other borrowings /¥§JJ $H’J“§J}*ﬁ‘%ﬂﬁé%$ﬁ%%ﬁ&ﬁ

with variable interest rate is subject to change if changes in
variable interest rates differ to those estimates of interest rates

determined at the end of the reporting period.
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 & F20154F 12 531 H 1 F /&

7. Financial Instruments continued)

b.

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Liquidity risk (continued)

Bank and other borrowings with a repayment on demand clause
are included in the “on demand, or less than one year” time band
in the above maturity analysis. As at 31 December 2015, the
aggregate carrying amount of these borrowings amounted to Nil
(31 December 2014: RMB587,552,000).

The amounts included above for financial guarantee contracts are
the maximum amounts on the basis of the earliest date on which
the Group could be required to settle under the arrangement
for the full guaranteed amount if that amount is claimed by
the counterparty to the guarantee. Based on expectations at
the end of each reporting period, the Group considers that it is
more likely than not that such amount will not be payable under
the arrangement. However, this estimate is subject to change
depending on the probability of the counterparty claiming
under the guarantee which is a function of the likelihood that
the financial receivables held by the counterparty which are
guaranteed suffer credit losses.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e PR R MR (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2015 & Z2015F 12531 H 1 F/Z

7. Financial Instruments continued)

C.

Fair values of financial instruments
This note provides information about how the Group determines
fair value of certain financial assets and liabilities.

Fair value of the Group’s financial liabilities
that are measured at fair value on a recurring
basis

Certain of the Group's financial liability is measured at fair value
at the end of each reporting period. The following table gives
information about how the fair value of this financial liability is
determined (in particular, the valuation techniques and inputs

BT R

C.

MBETANDFE
SR LR T £ B R IR — L
B AENMBAENODTE -

SEMBREN D FERUE
LEBITEN

SEM - EFBAEITERS RN
NFEFEN - LT RBGEH TER
B BEN R TEZ A REE R (5
RIRFTEIDENBANEIR) o

used).

Fair value
as at
31 December
Financial 2015  Fair value Valuation techniques Significant unobservable
liability (RMB’000) hierarchy and key inputs input(s)
20155
12A318
BBaE WAFE AVESE BRCEAEEIEET PN ¢ EZNTHBENEABE
Conversion option 62,643  Level3 Binominal Tree Pricing Model  Binominal Tree Pricing Model
derivative E XY EERR “XYEERR
ABAMENTEm

The key inputs are:

1) USS$ Risk Free Rate

2) HKS Risk Free Rate

3) Dividend Yield

4) Underlying Asset Value
5) Exercise Price

6) Volatility
EERARE

1) ErmERE
2) ?é'ﬁ%ﬁﬂlﬁﬁ
3) }

4) miﬁﬂﬁﬁ
5) 1THE(E

6) KENE

Discount Cash Flow Method
RERMRE

The key inputs are:
1) Discount Rate
2) Payment Terms
EERARE

1) BRER &

R

The input is:

1) Volatility: 41.48%.
BABIRR -

1) KEIEA1.81%

Discount Cash Flow Method
RERBRE

The key input is:

1) Discount Rate: 16.10%;
BABIRR -

1) BEERE16.10%
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e ISR R R ()

For the year ended 31 December 2015 & Z2015F 12531 H 1 F/Z

7. Financial Instruments (continueq) 7. BB IR
c. Fair values of financial instruments (Continued) c. BBRIBENAFE®E)
Fair value of the Group’s financial assets and SENMBEENGEERET
financial liabilities that are not measured at REBAFEKETENE
fair value on a recurring basis (but fair value REEEQALENKE)
disclosure are required)
The Directors consider that the carrying amounts of financial EEZRBFEAUBHREPHMBEEM
assets and financial liabilities recognised in the consolidated B aENREESEEREIREM
financial statements approximate to their fair values: HATE :
Reconciliation of level 3 fair value measurement of financial F-EBROVKBERAFEFTENZ
liability: ES
RMB'000
ARETT
At the date of issuance #17H 62,279
Fair value change recognised in profit or loss FERRRERNRTEZ L -
Exchange realignment fE R R 364
At end of year FR 62,643
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e PR R MR (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2015 & Z2015F 12531 H 1 F/Z

8. Revenue 8. WA
The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue for the year ended AT REBEZE2015F12A31AH KA D
31 December 2015. #r o

Year ended 31 December

BZ12A31MHLEE
2015 2014
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®BTT ARETT
Fee income from the sales of land T R WA
development for sales 472,197 1,046,312
Revenue from the sales of properties MR ERIWA 940,921 1,332,033
Revenue from property leasing VISR E =B 10,588 12,860
1,423,706 2,391,205
9. Segment Information 9. AEWEE
The executive directors of the Company are identified as the chief MAORERMTEEEN S - AEEER
operating decision maker (the “CODM") of the Group for the purposes BATEENEZELEREE([COMD]) °
of resources allocation and performance assessment. The information BB RN h A A £ B RE
reported to the CODM for the purposes of resources allocation and EERNHEARFSEPRARNERNF AR
performance assessment focuses specifically on respective businesses %o REEMKERREDHWAT
of the Group. The Group’s operating and reportable segments are as
follows:
Land development - Land infrastructure development T iFEEE THERREER
Property development - Development and sale of properties MEERE YEBRENEE
Property leasing - Lease of properties MmEEE HEWHE
Inter-segment sales are transacted with reference to the selling prices AEEHE2RARKRRITMBRE=F
used for sales made to third parties at the prevailing market price. HENEBETRS -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e ISR R R ()

For the year ended 31 December 2015 & Z2015F 12531 H 1 F/Z

9. Segment Information (continued) 9. DEBEEw@®
Segment revenue and results DEBUMA R %4

Land Property Property Segment
development  development leasing total  Eliminations Total
TiER% NERR NERE AEEH AR &it
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTR  ARETR  ARMTR  AR%TR  ARETR  ARETR

For the year ended E1E2015%12A318
31 December 2015
Segment revenue AEE
- External segment revenue — 5905 Bl 472,197 940,921 10,588 1,423,706 - 1,423,706
- Inter-segment revente —HR5 HliE 77,151 - - 77,151 (77,151) -
Consolidated revenue el 549,348 940,921 10,588 1,500,857 (77,151) 1,423,706
Segment results At 512,098 212,298 125,893 850,289 (77,151) 773,138

Unallocated profit or loss items: FROBHEMELEER

Other income HipA 3,937
Other expenses HiH% (1,285)
Other gains and losses HtolhaRER (11,318)
Selling and marketing expenses WERTETEES (12,819)
Administrative expenses THRAEX (70,689)
Profit hefore tax BH AT 680,964
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e ISR R R ()

For the year ended 31 December 2015 & Z2015F 12531 H 1 F/Z

9. Segment Information (continuea) 9.

Segment revenue and results (continued)

PEEE @
DENE R EE (5

Land Property Property Segment
development  development leasing total Eliminations Total
% NERRE MERE PEE BHHEE B
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTL ARBFL ARBTL ARBF ARBTL ARBFL
For the year ended E1L2014%12A318
31 December 2014
Segment revenue AEE
- External segment revenue —HNA kg 1,046,312 1,332,033 12,860 2,391,205 - 2,391,205
- Inter-segment revenue —$RH Bz - - - _ _ _
Consolidated revenue ralia 1,046,312 1,332,033 12,860 2,391,205 - 2,391,205
Segment results At 754,138 245338 30,103 1,029,579 - 1,029,579
Unallocated profit or loss items: ROPFBMELER
Other income HitA 766
Other expenses HiH% (32,207)
Other gains and losses EfbEREE 1629
Seling and marketing expenses  $EERWSTHER (14,124)
Administrative expenses THEY (53,99)
Profit before tax BHAT R 931,647

The accounting policies of the operating and reportable segments
information are the same as the Group’s accounting policies described
in note 4 to these consolidated financial statements. Segment results
represent the profit earned by each segment without allocation of
certain items incurred for central management purpose, including
certain other income, other expenses, other gains and losses, selling
and marketing expenses, and administrative expenses. This is the
measure reported to the CODM for the purposes of resources allocation
and assessment of segment performance.

BERATREDBEHN ST RRELGS
S 75 SR 2 N RE A AT et ) AN 52 ) B AR R SR AR
Fl e DEEEERDEF P REEME
EWMETEBRR - &5 WA T (&
18) BERETEMKA - Etisx - Bl
Was LR - HERTIZTERX - TR
R - kAR ERDERS BREFET
[ B L ERR IR -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e ISR R R ()

For the year ended 31 December 2015 & Z2015F 12531 H 1 F/Z

9. Segment Information (continue)
Segment assets and liabilities

9. DEBEEw@®
DPEEEN D HERB

Land Property Property
development development leasing Total
T i pAE MERR YEEE &&t
RMB’000 RMB’'000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARBT T AR¥T T AR¥T T
As at 31 December 2015 B Z2015%12831H
Segment assets DEEE 3,306,837 4,084,814 942,800 8,334,451
Inter-segment elimination A EREEE (400,908)
Unallocated assets: KOEEE -
Property, plant and equipment 4% - HiE k& 26,058
Deferred tax assets RERIBE B 34,548
Prepayments and other TE A FRIE R H A FE U
receivables Ia 39,557
Bank balances and cash IRITHEHB LIRS 232,568
Income tax recoverable AR E S 42,989
Total assets BEE 8,309,263
Segment liabilities HEEE 2,900,728 1,899,219 = 4,799,947
Inter-segment elimination A ERHEE (400,908)
Unallocated liabilities: KoHasE
Other payables HAb R FE 28,983
Amount due to a related party FEASTRAES T RIE 3,104
Current tax liabilities mEIEAE 340,187
Convertible Bonds and Notes ARG S R EE 579,714
Derivative PTHEMBIA 62,643
Deferred tax liabilities RERIEAE 74,270
Total liabilities Y=Y 5,487,940
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9. Segment Information (continuea)

9. DEBEEw

Segment assets and liabilities (continued) PEEENMs BEE )
Land Property Property
development  development leasing Total
T iFIE YIEER MERE At
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBFT ARETFT ARETRT ARBTT

As at 31 December 2014 B Z£2014%12831H
Segment assets DEVEE 2,263,485 3,909,962 747,600 6,926,234
Inter-segment elimination A EBEEE (444,908)
Unallocated assets: ROEAE

Property, plant and equipment  ¥1¥ - BiE M RE 28,274

Deferred tax assets RERIBE E 26,086

Prepayments and other TERTRRIE I H UL

receivables HIE 43,414

Bank balances and cash WITER KIS 366,348
Total assets wEE 6,940,261
Segment liabilities AEEE 2,700,265 1,895,268 - 4,595,533
Inter-segment elimination D ERHEE (444,908)
Unallocated liabilities: RoEFarlsE -

Other payables HAb e RIE 40,049

Amount due to a related party  FE{BEEE 5 2IE 3,104

Current tax liabilities REBIEEE 200,732

Deferred tax liabilities EERIE AR 44,943
Total liabilities BEE 4,439,453
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e ISR R R ()

For the year ended 31 December 2015 & Z2015F 12531 H 1 F/Z

9. Segment Information (continue)
Segment assets and liabilities (continued)
For the purposes of assessing segment performance and allocating
resources between segments:

. Other than those incurred for central management purpose,
including certain property, plant and equipment, deferred tax
assets, certain prepayments and other receivables, income tax
recoverable and certain bank balances and cash, all other assets
are allocated to segment assets; and

. Other than those incurred for central management purpose,
including certain other payables, amount due to a related party,
current tax liabilities, Convertible Bonds and Notes, derivative and
deferred tax liabilities, all other liabilities are allocated to segment

liabilities.

Other segment information

Year ended 31 December 2015
Amounts included in the measurement of segment profit or loss or

7 EME R o)
DHEEMDWEME )
B RRAES BHTAR

BThREEMELANEE(BEE
TUWE  WELRE  BREHES
E - BTENFAREGRKR -

AUREIPTISHE - B T RN BIEE 77 508
RETRITHEBRRAE)I - EE

MWEEDBEDFEE + M

AR RERME LS (BIEE
FHALEAHOR - & TR BI85 3

B RYBEEBEREEMEHE
B fEEBAENEEED A
f& e

Hip 5 HER

8z

2015%12A31H8

SRBENBNBAND LEENTE

segment assets
Land Property Property Segment
development  development leasing total  Elimination  Unallocated ~ Consolidated
TIbER NERR NERE k) vk ES) aff
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTR  ARMTR  ARETr  ARETR  ARETR  ARETn  ARETx
Addition tonon-current assets  JEREVEEMEM 923 1,416 = 2,339 = 2,233 4,572
Interest in associates REERRANER 68,051 79,376 - 147,427 - - 147,421
Interest income FIEIMA 131,842 422 - 132,264 (123,702) 3,937 12,499
Interest expense MER%
- Charge to the profit or oss AR 76,069 - - 76,069 - - 76,069
- Capitalisation -yl 233,895 123,702 - 357,597 (123,702) - 233,895
Gain on disposal of property, HENE  BER
plant and equipment RENEE 2 164 - 405 - 94 499
Share of profit of associates JEleH e Dl (3,026) (15,611) - (18,637) - - (18,637)
Depreciation ik 1,002 210 - 1,212 - 2,117 3,329
Prepaid lease payments BREEENEM
released to profit or loss ] - 75 - 75 - - 75
Change in fair value of REMEATE
investment properties g = - 115,529 115,529 - - 115,529
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 & F2015F 12 531 H i1 F /&

9. Segment Information (continued) 9. FHFEE @
Hihn EES @)

Other segment information (continued)
Year ended 31 December 2014
Amounts included in the measurement of segment profit or loss or

E%E2014512A31H
SEREAPNIBELS WEENTE

segment assets
Land Property Property Segment
development  development leasing total Elimination ~ Unallocated  Consolidated
TR NEER ELiEL R HHEE RO ELi
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT AREFT  ARETr  ARETR  ARET:R AREFT ARETT
Addition to non-current assets FREEEMEM 2,604 293 - 2897 - 507 3,404
Interest in associates REERANER 25825 63,765 - 89,59 - - 89,590
Interest income FlEMA 139,062 207 - 139,269 (112,828) 766 27,207
Interest expense MERR
- Charge to the profit or loss —HABR 111,575 - - 111,575 - - 111,575
- Capitalisation .4 188,813 150227 - 339,040 (112,828) - 26212
(Gain on disposal of property, HENE  BER
plant and equipment Btioles 4 16 - 440 - 68 508
Share of (profit) loss of associates — FE(REE 2R AR (1432) 5875 - 4,443 - 4,443
Depreciation HE 1,001 511 - 1,512 - 2332 3844
Prepaid lease payments BREEENEN
released to profit or loss REFE - 75 - 75 - - 75
Change in fair value of REMELTE
investment properties 2§ - - 17,600 17,600 - - 17,600
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 & Z2015F 12531 H 1 F/Z

9. Segment Information (continued) 9. ZEEEw
Information about major customers EBEXEEZEFNER
Revenue from customers individually contributing over 10% of the KEHMAEBRZFI0%A FHEEHNS A
Group's revenue is as follows: WEsanT

Year ended 31 December

BE12A3MALEE
2015 2014
RMB'000 RMB'000
AR¥T T ARBFT
Customer A2 BPA? 374,335 N/A1
Customer B2 =FB? N/A 451,014
374,335 451,014
Notes: BT
1. The corresponding revenue did not contribute over 10% of the Group's 1. AEREIEAREE RS THEIE10% °
revenue.
2. Fee income from land development. 2. TR EUTA o
The Group's revenue from external customers by location of operations AEERBHASEE RS ERIN
of the relevant group entities is derived solely in the PRC. Non-current AEEWXERETR  MAEEREE
assets of the Group by location of assets are all located in the PRC. 2D IE R ENEE R 2 SR AR E o
10. Other Income and Expenses 10. Hbg A B X
Year ended 31 December
BZ12A31BLEE
2015 2014
RMB’'000 RMB'000
AR¥F T ARBFT
Other income: = N
Interest income on bank deposits RITIF A BUA 12,499 27,207
Interest income on trade receivables and B 5 RE M EYGRIAFE
other receivables WA 12,387 -
Compensation income (note a) ABEWA (F3Ea) 109,237 -
Government grants BT ED 4,270 5,810
Others HAt 4,091 459
142,484 33,476
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 & F2015F 12 531 H i1 F /&

10. Other Income and EXpenses (continued)

10. HW A FBI X )

Year ended 31 December

HZE1283181LLEE

2015 2014
RMB’000 RMB'000
ART AERETT

Other expenses: HiAY -
Penalty charges (note b) SIFR(BI5ED) (104) (888)
Donations B (600) (997)
Listing expenses EWEA = (28,904)
Convertible Bonds issuance costs AERELEITER (724) -
Others Hih (561) (2,000)
(1,989) (32,789)

Notes:

a. The amount mainly represented the compensation from the local
government authority for loss incurred by the Group in a land development
for sales transaction.

b. Amounts mainly represented penalty charged to the Group for early
commencement of construction activities without obtaining appropriate
approval documents from relevant government authorities.

HEBATE R BT REE LI
BRI A EIRNHE -

SREERAAKEER A MR
R R T A4 8 1 15 0 2 R B T S T 1 &1
BRHIEISE
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e ISR R R ()

For the year ended 31 December 2015 & Z2015F 12531 H 1 F/Z

11. Other Gains and Losses 1. Hitlhm REE
Year ended 31 December
BE12A3MALEE
2015 2014
RMB'000 RMB'000
AR¥F T ARBFT
Net gains and losses ERERAIEEES
Exchange (losses) gains, net b 5 S e (18,786) 13,465
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary (note 42) BB — A s (f5E42) 34,567 -
Loss on dissolution of an associate R AL — B A REE = (236)
Gain on acquisition of the remaining equity IR A BN RIS
interest in the joint venture (note 41) Wz (Mf5E41) = 1,515
Gain on disposal of property, plant and BEEME - HEREED
equipment, net s 499 508
Gain on disposal of properties BEEFERAETRYED
under development (note a) Wzs (FsEa) 13,603 -
Others Hih 4,690 10,046
34,573 25,298
Notes: BT
a.  The amount represented gain on disposal of certain properties under a. B AZHEERENIS2LETML
development to the local government as a result of change in local U I T 2 AR ) S AR S R B R ) M IR
commercial development plan. o
12. Finance Costs 12. BB LA

Year ended 31 December

HZE12A3181LEE
2015 2014
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET T ARET T
Interests on bank loans IRITERNFE (70,526) (106,593)
Interests on other loans HEMERNFE (239,438) (231,194)
Total borrowing costs Ep - (309,964) (337,787)

Less: Amount capitalised in land development & : & HHFIEIEE R
for sale EX 25 110,193 75,985
Amount capitalised in properties under FEMEPYED

development for sale =N gt 123,702 150,227
(76,069) (111,575)

Borrowing costs capitalised during 2015 and 2014 arose on specific
borrowings.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e PR R MR (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2015 & Z2015F 12531 H 1 F/Z

13. Profit Before Tax

13. BFRBLATE R

Profit before tax has been arrived at after charging:

BATAMER ISR THISIRRSH

Year ended 31 December

BZE12A31BLEE
2015 2014
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET ARETT
Directors’ emoluments EEEa0) 9,502 5,384
(including share-based payment expenses) (BEROZAAER)
Staff costs B IRA
Salaries, wages and other benefits e IEREMEAR 71,594 53,583
Contribution to retirement benefits scheme RNBAIFTEIfER 8,912 12,577
Share-based payment expenses S ANE=dE 4,037 -
Total staff costs (including Director’s BT AEE(BEESHM)
emoluments) 94,045 71,544
Less: Amount capitalised in land development & : &+ IEE &)
for sale BER TR (8,598) (7,893)
Amount capitalised in properties under HERBPMEN
development for sale BN RE (3,276) (5,362)
82,171 58,289
Rental income from property leasing classified 93 AR & MR
as investment properties WEREWRA 10,588 12,860
Less: Direct operating expense B MEREEZCERY
for property leasing (224) (357)
10,364 12,503
Cost of properties sold SR/ ES7 %N 745,943 1,073,545
Cost of land development for sale FFETHFBEIE R AR 66,556 189,211
Operating lease rental expense KEHEHSRY 10,515 4,766
Auditor’s remuneration ZEENEN & 2,801 2,195
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment  ¥1% - BB REEETE 3,329 3,844
Prepaid lease payments released to ER S IBRMBENAERE
profit or 10ss 75 75
Listing expenses il - 28,904
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14. Emoluments of Directors, Chief Executive 14.B= - (THARRANES
and the Five Highest Paid Individuals A TR EH N

Emoluments
The emoluments paid or payable to the Directors were as follows: ESENRARESNFHMAOT
Contribution
Salaries to retirement Discretionary Share-based
and other benefits performance- payment
Fees benefits scheme related bonus expense Total
Fem RIKER REHN Bt
He Hitt g R STt WS *HER @it

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR  AR®TR  ARBTRr  ARETR  ARETR  ARETx

Year ended 31 December BZ2015%128318

2015 I35
Executive directors: HTEE:
Wang Jianjun (Note) FEE () - 889 26 - - 915
Yang Yun Bh - 355 26 216 238 835
Wang Yagang TR - 355 26 216 238 835
Huang Peikun B - 3,401 15 2,267 238 5,921
Non-executive director: FHTES
Zhao Ying HE - 246 12 - - 258
Independent non-executive BUFHTES:
directors:
Zhang Xiaomei R 246 - - - - 246
Wei Yu BF 246 - - - - 246
Dr. Wong Wing Kuen, Albert TKERL 246 - - - - 246

738 5,246 105 2,699 714 9,502
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 & Z2015F 12531 H 1 F/Z

14. Emoluments of Directors, Chief Executive

14.8% - THEBRANVES

and the Five Highest Paid Individuals FATHEHEN o
Emoluments (continuea)
Contribution
Salaries  toretirement  Discretionary
and other benefits  performance-
Fees benefits scheme  related bonus Total
el RINEH A
ik Hi g REESA [ibj=paral st
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETT ARETR ARETT ARETT
Year ended 31 December HZ2014%12A318
2014 LEE
Executive directors: HITES
Wang Jianjun (Note) TEE(H) - 566 16 - 582
Yang Yun Bh - 287 16 179 482
Wang Yagang TRl - 295 16 184 495
Huang Peikun (appointed EEH(R20145F
on 17 March 2014) 3A17HEZRE) - 1,921 1 1,281 3213
Non-executive director: FRiTES
Zhao Ying (appointed HBA(R20145
on 13 February 2014) 2ABEEEME) - 296 16 - 312
Independent non-executive BUFHTES:
directors:
Zhang Xiaomei (appointed REER (720145
0n 6 Augutst 2014) 8H6REZIE) 100 - - - 100
Wei Yu (appointed BT (20145
on 6 August 2014) 8R6HEZRT) 100 - - - 100
Dr. Wong Wing Kuen, Albert TokEHL(R2014F
(appointed on 6 August 2014) SH6REZRIT) 100 - - - 100
300 3,365 75 1,644 5,384

Note: Mr. Wang Jianjun is also the president (regarded as chief executive) of
the Company and his emoluments disclosed above also include those for
services rendered by him as the president.

The emoluments paid or payable to the Directors before the Company’s
incorporation on 13 February 2014 represented emoluments paid or
payable to them by subsidiaries of the Company.

Bonuses are calculated based on the Group’s or respective member’s
performance for such financial year.

MiEE : EREAREMARRTAH FTHRAR) -
b B A ) B AL B AR R R AR R T R
HIRTS PR Hr A -

RARRR201452 B13B i+ B B4 &
ENARBEZNHIEAQBMNEBAQF
B sk A B -

TEARAEERAERSZKEREE B
BFEORBEFE
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e PR R MR (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2015 & Z2015F 12531 H 1 F/Z

14. Emoluments of Directors, Chief Executive 14.2% - THARBRRANES

and the Five Highest Paid Individuals FATHHMN
Emoluments (continued)
Five highest paid individuals FfuBEHFAL

The five highest paid individuals include four individuals disclosed as
the Directors for the year ended 31 December 2015 (year ended 31
December 2014 four individuals). The emoluments of the remaining
one highest paid individual for the year ended 31 December 2015 (year
ended 31 December 2014: one individual) are as follows:

HZE2015F12A31BLLFE - Afisem %
AT BEEXFEREAARARESBMHEOA
(BZ=2014F12831HIEFE « UAL) A
+ - HE2015F12A3MBILLFE  Hip—
L (BZE2014F12A31BIEFE  — )&
B AT RINT

Year ended 31 December

BE12A31MALEE
2015 2014
RMB’'000 RMB'000
ARETR ARBFT
Salaries and other benefits e kEMER 362 315
Discretionary performance-related bonus FIEMAIBTEA 240 226
Share-based payment expenses GEENE=d:E 238 -
840 541

Bonuses are calculated based on the Group's or respective member’s
performance for such financial year.

Except for two (year ended 31 December 2014: one) executive
directors, each of the above highest paid individuals in the Group was
with emoluments below HK$1,000,000 for respective year.

For the years ended 31 December 2015 and 2014, none of the Directors
nor the five highest paid individuals waived any emoluments and no
emoluments were paid by the Group to any of the Directors and the five
highest paid individuals as an inducement to join or upon joining the
Group or as compensation for loss of office.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e ISR R R ()

For the year ended 31 December 2015 & Z2015F 12531 H 1 F/Z

15.Income Tax Expense

15. FRG iR <

Year ended 31 December

BZ12A31HLLEE
2015 2014
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥T T AERETT
Current tax: EHEH
- PRC enterprise income tax — R EMEH (142,290) (197,064)
— Land appreciation tax — T HIRER (9.479) (24,881)
— Over provision for prior year — AR E HRE RS 5,251 5,918
(146,518) (216,027)
Deferred tax (note 24) JRIEFIIA (20,865) (15,022
(167,383) (231,049)

Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% of the estimated assessable
profit generated in Hong Kong for the year ended 31 December 2015
(2014:16.5%). No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax has been made
in the consolidated financial statements as the Group’s subsidiaries in
Hong Kong had no assessable profit.

Certain subsidiaries of the Group, Langfang Sheng Shi Construction
& Investment Co., Ltd.("Langfang Sheng Shi Construction”), Langfang
Hongsheng Real Estate Development Co., Ltd.("Langfang Hongsheng")
and Langfang Yonglun Property Development Co., Ltd.("Langfang
Yonglun”), were subject to the PRC enterprise income tax at a tax
rate of 25% on a verification collection basis at deemed profit which
represents 10% or 15% of its revenue after adjusting the non-deductible
subsidies paid to customers (enterprises establishing their businesses
in Longhe Park) for the year ended 31 December 2013 in accordance
with authorized tax valuation method (#ZE &%) approved by local tax
bureau pursuant to the applicable PRC tax regulations (the “Deemed
Profit Basis”). From 1 January 2014, the three subsidiaries of the Group
mentioned above no longer enjoyed the tax benefit of the authorized
tax valuation method.

HE2015F12A31BIEFE - FFFEH
BB BEEMNGTERBEAEN16.5%TE
(20144 16.5%) > AR EEBRE A
BARYEERYE AR EHBEHRER
RAREEFEBIELIEE -

REFRBABGKET  AEEETHE
AR TR R ([ B Bt ])
B mEAREEZEERERAR([BH A
B ) REB Tk R B EMZEERAE (B
Yok ) BIRAEEBUEE - A 5 RSB
O R E SRR IE BE R e R (BNE =
2013512 A31 A I FF E ek ) (812 S (TR B
A RHEEPHEER P AN IR
Bh AR 18 19 10%3% 15% 48 40 7R 2R A25% K] P
BI¥EFREH - 20141818 L=
SOl UNCI RN SR At g 0k )
BES -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e ISR R R ()

For the year ended 31 December 2015 & Z2015F 12531 H 1 F/Z

15.Income Tax Expense (Continued)
The PRC enterprise income tax rate for the PRC subsidiaries of the
Group was 25% for the year ended 31 December 2015 (2014: 25%).

According to the requirements of the Provisional Regulations of the PRC
on Land Appreciation Tax ("LAT") (1 2& A R HF1E + b 32 E L1 T14471)
effective from 1 January 1994, and the Detailed Implementation Rules
on the Provisional Regulations of the PRC on LAT (R #E A B R0 £ h,
BEFRIITIENE AL effective from 27 January 1995, all income
from the sale or transfer of state-owned land use rights and buildings
in the PRC (being the proceeds of sales of properties less deductible
expenditures including borrowing costs and property development
expenditures) is subject to LAT at progressive rates ranging from 30%
to 60% of the appreciation of land value with an exemption provided
for property sales of ordinary residential properties (Ei@iZ# (T =) if
their appreciation values do not exceed 20% of the sum of the total
deductible items.

The tax charge can be reconciled to profit before tax as follows:

15. B FHMAXZ @

HE2015F12A3MBIEFE > pEEA
#)F X A B P15 B B 3R 5 25% (2014 4F -
25%) °

RIE1994F1 A1 HBA AR E AR
B 4t 3 (B B B 1T 1641 ) FN199541 A27 B
AR EE A R HEME 8 E R B 1T IE
BIEEMA]) - BT ERESABBAMAE R
ENBEBE0H L BEEFEEE -
H v BN & B 1t 4 s AR LA K
FEIENE RIS ERE(DEMERE TR
MERAREERERMYEREIL)RE
BIIN30%360%E) -3 B (E T -

TR TA ST H AT LA AT A A

Year ended 31 December

BEZ12A31HLLEE
2015 2014
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBET R ARETT
Profit before tax T A 680,964 931,647
Tax at PRC enterprise income tax rate of 25% LR B ZEMEH %t HHTIE (170,241) (232,912)
Effect on Deemed Profit Basis of enterprise TP TR E a5 M R
income tax (note) 2 (MisE) 14,122 18,065
Income not taxable for tax purposes TEFRHAUA = 379
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes RAIB RS (1,296) (1,762)
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised as A HERIELETRIEE ERTIIR
deferred tax assets BENRETE (12,769) (967)
Tax effect of share of profit (losses) of FE(GBE A A TIRLET (BE)
associates Eopabivs - 4,659 (1,111)
LAT TR ER (9.479) (24,881
Tax effect of LAT THPRERN G E 2,370 6,221
Over provision for prior year B FEEREEE 5,251 5,918
Income tax expense FriSRiF 2 (167,383) (231,049)

Note: Amount represents income tax calculated on Deemed Profit Basis of
unrealised profit earned in prior years but realised in the current year.

FIRE © 3% % TR 1 S AR B B
AT B B P K LR R R
HFTEREE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e PR R MR (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2015 & Z2015F 12531 H 1 F/Z

16. Dividend

17.

A final dividend of HK$0.1 per share in respect of the year ended
31 December 2015 amounting to HK$163,764,100 in aggregate has
been proposed by the Directors and is subject to the approval by the
shareholders in the forthcoming annual general meeting. The dividend
in respect of the year ended 31 December 2015 will be paid out from
the Company's share premium. In the opinion of the Directors, such
distribution is in compliance with the Articles of Association adopted by
the Company and also the Companies Law, Cap 22 (Law 3 of 1961, as
consolidated and revised) of the Cayman Islands.

During the reporting period, a final dividend of HK$0.15 per share
in respect of the year ended 31 December 2014 amounting to
HK$245,640,150 in aggregate (equivalent to RMB197,817,000) was paid
out from the Company's share premium on 29 May 2015.

16. RE

HE2015F12A31BIEFE  HEMRE
RER0.1BIEEEE R163,764,10078 1 -
ZERFEHESREWBEREERNE
ERRER A S E AR R E o BIF 20154512
ANBEENRBBRRARHRAEE
Lo KEBEFENHE  SESENEHE
HEMRARERURARIENE22Z (1961
FERES - BEWS—MER)

U BHRELE - BHE2014F12A8318 1E
FENGRERKRB015EEER - M5t
245,640,150 B E 1 A K1 197,817,000
JT  FA20154F5 A29 H R RIM AR 2SR [E R
XAt e

Earnings Per Share 17. 5REZR
The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings per share attributable SBATMEENERERETZENI
to owners of the Company is based on the following data: TEBHER
Year ended 31 December
BEZ12A31HLLEE
2015 2014
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBET ARETT
Earnings &R
Profit for the year attributable to owners REREARFME -
of the Company for the purpose KNEHEE AEEE R F)
of basic earnings per share 513,581 700,598
Adjustment to profit for the year attributable to Bt G &# S B )4
owners of the Company for the purpose of PiN/NGIE ¥ =Ny
diluted earnings per share FRmF AR
— Interest on Convertible Bonds — A EREH RS - N/A
Profit for the year attributable to owners of HERESENNE - AOEH
the Company for the purpose of diluted A AEIEFE RN
earnings per share 513,581 N/A
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e PR R MR (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2015 & Z2015F 12531 H 1 F/Z

17. Earnings Per Share (continued) 17. 8RB F )

Number of shares

MRE

Year ended 31 December

BEZ12A31HLLEE
2015 2014
‘000 ‘000
FB T
Weighted average number of ordinary shares HERERBTE
for the purposes of earnings per share DA A% 2 1,637,641 1,398,854
Effect of dilutive potential ordinary shares: BEAHBE T RRNTE
— Convertible Bonds — AERES 338 N/A
Weighted average number of ordinary shares for gt &A% B 2 F &Y
the purposes of diluted earnings per share DnAE 35 A% £ 1,637,979 N/A

The computation of the diluted earnings per share for the year ended
31 December 2015 has assumed the conversion of the Company’s
outstanding Convertible Bonds as the effect of conversion on earnings
per share are dilutive.

The computation of the diluted earnings per share for the year ended
31 December 2015 does not assume the exercise the share options
issued by the Company as the effect of their exercise on earnings per
share is anti-dilutive.

The number of ordinary shares for the purposes of calculating basic
earnings per share and diluted earnings per share for the year ended 31
December 2014 had been adjusted retrospectively assuming that the
Capitalization of Loan and Capitalization Issue as mentioned in note 34
(iv) have been effective from 1 January 2014.
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18. Property, Plant and Equipment

18.M15% - BMERRE

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e PR R MR (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2015 & Z2015F 12531 H 1 F/Z

Furniture,
Motor fittings and
Buildings vehicles equipment Total
KA H#E
BF RE & et
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETRT AR¥Tn AR¥Tn AR%¥Tx
Cost PR
At 1 January 2014 R2014%F1A418 34,170 6,680 6,536 47,386
Additions NE - 2,475 929 3,404
Disposals HeE - (3,235) - (3,235)
At 31 December 2014 20145128318 34,170 5,920 7,465 47,555
Additions NE 85 2,082 2,405 4,572
Disposals e - (1,172) (94) (1,266)
At 31 December 2015 20155128318 34,255 6,830 9,776 50,861
Depreciation e
At 1 January 2014 20141818 (7,051) (4,857) (4,756) (16,664)
Provided for the year FNEE (1,548) (1,397) (899) (3,844)
Eliminated on disposals R YT - 2,818 = 2,818
At 31 December 2014 20145128318 (8,599) (3,436) (5,655) (17,690)
Provided for the year FNEAE (1,545) (704) (1,080) (3,329)
Eliminated on disposals R - 857 16 873
At 31 December 2015 2015412 8318 (10,144) (3,283) (6,719) (20,146)
Carrying amount IREAE
At 31 December 2015 #2015%12 8318 24,111 3,547 3,057 30,715
At 31 December 2014 20145128318 25,571 2,484 1,810 29,865

The above items of property, plant and equipment are depreciated
on a straight-line basis, taking into account their residual value, at the
following rates per annum:

Buildings
Motor vehicles
Furniture, fittings and equipment

4.75%-4.85%
19%-19.4%
19%-19.4%

The above buildings are situated on land in the PRC under medium-
term leases (note 20).

The Group's property, plant and equipment with a carrying amount
of approximately of RMB23,236,000 were pledged to a non-financial
institute to secure a loan of RMB369,000,000, details of which are set
out in note 32(b)(ii).

bz - BB R&REE B RE KA
BEENERERUTEFLERTE

BF 4.75%-4.85%
A 19%-19.4%
RE - HEREE 19%-19.4%

Bt FuREPBEAGHRELOBEN L
b £ (FfEE20) ©

KEBOYE  BELEEFBEEEAR
#03,236,000CVE EREIFANRME=F
SE & B 18 1A R 369,000,000 7T 7 15
2 B EE3200)(i) °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e PR R MR (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2015 & Z2015F 12531 H 1 F/Z

19. Investment Properties 19. BREYE
Investment
properties
Completed held for/
investment under
properties development Total
BER BERET
REWMH REWMHE et
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBFT ARBFT AEETT
Fair value AEE
At 1 January 2014 R2014F1 718 697,700 32,300 730,000
Increase in fair value NEG I
- Unrealised gain — RIS 16,900 700 17,600
At 31 December 2014 H2014F12 4318 714,600 33,000 747,600
Additions 10 13,790 65,881 79,671
Transfer A 20,556 (20,556) -
Increase in fair value NFEEM
— Unrealised gain — REIRUR 53,854 61,675 115,529
At 31 December 2015 20156124318 802,800 140,000 942,800
The carrying amounts of investment properties, which are all situated it 2 P B BRI T YR B W) E BV AR
on land in Langfang city in the PRC, shown above comprise: HERE :
At 31 December
MA12A831H
2015 2014
RMB'000 RMB'000
AR¥ T AREFT
Medium-term leases FRERFRE 928,600 733,600
Long-term leases REAME 14,200 14,000
942,800 747,600
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19. Investment Properties (continued)

All of the Group's property interests held under operating leases to earn
rentals are measured using the fair value model and are classified and
accounted for as investment properties.

The fair values of the Group's investment properties were arrived at on
the basis of a valuation carried out at the end of respective reporting
periods by Savills Valuation and Professional Services Limited (“Savills
Valuation”), an independent qualified professional valuer not connected
with the Group.

The fair value of completed investment properties as at 31 December
2015 are determined based on the income capitalization method
whereby the rental income of contractual tenancies are capitalised
for the unexpired term of tenancies. The reversionary market rent
after the expiry of tenancies is also taken into account. The fair value
of investment properties held for/under construction relating to two
pieces of land yet to be developed are determined based on direct
comparison method by reference to market comparable and adjusted
to reflect the conditions and locations of the subject property.

In measuring the fair value of the properties, the highest and best use
of the properties is their current use.

As at 31 December 2015, the Group's investment properties with
carrying amount of approximately RMB106,800,000 (31 December 2014:
RMB124,300,000) were pledged to banks to secure certain banking
facilities granted to the Group, details of which are set out in note 32(a).

As at 31 December 2015, the Group’s investment properties with a
carrying amount of approximately RMB636,300,000 (31 December 2014:
RMB623,300,000) were pledged to trust fund companies to secure loans
of RMB600,000,000 from these trust fund companies, whose details are
set out in note 32(b)(i).

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e PR R MR (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2015 & Z2015F 12531 H 1 F/Z

19. REWE )

AEELZTHANZMARDNES BB K
REHEMEERAATEEXGE L H
DEEMFIR BN o

AEBREMENAFERSHRENMLE
REF-AFRAETHEREZERAER
RA([E KPR EEDIERNGE
FHE o HEAD 7 SR R B B B R e 10 B
SANE IR AR AD -

EEREEMEERET2015F12831BHA
FEEBAERNMOEREE - BIFFEREIE
LW - AR ETSHEETNEEE
W e B BHEPIREMEN T AR
Ty HAFERRAEELBIRETTR
E o B2EMS A LM EBELIEEESR
B RMEAR RN E o

R EREMERFER  WENRE K
RERESBATRE -

20156123318 » AEBEEREEELOA
R #106,800,0007T (52014412 A31H -
AR #¥124,300,0007T) (IR E W E D DR
BT UEBAEBERE TRITREN
IR - FEIBH N EES2() ©

20156123318 » AEBEEREEELOA
R % 636,300,0007T (722014412 A31H -
AR 623,300,0007T ) #)15% & 1) 3 B E 1
REREESAR - LEARZERESA
RIS —% A R #600,000,0007C & 7 EY K
o FEIBERIIES2(0)() ©
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e ISR R R ()

For the year ended 31 December 2015 & Z2015F 12531 H 1 F/Z

19. Investment Properties (continued)

The following table gives information about how the fair values of these
investment properties are determined (in particular, the valuation
techniques and inputs used), as well as the fair value hierarchy
into which the fair value measurements are categorised based on

19. BEWE )

the degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements is

observable.

At 31 December 2015

TREFZEREME R FEWNAHEE B
REFTERB A ERN RBARER) WER
AERBEATFEFEGABENTERER
ERRFEDH -

R®2015%12H31H

Investment properties Fair value Valuation technique(s) Relationship of
held by the Group hierarchy and key input(s) Significant unobservable input(s) unobservable inputs to fair value
REBEENRENE ATEER HERTRIERALT EXATTBERAYT AUERBAHZEATENEE
Investment properties-Completed Level3 Income capitalization Term yield, taking into account of yield Adlight increase in the term yield used would
REWE-ERT EZH method (term and generated from comparable properties and restltin a significant decrease in the fair value
reversionary approach) adjustment to reflect the certainty of term measurement of the investment properties,
WABRE (E8REEE)  income secured and to be received, of range and vice versa.
from 3.5% 10 5.0%. WTRAE BhaRT - AeERRENEATE
THE  SRTEEBEELONERAR  ERETE RoWE
BEEIE R RN RAE A TfE A28
B N F35%25%
The key inputs are Reversionary yield, taking into account annual A dlight increase in the reversionary yield used
() Termyield; unit market rental income and unit market would resuftin a significant decrease in the fair value
() Reversionary yield; value of the comparable properties, of range meastrement of the investment properties and vice
(3)  Market unit rent of from 4.0%t0 5.5% Versa.
indvidual unit, and GRS HRTELIMENEEEUTAR  WARRRELENA  NeSHRANE TE
() Level adjustment SWARENTE - NTRES5% EARTH R
IEBAER Market unit rent, using direct market comparable A slight increase in the market unit rent used would
() i and taking into account of time, location and other  result in a significant increase in the fair value
Q BEkE: indlividual factors such as size and quantum of measurement of the investment properties and vice
@ ERIELHTS properties, of range from RMB0.5/So.m./dayto— versa.
Bfig: R RMB1.9/50.m./day. FRETAELELHT  AISEHRENZAT
) KEEE mEENRS  FRERTAURNBEE R  EHEABLA K2
RER - pENEHERRE - BImEA R
2 NTEASTARARKOSTE
SRETARARE 2T -
Level adjustment on indivicual floors of the property - An increase in the level adjustment on individual
range from 25% o 45% on specific level. floors used would result in a decrease in the fair
EREBEDICERE  NTETEENDS  Value measurement of the investment properties by
245%- a lower percentage, and vice versa.
(RAERIE B KERE L - AleEER
EMELTEHENEONEAN TS  R2FA -
Investment properties - held Level3 Direct comparison method Accommodation value, using direct market An increase in the accommodation value used would
for/under development £=R The key input is: comparable and taking into account of time, resultin an increase in the fair value measurement
(two pieces of land yet to be (1) Steunitrate location and individual factors Such as size and of the investment properties, and vice versa.
developec) BRI Quantum of propertes range from AR BULE LA AISBRRANELT
RENE-HERL/ TR IEGNEES: RMB512/50.m to RMB993/s0.m. B2 R2A-
(MEHHAARE) () SSHEuLE BHBILE  FRERTAURLEEE R

HRER - HERERNER AR
B2 NTETIRARESIESTAR
937
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e ISR MR ()

For the year ended 31 December 2015 & F2015F 12 531 H i1 F /&

19. Investment Properties (continued)

At 31 December 2014

19. REWHE )

R2014512 A31H

Investment properties Fair value Valuation techniques) and Relationship of
held by the Group hierarchy key input(s) Significant unobservable input(s) Unobservable inputs to fair value
AEEFENRENE ATEER HERRTEEAET SXTTEREALT AIEER)EFELTENTEE
Investment properties-Completed Level3 Income capitalization Term yield, taking into account of yield Adlight increase in the term yield used would
ANE-ERT E= method (term and generated from comparable properties and resultin a significant decrease in the fair value
reversionary approach) adjustment to reflect the certainty of term measurement of the investment properties, and vice
WABR(E (FHREEE)  income secured and to be received, of range VIS,
from 3.5% 10 5.0%. (R ET ARk - le8aRANEAT 6
THbE HRTELENEEEMSERAR  ERETH RaDA-
BRI R R B A e A28
BN FI5%E%
The key inputs are Reversionary yield, taking into account annual Adlightincrease in the reversionary yield used
() Termyield; unit market rental income and unit market would result ina significant decrease in the fair value
() Reversionary yield; value of the comparable properties, of range measurement of the investment properties and vice
() Market unit rent of from 4.0% 0 5.5% VErsa.
individual unit; and FRlE  HRTELEMENFRBUTAE  WARRSRUENA  AeSIRENERTEN
() Level adjustment SWARBAITHE » NFA%Z55% ERETH R
IEHNEEE Market unit rent, using direct market Aslight increase in the market unit rent used would
() whhE: comparable and taking into account of time, result in a significant increase in the fair value
0 HEkE: location and other indvidual factors such as measurement of the investment properties and vice
@ [EREHTE size and quantum of properties, of range from Versa.
Bifie R RABO.5/sq.m./cay to RMB1.9/sq.m./cay. IFRATRELESRT - BIEBRRANEAT
) kERE mEELRS  RRERTAUMNBER R  EHEABLA RIHA-
R SENEMERRE - finmEA R
2 N TEASTHIRARKOSTZERE
THRAREIIT ° Anincrease in the level adjustment on individual
floors used would result in a decrease in the fair
Level adjustment on indivicual floors of the value measurement of the investment properties by
property range from 55% to 75% on specific level.  a lower percentage, and vice versa.
ERMEEEOKERE  NTHERENSY  WAFRENNERENKESELA Ble8iR
E75%¢ EMEATEENEOMAAL TS R -
Investment properties - held Level3 Direct comparison method Site unit rate, using direct market comparableand  An increase in the site unit rate used would result
for/under development £=5 The key input is: taking into account of time, location and individual  in a same percentage increase in the fair value
(a piece of land yet o be (1) Site unitrate factors such as Size and quantum of properties, of  measurement of the investment properties, and vice
developed) BRHBEEEAATEA:  RMBSI2SGM. VIS,

RENE -/ AR
(~BLRARE)

() BHEMULE

BHENNE  RRERTATHIEER Rt
BER - #HREIER  fnazARE
g BETIRARES T -

IFRRBHERILE L AIERHRENEAT
B ERERAALIE R -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e PR R MR (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2015 & Z2015F 12531 H 1 F/Z

19. Investment Properties continued) 19. BEWE )

20.

Fair value measurements and valuation processes
In estimating the fair value of the Group’s investment properties, the
Group uses market-observable data to the extent it is available. Where
Level 1 inputs are not available, the Group engages third party qualified
valuers to perform the valuation of the Group's investment properties.
At the end of each reporting period, the management of the Group
worked closely with the qualified external valuers to establish and
determine the appropriate valuation techniques and inputs for Level
2 and Level 3 fair value measurements. The Group will first consider
and adopt Level 2 inputs where inputs can be derived from observable
quoted prices in the active market. When Level 2 inputs are not
available, the Group will adopt valuation technigues that include Level 3
inputs. Where there is a material change in the fair value of the assets,
the causes of the fluctuations will be reported to the management of
the Group.

Prepaid Lease Payments

The carrying amount of prepaid lease payments in respect of land use
rights for the lands, which are all situated in the PRC, is analysed as
follows:

DNHEFERMGERRE
EHAEEREMENDFEMBER - K
SEERAARERNTEABEEE - M
BEF—RONBARE  AEEERES
BREMEEMSAEBRNIREYRETR
B - NERSHELERE - AEENER
[BHEERIMNEMEMBETANE - BT
N HEEEE O HERTEE - RNE=R
N EFENBARE - REEBEEE
BREAE _SRBALBE  ERHAR
BRI BEEM S LN A BRRERS - i
BREFE_LNBARE  AEEASRA
BREF=FREABRBOGERN - WEE
RPEHEEREY @ MGRAEEETR
ERERMEBNREA -

20. ANHEERE

N EE PR R 2 AR A B A L (e
o HEmEEITMT

Year ended 31 December

BE12A3MALEE
2015 2014
RMB’'000 RMB'000
ARBTT AREFT
At beginning of the year F4) 2,203 2,278
Released to profit or loss as expense FAZERNAE (75) (75)
At the end of the year F4R 2,128 2,203

At 31 December
M®12A31H
2015 2014
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBT AERETT
Analysis for reporting purposes as: MIEDWTAOT -

Current il 75 75
Non-current JERH 2,053 2,128
2,128 2,203

Prepaid lease payments represent land use rights in the PRC under
medium-term lease.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e ISR MR ()

For the year ended 31 December 2015 & F2015F 12 531 H i1 F /&

21. Subsidiaries 21. B AT
As of the end of the reporting period, the Company has the following RIRE B RE - NARHEUATHE
subsidiaries: NGIE
Place and date Issued and Equity interest
of incorporation/ fully paid capital/ attributable
Name of company establishment registered capital to the Group Principal activities
RAER HMAL/RIBSRSS BRARBRHRE - ZRER rEEEEER TEER
At 31 December
#12BE31A
2015 2014
% %
Shing Cheong Holdings (notes i) BVI US$7,000 100 100 Investment holding
[HEARERLR) 12 April 2007 (Ordinary shares) eV
ABRIES 700057
200743128 (L@Ek)
China Vast International BVI 15$10,000 100 100 Investment holding
(FERFERERERLE) 8 Novernber 2011 (Ordinary shares) B
AERIES 10000£
011511788 (BER)
Sheng Shi International Hong Kong HK$297,180,000 100 100 Investment holding
(BN (B7%) ¥EERAR) 16 January 2006 (Ordinary shares) REBR
Y 7297,180,0007C
200617168 (k)
King Billion Hong Kong HK$51,870,000 100 100 Investment holding
PkBERAF) 19 April 2007 (Ordinary shares) RERR
X 78518700007
200744198 (E3R)
Langfang Sheng Shi Construction PRC RMB150,000,000 100 100 Planning, design and
(notes i and iv) 8 August 2005 (Paid-up registered capital) development of
(BHmAtERREARAT) e AR 150,000,007 industria
2005%878H (BRAMER) town projects
RE &k
BREEMAER
Langfang City Property Development PRC RMB100,000,000 100 100 Property
Co,, Ltd. (notes i and iv) 22 May 1995 (Paid-up registered capital) development and
("Langfang City Property’) e A& 100,000,007 provision of after
(BEmHRERETRERAR) 199558228 (BRFMER) sales service
NEERRRHERRS
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e PR R MR (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2015 & Z2015F 12531 H 1 F/Z

21. Subsidiaries continued) 21. B2 8w

Place and date Issued and Equity interest
of incorporation/ fully paid capital/ attributable
Name of company establishment registered capital to the Group Principal activities
RRER AL/ RIBSRSS BREARBEHRE - ZRHER rEEEEER TEER
At 31 December
M2A318
2015 2014
% %
Langfang Vast Zhanyao Property PRC 15$29,800,000 100 100 Property development
Development Co,, Ltd. (notes i 5 June 2007 (Paid-Up registered capital) NELE
andv) (‘Langfang Vast Zhanyao') i 29,800,000 7T
(BHERBRRHERRERAR) A07%6A58 (BRsMER)
Langfang Yongxie Property Service PRC US$100,000 100 100 Consulting and
Co., Ltd. (notes i and v) 5 June 2007 (Paid-Up registered capital maintenance
("Langfang Yongxie Property’) i 100,000%7 service
([BHTXRIERBERLA) 2007F6A58 (BRmER) BRERRERS
Langfang Vast Zhuoyou Development PRC US$6,550,000 100 100 Property development
Co,, Ltd. (notes i and ) 5 June 2007 (Paid-up registered capital) NELE
("Langfang Vast Zhuoyou") i 6,550,000 7
(BHERRBRHERRERAR) 0746750 (HRMER)
Tangshan Zhanyao Property PRC 15$29,800,000 100 100 Property development
Development Co., Ltd. (notes i 25 June 2007 (Paid-up registered capital) MERE
andv) (‘Tangshan Zhanyao') i 2980000057
(BLREEHEREERAR) 2007567258 (BRFMER)
Langfang Hongsheng (notes i and iv) PRC RMB50,000,000 100 100 Property
(BT RREHEREERARF) 14 Auguist 2007 (Paid-up registered capital) development and
e ARE50,0000007T property leasing
2007587148 (BRIMER) NERRRYEEE
Langfang Honghao Investment Co., Ltd. PRC RMB620,000,000 100 100 Infrastructure investment
(notesiand iv) 7 July 2008 (Paid-up registered capital) BB E
("Langfang Honghao Investment’) i ARH620,000,0007
(BAmERBRARRAT) 200857478 (BRfaR)
Langfang Yonglun (notes iand iv) PRC RMB10,000,000 100 100 Property development
(BHTAREHEREERAR) 14 July 2009 (Paid-up registered capital) NEYE
i ARE10,000,0007T
2009574148 (BRsMER)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e ISR MR ()

For the year ended 31 December 2015 & F2015F 12 531 H i1 F /&

21. Subsidiaries (continuea)

21. B A B

Place and date Issued and Equity interest
of incorporation/ fully paid capital/ attributable
Name of company establishment registered capital to the Group Principal activities
RAER HMAL/RIBSRSS BRARBRHRE - ZRER rEEEEER TEER
At 31 December
#2831
2015 2014
% %

Langfang Gaodi Digital Technology PRC RMBS5,000,000 - 100 Manufacture and
Co., Ltd. (notes i, iv and vi) 5 January 2010 (Paid-up registered capital) sales of digital
('Langfang Gaod") G ARH5,0000007 products

(BHTREABE FRITERAR) 01041750 (Hrifax) HERHESRER

Chengde Yonglun Real Estate PRC RMB50,000,000 100 100 Property development
Development Co., Lid. (notes  and iv) 8 February 2010 (Paid-up registered capital) NEER
("Chengde Yonglun') i AFRH50,0000007

(EETXREREREERAR) 201052A8H (BRMER)

Langfang Shoukai Sheng Shi PRC RMB162,000,000 100 100 Infrastructure
Investment Co., Ltd. (notes i and iv) 4 August 2011 (Paid-up registered capital) investment and
("Langfang Shoukai Sheng i AR 162,000,007 land resettlement
Shi Investment’) 2011F8A48 (HRFMER) B E

(BHmEREEREERAR) kti%E

Langfang Yingkai Technology Incubation PRC RMBS, 100,000 100 100 Notyet commence busingss
Service Co., Ltd. (notes i and iv) 29 March 2013 (Paid-up registered capital) HARGEE
("Langfang Yingkai Technology") & AR5,100,0007

(BB B RE R ERAR) 0134F3A29A (HraMER)

Chuzhou Vast Zhanyao Investment PRC RMB10,000,000 100 100 Business consulting service
Co,, Ltd. (notes i and iv) 26 August 2013 (Paid-up registered capital) EBEARE
("Chuzhou Viast Zhanyao) h AR 10,000,000

(BNERBRREERAR) 013587268 (HRMER)

Langfang Vast Park Service Co., Ltd. PRC RMB500,000 100 100 Notyet commence business
(notesi and iv) "Langfang Viast Park) 8 October 2013 (Paid-up registered capital) HARREE

(BEMEREERBERAT) HE ARHE500,0007

013F10A8H (BIRsHHER)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e ISR R R ()

For the year ended 31 December 2015 & Z2015F 12531 H 1 F/Z

21. Subsidiaries (continueq) 21. B AT @)
Place and date Issued and Equity interest
of incorporation/ fully paid capital/ attributable
Name of company establishment registered capital to the Group Principal activities
RRER AL/ RIBSRSS BREARBEHRE - ZRHER rEEEEER TEER
At 31 December
M12B31A
2015 2014
% %

Langfang Goodman Vast Park Service PRC 15$30,000,000 100 100 Infrastructure maintenance

Co,, Ltd. (notes, v and viil) ("Langfang 12 April 2012 (Paid-Up registered capital) service

Goodman Vast Park Service”) i 30,000,000%7 B RN
(BhTEREtERREERAR) 2012648128 (Hrifax)
Beijing Viast Znanyao Investment PRC RMB5,000,000 100 100 Projectinvestment,

Co., Ltd. (notes i and iv) 29 April 2014 (Paid-Up registered capital lease, consuiting and asset

(Beiing Zhanyao Investment’) HE ARE5,000,0007 management
IRERBEREARAF) 014F48298 (BRMmER) BERAEEEN
Zhangjiakou Vst Industrial Urban PRC 15$20,000,000 100 100 Planning, design and

Development Co,, Ltd. (notes i and v) 11 December 2014 (Paid-up registered capital) development of industrial

('Zhangjiakou Vast") f 20,000,000% 7T town projects
FROEREETEZRBRAA) 2014128118 (BRFMER) TEEREG BRI AR
Shenzhen Foresea Vast Development PRC RMB5,000,000 100 - Notyet commence business

Co,, Ltd. (notes i,ivand vi) 1 January 2015 (Paid-up registered capital) ERBHRLE

("Foresea Vast') HE AR 5,000,000
(RUTRSERERERAA) 1551718 (BIRsHHER)
Hebei Vast Investment Development PRC 15$10,000,000 100 - Notyet commence business

Co,, Lid. (notes i, v and vi) 20 Jung 2015 (registered capital) BRERREE

('Hebe Vast Investrment’) HE 10,000,000% 7
(TEERRERRARAR) 2015664208 (iHHER)
Beijing Viast Zhihui Technical Service PRC RMB5,000,000 100 - Property leasing

Co., Ltd. (notes i, iv and vi) 29 September 2015 (Paid-up registered capital MERE

('Beijing Vast Znihui) i ARH5,0000007
EREREENRRBERAT) 2015694298 (HRifaR)
Shenzhen Vast Zhihui Technical Service PRC RMB3,000,000 100 - Property leasing

Co., Ltd. (notes i, ivand vi) 30 October 2015 (Paid-up registered capital) NERE

("Shenzhen Vst Zhihul") & AR 3,000,0007
(RIERE e BREERAT) 2015104308 (HRifaR)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e ISR MR ()

For the year ended 31 December 2015 & E20154 12531 H 1 F/E

21. Subsidiaries (continuea)

Notes:

21. B A B

BT

B

Vi.

Vi,

Viil.

English name for identification only.

Shing Cheong Holdings is directly held by the Company. Other subsidiaries
are indirectly held by the Company.

None of the subsidiaries of the Company had issued any debt securities at
the end of the year.

These subsidiaries are domestic wholly-owned enterprises established in
the PRC.

These subsidiaries are wholly foreign owned enterprises established in the
PRC.

The entity was newly established during the year ended 31 December 2015.

The entity was disposed of during the year ended 31 December 2015.

The Group has completed its acquisition of the remaining 50% shareholding
interest in Lnangfang Goodman Vast Park Service during the year ended 31
December 2014, details of which are set out in note 41.

Vi.

Vil.

Vii.

XA TBEHRES

MEBRBMARAERTHE - HHBEA
AIHARBRERA ©

RERK  BEAIRMNBRRBTEMNE
BES

e R

ZEMBARBNFERINENEED

EMBARRNFEKININEBE R

e Xy

2B AREEE2015F12A3BIEFE
RFTEE ©

ZMB AR AR E2015%12 8318 L5
NEE °

REBDREBEE2014FE12A3NBLEE

STROIE A BB 52 R Rt B & RTG 22 T 19
50%MHE - AR IEHRMIEAT -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e ISR R R ()

For the year ended 31 December 2015 & Z2015F 12531 H 1 F/Z

21. Subsidiaries (continueq)
Composition of the Group

21. B2 8w

Place of
incorporation/
establishment

and operation Number of
SEMA wholly-owned subsidiaries
Principal activity EE R BEBETARANEE
2015 2014
Investment holding RRIGE BVI 2 2
HEEBRAES
Investment holding ZRRIGE Hong Kong 2 2
B
Planning, design and development of EXEREHE PRC 2 2
industrial town projects BET MR H
Property development %R PRC 7 7
H
Infrastructure investment BRI E PRC 3 3
s
Project investment, lease, consulting ERAKRE  HE PRC 1 1
and asset management BAMEEER 2]
Consulting and maintenance service R4 E RS PRC 2 2
H
Internet information technology service WEEEERFRE  PRC 2 -
H
Manufacture and sales of BFEmA PRC - 1
digital products HEEMIEE H
Not yet commence business ENGLEr S PRC 4 2
H
25 22

22. Interests in Associates

22. RBFE N AR

At 31 December

M®12A31H

2015 2014
RMB’'000 RMB'000
AR¥F T ARETT

Cost of investments in associates B N AR E R A — R T
— unlisted 148,420 109,220

Share of post-acquisition profits (losses) e Uk BE 12 5 R (518 1k

net of dividends received BUMARE 11,844 (6,793)
Impairment loss (note a) REEE (MizEa) (12,837) (12,837)
147,427 89,590

154 FEEHEELTERESRZAT China VAST Industrial Urban Development Company Limited



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e PR R MR (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2015 & Z2015F 12531 H 1 F/Z

22. Interests in Associates (continued) 22. REEE DN BIMRER )

As of the end of the reporting period, the Group has the following

BEREHMERE - REERFUTES

associates: NGIE
Equity interest
Place and date of Issued and fully paid/ attributable
Name of company establishment registered capital to the Group Principal activities
RAER RIERAH BRARMAR/ FRMER REEELER TEEK
At 31 December
#12BE31A
2015 2014
% %

Langfang Huayuan Shengshi Heating PRC RMB117,000,000 35 35 Heat energy generation

Co., Ltd. ("Huayuan") (note i 21 August 2007 (Paid-up registered capital) A
BYTEREHANARAN 2007687210 AR AR 117,000,007
Langfang Kaichuang Jiahua Investment PRC RMB20,000,000 49 49 Property development

Co., Ltd. (*Kaichuang") (note i 14 November 2011 (Paid-up registered capital) NEER
BymHAEEREERAA 011%F11 7148 HERAR 20,000,000
Langfang Kaihong Furniture Mart Co,, Ltd. ~ PRC RMB100,000,000 30 30 Property leasing and property

("Kainong'note ) 10 December 2010 (Paid-up registered capital) development
BT EREREERAR 20105127108 AR AR#100,000,0007 NERENNELE
Huarong Shengshi (Langfang) Investment ~ PRC RMB20,000,000 35 - Infrastructure investment

Co,, Ltd. ("Huarong Shengshi’) Alanuary 2015 (Paid-up registered capital) EREHRE

(notes i and i) 01551848 AR AR 20,000,000
ERBtERREARRAT
Notes: BT

English name for identification only. T A TEE MR
ii. The entity was newly established during the year ended 31 December 2015. ii ZIEREE2015F 12 A31 B R AL
o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e ISR R R ()

For the year ended 31 December 2015 & Z2015F 12531 H 1 F/Z

22. Interests in Associates (continued)
Summarised financial information in respect of the Group’s material
associate is set out below. The summarised financial information below
represents amounts shown in the associates’ financial statements
prepared in accordance with IFRSs for equity accounting purpose.

22. REE N TR @
HEAEENEBH LA
AN+ LA TR AR i B A B4R
BB B TR B S 2 T AR B £ 28

A 81 75 B R

Huayuan )
At 31 December
M12A31H
2015 2014
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T AREF T
Current assets MEVEE 164,448 50,508
Non-current assets EREEE 341,684 125,593
Current liabilities mEAaE (292,268) (97,549)
Non-current liabilities EREasE (57,458) (22,750)
Net assets FEE 156,406 55,802
Year ended 31 December
BZ12A31HLLEE
2015 2014
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥T T ARET T
Total revenue FEV N 62,573 59,200
Profit for the year AREFE 8,604 5,370
Group's share of profit of the associate RE B EGEE N G 3,011 1,880

Dividends received from the associate

USER B 2 2 AR,
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e ISR R R ()

For the year ended 31 December 2015 & Z2015F 12531 H 1 F/Z

22. Interests in Associates (continued)

Reconciliation of the above summarised financial information to
the carrying amount of the interest in Huayuan recognised in the

consolidated financial statements :

22. REEE DN BIMRER )

bt B 7 AR B BR AR A B TS IRR M RERR
REREDRREESRET

At 31 December

®12H318
2015 2014
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥T T ARETT
Net assets of Huayuan ERNFEE 156,406 55,802
Proportion of the Group's ownership AEERERNHEGE
interest in Huayuan Tz L) 35% 35%
Carrying amount of the Group’s REEREROEREERD
interest in Huayuan BREEE 54,742 19,531
Kaihong BN
At 31 December
M12A318
2015 2014
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET T ARBFIT
Current assets MBNEE 19,081 17,691
Non-current assets IERBEE 533,976 489,708
Current liabilities mEAE (288,470) (67,849)
Non-current liabilities SEREAE = (227,000)
Net assets FAE 264,587 212,550
Year ended 31 December
HZE1283181LEE
2015 2014
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET T ANRETTT
Total revenue FEN N 58,140 49,405
Profit (Loss) for the year AER e (BX) 52,037 (19,584)
Group's share of profit (Losses) of AEB R E QTR (BX)
the associate 15,611 (5,876)

Dividends received from the associate

L HR

&
I

SN AR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e ISR R R ()

For the year ended 31 December 2015 & Z2015F 12531 H 1 F/Z

22. Interests in Associates (continued)
Reconciliation of the above summarised financial information to
the carrying amount of the interest in Kaihong recognised in the
consolidated financial statements:

22. REEE DRIV RER (o)

bt B AR B BR AR A B TS IRR M RERR
R\ R R REESRET :

At 31 December

M®12A31H
2015 2014
RMB’'000 RMB'000
AR¥T T ARBFT
Net assets of Kaihong IRHFEE 264,587 212,550
Proportion of the Group’s ownership REBRN R A RS
interest in Kaihong 30% 30%
Carrying amount of the Group's REENY ZHEEERERED
interest in Kaihong FREEE 79,376 63,765

Aggregate information of associates that are not
individually material

FERBEQNTNER

Year ended 31 December

BZ12A31BLEFE
2015 2014
RMB'000 RMB'000
AR¥T ARBFT
Group's share of gains (Iosses) of associates 7~ 5= B fE (L Bk 4 A T U s (B518) 15 (447)
Aggregate carrying amount of the Group's RS E PR S LB N F Y
interests in these associates e ARE AR RE 13,309 6,294

(i)  Thereis no unrecognised share of losses of any associate.

(i There is no significant restriction on the ability of the associates to
transfer funds to the Group in form of cash dividends, or to repay
advances made by the Group.

(i) Except for the investment in Huayuan and Kaihong which are
significant associates of the Group engaging in heat energy
generation and property leasing activities, all other associates
of the Group are not significant to the Group. For the purpose
of establishing further business relationship and strategic
cooperation with the majority shareholder of Huayuan and
Kaihong, the Group retains 35% and 30% interest in Huayuan and
Kaihong, respectively for investment purpose.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e PR R MR (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2015 & Z2015F 12531 H 1 F/Z

22

23.

24.

. Interests in Associates (continuea)

Note:

a. During the year ended 31 December 2010, as requested by other equity
holders of Huayuan and agreed by the Group, Langfang Sheng Shi
Construction unilaterally made additional cash contribution to Huayuan
as further capital injection into Huayuan amounting to RMB19,750,000
with shareholding interest in Huayuan unchanged. An impairment loss
amounting to RMB12,837,000 was recognised by the Group based on an
estimation of the recoverable amount of the Group ' s interest in Huayuan
during the year ended 31 December 2010.

Available-for-Sale Investment
Available-for-sale investment comprise:

22. REEE DN BIMRER )

s

a.  HE200F12A318LFE  BERELM
BEFBEANER  AEEBRE - BH
BUERESEARNERBEINEARSAR
#19,750,0007C * {ER¥IEIRA M — )%
& MEROBRIEAEETE - REER
BEHZE2010F 128318 L FEAEEPNE
R ATRE S B EERARE
12,837,000 I REIE A °

23. At ERE
AL E A B -

At 31 December

®12H318
2015 2014
RMB’000 RMB'000
ART R ARETT
Unlisted investment: ELTIRE
- equity securities — PRI 75 3,300 -

The above unlisted equity investments represents unlisted entity
securities issued by a private entity in the PRC. They are measured at
cost at the end of the reporting period because the range of reasonable
fair value estimate is so significant that the Directors of the opinion that
its fair value cannot be measured reliably.

Deferred Tax
The following is the analysis of the deferred tax balances for financial
reporting purposes:

VA E3E E BRI E KR P BEIR AR A LT
BZE E TR RIERE 5 o BRI ERE B ARRRK
FEN  ERAZEZERRECMODFEBERE
R ERN QA FENEBEANFIHBERAK -

24, EERE

AT 2B IS R IAN DT

At 31 December

M12A31H
2015 2014
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETR AREF T
Deferred tax assets RERIBE B 34,548 26,086
Deferred tax liabilities EEFRIEA R (74,270) (44,943)
(39,722) (18,857)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e PR R MR (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2015 & Z2015F 12531 H 1 F/Z

24. Deferred TaxX (continued)

The deferred tax assets (liabilities) recognised by the Group and

24, IEIEFIE ()
FEARE RSB HBIE TS BAE (B ) #

movements thereon during the year are as follows: SEIT -
Temporary
Fair value ~ differences on Unrealised
changeon  property sale profit on
investment and cost Tax Accured  Impairment  intra-group
properties of sales losses payroll of assets  transactions Other LAT Total
NEBER
REMEN  BERAN SEABRS
AVESD ERER HEsE Eitie EENE  AERAE iy HEER &3t
RMB000 RMB'000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
MNETT  AREfn ARETR ARETn ARETn ARETr ARETT ARETr ARETR
At1 January 2014 NVUE1RIB (49902 21,054 1675 6,616 16,395 (3831 4158 (3839
(Charge) crediit fo FAER
profit or loss (4.400) (12954) 218 1131 - 2,909 - 1918 (15022
At31December 2014 2014128318 (54,300) 8,100 3863 1131 6,616 13490 (3831) 6,076 (18,857)
(Charge) credit to iTAER
profit or oss (28882) (4.803) (893 24 - 16,508 - (3,009 (20865)
At31December 2015 2015128318 (83184) 397 2970 1,38 6,616 29998 (3831) 3007 (39722)
Details of the Group’s unused tax losses are as follows: REEKRFEAHIERSRE :
At 31 December
M12831H
2015 2014
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥ T ARBFT
Tax losses unrecognised for RPELERIEE ERRNRIEEE
deferred tax assets 57,923 7,290

The following unrecognised tax losses has fixed expiry date, which will
be expired in the following years:

EE B B e R R IEB BB R IA T F
JEEH -

At 31 December

M®12A31H
2015 2014
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥ T AREFT
31 December 2015 - 443
31 December 2016 702 702
31 December 2017 673 673
31 December 2018 1,604 1,604
31 December 2019 3,344 3,344
31 December 2020 6,924 -
Total 13,247 6,766
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e ISR R R ()

For the year ended 31 December 2015 & Z2015F 12531 H 1 F/Z

24.

25.

Deferred Tax (continue)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has unused tax losses
of RMB44,676,000 (31 December 2014: RMB524,000) available for
offsetting against future profits that may be carried forward indefinitely.
No deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect of the tax losses
due to the unpredictability of future profit streams.

No deferred tax liabilities for undistributed earnings of the PRC
subsidiaries have been recognised as there is no plan of the dividends
distribution out of the PRC in the foreseeable future by these PRC
subsidiaries. As at 31 December 2015, the aggregate undistributed
profits of the PRC subsidiaries were RMB2,512,000,000 (31 December
2014: RMB1,733,932,000). The corresponding unrecognised deferred tax
liabilities as at 31 December 2015 were RMB251,200,000 (31 December
2014: RMB173,393,200).

Land Development for Sale

Land development for sale represents cost of land development within
the districts of the development project in which the Group runs its land
development businesses. Although the Group does not have ownership
title or land use right of such land, the Group is given the right to carry
out construction and preparation works in respect of land infrastructure
in those land development project under land development agreements
with the local government authority. When the land plots are sold by
the local government authority, the Group is entitled to receive from the
local government authorities a proportion of the proceeds from land
sales.

Land development for sale is expected to be realised in the normal
operating cycle, which is usually longer than twelve months.

As mentioned in the accounting policy of revenue recognition on land
development for sale in note 4, fee income from the sales of land
development for sales is recognised depending on the timing of sales of
related land plots by the local government authority, which is uncertain
and out of the control of the Group. Upon the sales of related land plots
by the local government authority, the underlying amounts of land
development for sale was recognised and recorded as cost of sales.

24.

25.

EIERIE )

RRESMAZER  AEBEAS ARG
B 18 A R 44,676,0007T (2014412 A 31
B+ AR®524,00070) A] AR H Al B2 &
PR HAZE S B R AR F o R RBETERIAR IR
B0 FIAT R L AR A R A TE S 1R e SRR AT
Fig o

F A R B JBS A R T B S AR 1A P
LASN [ 5 TR AR B, - B It 8 3k 5% 55 o B B
BRARKKRD REFERELEHRESE -
M2015F 128318 + REKMBRARNARD
iR F 48585 Bl A A R % 2,512, 000,0007C
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e ISR R R ()

For the year ended 31 December 2015 & Z2015F 12531 H 1 F/Z

26. Properties Under Development for Sale 26. FERRDPYE

Year ended 31 December

BEZ12A31HLLEE
2015 2014
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET R ARETT
At beginning of year F9) 2,409,626 2,753,204
Additions NE 457,755 1,076,018
Transfer to properties held for sale BRI EFEYE (1,467,424) (1,419,596)
Disposal of a subsidiary (note 42) BE T AR (KIE4a2) (17,337) -
At end of year FR 1,382,620 2,409,626
As at 31 December 2015, certain of the Group’s properties under 201512 A31H » A&RB A THREE
development for sale with carrying amount of approximately A H AR #364,534,0007T (20144 12 A 31
RMB424,081,000 (31 December 2014: RMB236,512,000) were pledged to A : AR#236,512,00070) (EFEFRZERY)
banks to secure certain banking facilities granted to the Group, details ¥EERTRT  ERATEEERE TR
of which are set out in note 32(a). Certain of the Group’s properties TRIEMEIR - FFRERMTEI2@) - &
under development for sale with an aggregate carrying amount of E 201512 A31 B E FRRELEL A
approximately RMB222,648,000 as at 31 December 2015 (31 December R #222,648,0007T (2014512 A318 = A
2014: RMB360,256,000) was pledged to certain trust fund companies to R#£360,256,0007T) (FERERYEDE
secure certain trust loans to the Group, details of which are set out in BYFETEREESQR  EAXEEET
note 32(b)(i). EREEFRRIER - FERAHTEE3200)0) ©
The properties under development are all located in the PRC with lease FERYE2EIIMNFE - FHENF40
term ranging from 40 to 70 years. FEJOF o
As at 31 December 2015, properties under development for sale with HZ=2015F12A318 © FBHERAEE D B4
carrying amount of approximately RMB1,152,620,000 (31 December AR#1,152,620,0007T (2014512 A318 -
2014: RMB1,565,954,000) were expected to be completed after twelve AR#1,565,954,0007T ) F £ & F g h i %
months from the end of the reporting period. RS IE A REM121E A 2 878K °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e PR R MR (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2015 & Z2015F 12531 H 1 F/Z

27.Trade Receivables 27. B 5 ENFKIE
At 31 December
MW12A318
2015 2014
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥T T AERETT
Receivables from land development for sale 3 + 3 FIZE1E B B fE 7018 436,819 353,607
Receivables from properties for sale Al E YR EI I 99,972 47,266
536,791 400,873
Less: allowance for doubtful debts T RIREE (1,409) (1,409
535,382 399,464
Analysis for reporting purposes as: PMEBEMATAT -
Current assets MENVE B 478,266 368,992
Non-current assets FERENEE 57,116 30,472
535,382 399,464
The aging analysis of the Group’s trade receivables, net of allowance RS BBAREE - NEENE 5 EUGK
for doubtful debts presented based on revenue recognition date, at the B (BT 25 RIRERS) BRIE W =ER B
end of the reporting period are as follows: HRRBRER AT AT -
At 31 December
M12A31H
2015 2014
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥T T AEETT
0to 90 days 0z290H 487,958 398,393
91 to 180 days 91£180H - 1,071
180 to 360 days 1812360H 8,864 -
1-2 years 1-29F 38,560 -
535,382 399,464
Trade receivables from land development for sale as at 31 December 2015612 A31H » FFETHFEIEE KR
2015 with the aggregate carrying amount of RMB365,890,000 were A{E A A R#365,890,0007T K & 5 X
settled up to the date of approval of these financial statements. TR ERZ B R 3% B BRRT 2B 1(E -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e ISR R R ()

For the year ended 31 December 2015 & Z2015F 12531 H 1 F/Z

27.Trade Receivables continueq) 27. EZ EWREIE o)

In respect of fee income arising from land development for sale, the
successful land buyers would enter into land acquisition agreements
with the local government authorities after public auction, tender or
listing procedures. According to these land acquisition agreements, the
respective land buyers are usually granted a credit period ranging from
110 3 months to settle the full amount of land acquisition consideration
with the local government authorities. The Group would normally
be able to recover the full amount of trade receivables from the
government authorities shortly after the local government authorities
have received the full amount of land acquisition consideration from the
land buyers.

In respect of revenue arising from sales of properties and property
leasing, the Group normally does not grant any credit term to its
customers except for the sale of the whole block of buildings developed
by the Group, details of which are set out in the following paragraph.

Trade receivables are all interest-free except for receivables related to
sale of whole block of buildings. The trade receivable of RMB59,790,000
as at 31 December 2015 in respect of sale of a whole block of building
to an entity controlled by the local government authority during the
reporting period, was charged at an interest rate of 5.7% per annum
and repayable over the following two years from 31 December 2015,
of which RMB39,790,000 is due after twelve months after the end of
the reporting period and classified as non-current asset. The trade
receivable of RMB32,326,000 as at 31 December 2015 in respect of
sale of another whole block of building to another entity controlled by
different government authority during 2014, was charged at an interest
rate of 9% per annum and repayable over the following three years from
31 December 2014, of which RMB17,326,000 is due after twelve months
after the end of the reporting period and classified as non-current asset.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e PR R MR (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2015 & Z2015F 12531 H 1 F/Z

27.Trade Receivables continueq) 27. EZEWWFIE )

The aged analysis of the trade receivables that are not considered to be
impaired is as follows:

WEWAE AT RENE S RKRFIENRR
ST

At 31 December

#A12831H
2015 2014
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET R ARETT
Neither overdue nor impaired 0 438 B s R B 527,318 398,393

Past due but not impaired: BRI KRR E ¢

91 to 180 days 91£E180H - 1,071
110 2 years 15226 8,064 -
535,382 399,464

The trade receivables that were neither past due nor impaired mainly
relate to receivables from the local government authority arising
from land development for sale. The Directors are of the view that
the credit risk is considered low as land development for sale is sold
through public auction, tender or listing to qualified land buyers, whose
qualifications have been verified by the local government authorities
and certain refundable deposits were received by the Group from
interested parties for partial investments in the land development by
the Group (note 30(a)).

In respect of the trade receivables as at 31 December 2015 from sale
of whole block of buildings to entities controlled by local government
authorities, based on the information available to the Group, the
Directors are of the opinion that no provision for impairment is
necessary as there has not been a significant change in credit quality of
these receivables and the balance is still considered fully recoverable.

Movements in the allowance for doubtful debts:

I B ER SR E M S B BB £ e
& T3 FI 55 IE B FE YU 5 BUF RO RS -
ARFELHHARIEEERARMAE - B
ZREEmEEREEHEEE BT
BENTAERIHERBE  MALED
HEEBBEAEBEMREN LM AFK
B A MCERE T Al R B 5T 4 (FT5E30()) -
HARTEEERAEERBRRE -

ERAEEMERSES  AEEEEER
0 2015 12 A3 BN L ERERE T
EELBTEHNERNE S EYGOR
AEEEEREENBLBRORER
F - ARDERRTEA KM -

SIE A2

Year ended 31 December

BZ12A31HLEE
2015 2014
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTT AREBFT
At the beginning of the year F4 1,409 1,409
Provided for during the year FANEE - -
At end of the year FUR 1,409 1,409
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e PR R MR (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2015 & Z2015F 12531 H 1 F/Z

28. Prepayments and Other Receivables 28. AN RIAR K BT KIA

At 31 December

M12A31H
2015 2014
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥T T ARBFT
Prepayments: TERTFRIE
— Prepayments for construction activities —EREKNTENIE 13,642 8,208
- Prepayments for taxes —JafHiE 5,041 16,636
- Others —HAh 1,852 864
Other receivables: E A fEYRIE
— Receivables on disposal of properties — b fE (FiEa)
under development (note a) 208,929 -
— Compensation receivable (note b) — T hiRER (M 5ED) 112,562 -
— Receivable from disposal of a —BRETARIEIGKIE
subsidiary (note c) (Ff#5EC) 30,480 -
- Loan receivables (note d) — EME R (P aEd) 21,423 20,000
- Staff advances — B8 7,560 5,050
- Deposit received —EYGET & 21,691 17,780
- Others —Hih 55,308 19,704
478,488 88,242
Less: allowance for other receivables B E AR IR (13,623) (13,623)
464,865 74,619

Notes: B &t -

a. Certain pieces of land of the Group were required to sell back to the local  a. AR E MBI ERRENE L HoMRLE
government due to change in local business development plan. The local EWBME LA EMBT - EHEFTEHREER
government authorities will make compensation to the Group for the loss FREYEETRAMEE -  ZEEMEETRES
of the respective properties under development. These receivables will be LA 85.5%-6% 1) B BF F| £ 51 B W H 20169 K 62
settled before the end of 2016 with the effective interest rates ranging from e —WEE -

5.5% 10 6% per annum

b.  The Group incurred loss in a land development sales transaction in 2006. b. FE2006KIFF & T B R R L X SR EBRK T
After continuing communication and negotiations with the relevant local B EZFERABBITER % - EAREH
government authority by the Group for years, during the reporting period, A - & BT R E Rt L it R i SR B A TS (E o
the local government authority agreed to make compensation to the Group ZEEEMERFTES AT FOHHEREF XS
in respect of the above. This receivable will be settled before the end of WHEFE2016F FIRATEE -

2016 with an effective interest rate of 6% per annum.

c.  Amount represents receivable from disposal of a subsidiary, details of  c. ZEEAHETARERRE  ABBERZAH
which are set out in note 42. The Group expects to recover this receivable 42 - EEEFHE2016FE U EIZEFHE -
in full within 2016.

d.  Loan receivables at 31 December 2014 made to an independent third party ~ d.  R2014F 12 A3 BMEKRER REE « EER R

which were interest-free, unsecured and did not have fixed repayment
term. These loan receivables were fully settled in February 2015. Loan
receivables at 31 December 2015 made to an independent third party
which were interest-free, unsecured and did not have fixed repayment
term. These loan receivables were expected to be received in full within
2016.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e PR R MR (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2015 & Z2015F 12531 H 1 F/Z

29.Bank Balances and Restricted Bank 29.8R{7&8 R IZR4IETES
Deposits

At 31 December

M12A31H
2015 2014
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®BTT ARBTT
Bank deposits, bank balances and IRITTER - RITHEBR K
cash in hand FEHS 1,564,995 1,169,598
Less: Deposits pledged for B BRERTTREE M R
banking facilities (note a) (Mfz¥a) (441,100) (306,190)
Deposits pledged for guarantees granted RAFFROERMERLN
to customers (note b) FAR(MiFED) (32,877) (27,812
Deposits pledged for guarantee to BAERITR HE R E R E
a bank (note ¢) R (BEEC) - (33,000)
Deposits pledged for issuance of BARITIR L EEME RN
bills payable (note a) Fa(Miza) (15,000) -
Deposits pledged for a letter of BABITIR L IRFEMEIRH
guarantee (note a) L NCIEE)) (17,500) -
Total cash and cash equivalents He RIS EEBYEsR 1,058,518 802,596
Bank deposits, bank balances and ATNERHERRITER -
cash in hand denominated in: IRTTHER R F RS -
— RMB(functional currency of —ARE(EHEESEN
the relevant entities) hEeE#) 1,161,786 707,032
- Us$ —%T7T 398,475 124,223
- HK$ — B 4,734 338,343
1,564,995 1,169,598

Notes: Bt -

a.  The amounts represented bank deposits in RMB pledged to banks as a. SREFAASEERSTEHRRITRE
security for certain short-term banking facilities granted to the Group (note EE IR R IRITERNARETR - F1E5
32(a). R HIEES2() ©

b.  The amounts represented bank deposits in RMB pledged to banks as b. SWEEARTAXKEZSELETR
security for certain mortgage loans granted by the banks to the Group's BB M AR E IR AR KR
customers. The restricted bank deposits will be released upon receiving 73 RRBIRITIE FAG R IRITRE P UL
the building ownership certificate of the respective properties by the banks MENENFEMEREEARRZBE
from the customers as a pledge for security to the mortgage loans granted. KA R ERBRIR 1) ©

c.  The amounts represented bank deposits in RMB pledged to a bank as C. ZEBEEERBITAS=IHELMBRE
security for a financial guarantee contract granted by the bank to a third BHRERMRBRTEROARERITE
party. This pledged deposit was released during the year. Ao ZEERDENE NEFFRR S o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e ISR R R ()

For the year ended 31 December 2015 & Z2015F 12531 H 1 F/Z

29.Bank Balances and Restricted Bank 29. 8173 R IZR4IBTES

Deposits (continued) ()
Bank balances and cash at 31 December 2015 were mainly R2015F 12318 » R1TEsHEIReFE
denominated in RMB which is not a freely convertible currency in the NAREERE - MARBTEEREMIES
international market. The exchange rate of RMB is regulated by the BRHT - ARBEXRZIFRETE
government of the PRC and the remittance of these funds out of the B BEMESELEPRHETER T K
PRC is subject to exchange restrictions imposed by the government of FEEaYINER ) ©
the PRC.
The restricted bank deposits and bank balances carry prevailing market BB F KR BN ZREEITERRIETT
interest rates as follows: HERRINT ¢
At 31 December
MA12A31H
2015 2014
% %
Interest rate per annum FRREE 0.30-2.75 0.35-3.75
30.Trade and Other Payables 30. EZ R HAMERIA
At 31 December
MA12831H
2015 2014
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥T T ARETT
Trade payables B S ENFIE 732,694 826,335
Investment properties construction FEFHEE M E RN A
cost payable 26,907 19,891
Refundable deposits (note a) ALREE] € (F3E @) 47,142 46,880
Advance from government (note b) BERIFF R (T % (D)) 39,732 39,732
Other taxes payable E b ERHIR 35,213 48,031
Other payables E At BT IE 39,339 22,152
Other deposits received HEmBEWETE 42,021 25,346
Accrued expenses JERTFISZ 472 3,710
963,520 1,032,077
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e ISR R R ()

For the year ended 31 December 2015 & Z2015F 12531 H 1 F/Z

30. Trade and Other Payables (continueq)
The following is an aged analysis of trade payables based on services/
materials received date at the end of the reporting period:

0. ES R EMENTE

AR A# 12015512 A 31 H LA 2014412
A318 » & 5 EMZUBREKRERIS X
KA ERA TR BRER AT ¢

At 31 December

®12H318

2015 2014
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥F T ARETT
Less than 1 year PRA—F 471,569 743,833
1-2 years 1224 223,106 54,252
2-3 years 2E3F 16,836 5,753
Over 3 years 3FLAE 21,183 22,497
732,694 826,335

Notes: Mgk

a. The amounts represent refundable deposits received from interested
parties for potential investments in the land developed by the Group.

b. The amount represents interest-free refundable cash advance received
from the local government authority to assist the Group’s operations in
the construction and preparation works in respect of land infrastructure
of land development projects. Such cash advance is repayable to the local
government authority on demand.

31.Bills Payable

The aged analysis of bills payable presented based on the issue date at
the end of the reporting period is as follows:

31.

a AeRRRAEEEEAEEFNE LIOF
RHBERENE WA AR E ©

b A BARR A H7 BTWER 2 B AR E
REBR - BB AEELERAH LI
FEEETNLHERRRRAETIRE -
ZERCBRFEBRERBEE -

B RE

LA 80152015512 A31 B A % 20144612
A3 - R RRIRE R A EE 1T 0
A -

2015 2014

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥TT ARETTT

0-90 days 0£90K 15,000 -
15,000 -

All the bills payable are of trading nature and will mature within six
months from the issue date.

IBEHNRENEROBREXEBHEREMAL
ESE IR AR B RS E A PR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e PR R MR (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2015 & Z2015F 12531 H 1 F/Z

32. Bank and Other Borrowings 32. BITREMMER

At 31 December

M12831H
2015 2014
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥T T ARETT
Bank loans RITER
Secured (note a) B (MT3E@Q)) 1,386,309 932,435
Other loans EAb AR
Secured/guaranteed (note b) B BEREED) 1,946,577 1,932,434
Unsecured (note c) IR (MEE©) 20,000 44,850
3,352,886 2,909,719
Total borrowings are repayable as follows: &R ABRER (SR AR 4
- Repayable on demand —BIRER(EE - 587,552
- Repayable within one year —BR—FREE 1,854,559 1,228,354
— Repayable over 1 year and within 2 years —BR—FEEMERNER 985,900 319,200
- Repayable over 2 years and within 5 years —ARMER R DFENEER 492,427 684,613
- Repayable over 5 years — AR AERER 20,000 90,000
3,352,886 2,909,719
Less: Amounts shown under current liabilities 38 : "B AEIE N3RS (1,854,559) (1,815,906)
Amounts shown under non-current liabilities SEREIBEIE NIRHEEE 1,498,327 1,093,813
Floating rate borrowings EBER 633,218 664,126
Fixed rate borrowings TEBMER 2,699,668 2,245,593
Interest-free borrowings mBER 20,000 -
3,352,886 2,909,719
Bank and other borrowings denominated in: LATRB G R ERIRIT R
HAbER
- RMB — AR 3,127,164 2,322,167
- Us$ —%7T 225,722 587,552
3,352,886 2,909,719
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e ISR MR ()

For the year ended 31 December 2015 & F2015F 12 531 H i1 F /&

32.Bank and Other Borrowings continued

Notes:

The secured bank loans of the Group were secured by certain assets of the

Group and their carrying amounts are as follows:

32.4R%

Rt

BiRE

o))

TREMER @

AEEERRTEFIUARERE TEER

AR HEREEENT

At 31 December

M12A31H
2015 2014
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T AREF T
Properties under development for sale (note 26) BRI (FIE26) 364,534 236,512
Investment properties (note 19) "E M (HEE19) 106,800 124,300
Restricted bank deposits (note 29) IR HIRT 77 R (FF3E29) 441,100 306,190
912,434 667,002

The details of secured/guaranteed other loans of the Group are as follows:

b  AEEFER EROEMERFBEOT

At 31 December

A12A31H
2015 2014
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET R ARETT
Loans from trust fund companies (note i) ERESQATER(ME) 1,012,038 1,181,882
Loans from other third parties (note ii) HthE=HER (M) 934,539 750,552
1,946,577 1,932,434
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e PR R MR (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2015 & Z2015F 12531 H 1 F/Z

32.Bank and Other Borrowings (continued)

Notes: (Continued)

b. The details of secured/guaranteed other loans of the Group are as follows:
(Continued)

0]

In February 2013, a subsidiary of the Group, Langfang Sheng Shi
Construction entered into an agreement with a trust fund company
in the PRC pursuant to which the trust fund company agreed to
contribute RMB300,000,000 to Langfang Honghao Investment
as capital injection. Subsequent to this capital injection, the
registered capital of Langfang Honghao Investment increased from
RMB320,000,000 to RMB620,000,000 and 48.4% equity interest of
Langfang Honghao Investment was held by the trust fund company
accordingly. Per the agreement, Langfang Sheng Shi Construction
agreed to repurchase and the trust fund company agreed to sell the
48.4% equity interest in Langfang Honghao Investment either at a
cash consideration of RMB390,000,000 in April 2015 after 24 months
of capital injection or at a cash consideration of RMB439,500,000 in
April 2016 after 36 months of the capital injection, the final date of
repurchase of which is at the full discretion of the Group. Langfang
Honghao Investment is accounted for as a wholly owned subsidiary,
taking into account that the Group can still exercise control over
Langfang Honghao Investment, the compulsory repurchase
arrangement and the trust fund company does not entitle to any
variable returns (including profit distribution) from Langfang Honghao
Investment but receives fixed interest income, the transaction as a
whole has been considered as a loan granted to the Group in these
consolidated financial statements to reflect the economic substance
of the arrangement. In April 2015, the Group made a cash payment
of RMB20,000,000 to the trust fund company in order to extend
the final settlement date by Langfang Sheng Shi Construction for
repurchasing the equity interest held by the trust fund company
from April 2015 to April 2016. The effective interest rate of this loan
is reduced from 17.20% to 10.34% per annum accordingly. As at 31
December 2015, this trust loan was secured by equity interest held
by the Group in Langfang Honghao Investment, certain properties
under development for sale of the Group with an aggregate carrying
amount of RMB74,596,000 (31 December 2014: RMB216,709,000)
and certain investment properties of the Group with an aggregate
carrying amount of RMB86,600,000 (31 December 2014: Nil).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e PR R MR (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2015 & Z2015F 12531 H 1 F/Z

32.Bank and Other Borrowings continued

Notes: (Continued)

b. The details of secured/guaranteed other loans of the Group are as follows:
(Continued)

0]

(Continued)

In June 2013, the subsidiary of the Group, Langfang Sheng Shi
Construction entered into a loan agreement with another trust
fund company in the PRC, pursuant to which a loan amounting to
RMB300,000,000 was granted by this trust fund company to the
Group with a two-year term at an effective interest rate of 9.04%
per annum after taking into consideration of initial transaction
costs of RMB9,000,000. In June 2015, the Group repaid this loan of
RMB300,000,000 in full. In December 2013, the Group entered into
another loan agreement with this trust fund company, pursuant
to which loan amounting to RMB328,280,000 was granted by
this trust fund company to the Group with three-year term at
an effective interest rate of 5.535% per annum. During the year
ended 31 December 2015, the Group early repaid an amount of
RMB50,000,000. As at 31 December 2015, this trust loan was secured
by certain properties under development for sale of the Group with
an aggregate carrying amount of RMB148,052,000 (31 December
2014: RMB143,547,000). In November 2015, the Group entered into
another loan agreement with this trust fund company, pursuant to
which loans amounting to RMB600,000,000 will be granted by this
trust fund company to the Group at an effective interest rate of
10.51% per annum after taking into consideration of initial transaction
costs of RMB40,040,000. The Group has received the first batch of
this loan of RMB200,000,000 which will be repaid at 31 December
2017.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e PR R MR (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2015 & Z2015F 12531 H 1 F/Z

32.Bank and Other Borrowings (continued)

Notes: (Continued)

b. The details of secured/guaranteed other loans of the Group are as follows:
(Continued)

0]

(Continued)

In June 2014, two subsidiaries of the Group, Langfang Sheng Shi
Construction and Langfang Shoukai Sheng Shi Investment entered
into a tri-party agreement with a trust fund company in the PRC,
pursuant to which the trust fund company agreed to contribute
RMB300,000,000 to Langfang Shoukai Sheng Shi Investment, of
which RMB60,000,000 and RMB240,000,000 were recorded as the
registered capital and the capital reserve of Langfang Shoukai Sheng
Shi Investment, respectively. Subsequent to this capital injection,
the registered capital of Langfang Shoukai Sheng Shi Investment
increased from RMB102,000,000 to RMB162,000,000 and 37.04%
equity interest of Langfang Shoukai Sheng Shi Investment was held
by the trust fund company accordingly. According to the agreement,
Langfang Sheng Shi Construction agrees to repurchase and the trust
fund company agrees to sell the 37.04% equity interest in Langfang
Shoukai Sheng Shi Investment in June 2016, after 24 months of
capital injection, at a pre-determined price if the Group can provide
certain additional pledged assets to the trust fund company within six
months from the date of the capital injection completed. At the end
of 2014, the Group fails to provide certain additional pledged assets
to the trust fund company, the Group is required to repurchase the
37.04% equity interest in Langfang Shoukai Sheng Shi Investment in
June 2015 after 12 months of capital injection at a pre-determined
price. Langfang Shoukai Sheng Shi Investment is accounted for as a
wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, taking into account that
the Group can still exercise control over Langfang Shoukai Sheng
Shi Investment, the compulsory repurchase arrangement and the
trust fund company is not entitled to any variable returns (including
profit distribution) from Langfang Shoukai Sheng Shi Investment but
receives fixed interest income, the transaction as a whole has been
considered as a loan granted to the Group with a one-year term
in these consolidated financial statements to reflect the economic
substance of the arrangement. In January 2015, the Group reached
an agreement with the trust fund company to extend the maturity
date of a loan from this trust fund company with the principal amount
of RMB300,000,000 from June 2015 to June 2016 by providing certain
investment properties of the Group to the trust fund company. As a
result, the effective interest rate of this loan is reduced from 24.61%
to 7.69% per annum accordingly. As at 31 December 2015, this
trust loan was secured by the equity interest held by the Group in
Langfang Shoukai Sheng Shi Investment and investment properties of
the Group with an aggregate carrying amount of RMB549,700,000.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e PR R MR (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2015 & Z2015F 12531 H 1 F/Z

32.Bank and Other Borrowings continued

Notes: (Continued)

b. The details of secured/guaranteed other loans of the Group are as follows:
(Continued)

(in)

Included therein is an entrusted loan from non-financial institution
in the PRC of RMB369,000,000, including RMB150,000,000 with a
two-year term and RMB219,000,000 with a three-year term, at an
effective interest rate of 12.05% per annum as at 31 December 2015
(31 December 2014:Nil)which was secured by certain properties
under development for sale of the Group with an aggregate carrying
amount of RMB9,911,000 and the Group's investment property with
carrying amount of approximately RMB65,400,000.

Included therein are loans borrowed from non-financial institutions in
the PRC of RMB344,000,000 as at 31 December 2015 (31 December
2014: RMB187,850,000), including RMB64,200,000 with a one-year
term, RMB277,400,000 with a two — year term and RMB2,400,000
with a three-years term, effective interest rate of these loans are
ranging from 7.20% to 13.50% per annum (31 December 2014: 6.12%
to 7.20% per annum), which were secured by the equity interest
held by the Group in Chengde Yonglun and total assets of Langfang
Sheng Shi Construction, and the Group’s beneficial interests to be
generated during the execution of the land development agreements
for developing Longhe Industrial Park.

Included therein are also loans from Fine Process Limited, an
independent third party and a wholly-owned subsidiary of ICBC
International Investment Management Limited, the initial principal of
the loans are of US$100,000,000. In April 2015, the Group repaid part
of the loan amounting to US$12,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
RMB73,686,000). In December 2015, the Group repaid part of this
loan again amounting to US$50,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
RMB324,500,000). The effective interest rate of the remaining loans
of US$38,000,000 (equivalent to approximately RMB225 million) as at
31 December 2015 was changed from 15.76% to 15.61% per annum
and repayable within one year after 31 December 2015. This loan is
jointly guaranteed by the Ultimate Controlling Shareholders and are
currently secured by the pledge of entire equity interests of Shing
Cheong Holdings, China Vast International, King Billion and Sheng Shi
International.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e PR R MR (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2015 & Z2015F 12531 H 1 F/Z

32. Bank and Other Borrowings (continued) 32. SRITMEMER @

Notes: (Continued) Bt 5 (48)
C. The details of unsecured other loans of the Group are as follows: C. SEEMNEKFEMERNBMALNT ¢

At 31 December

M®12A31H

2015 2014

RMB’000 RMB'000

ARET T ARETT

Loans from third parties (note i) =7 R (BREEG)) 20,000 44,850

20,000 44,850
(i) The above loans from third parties as at 31 December 2015 were (i) HEZ2015F12A3NEME =71
interest-free and are repayable on demand. The above loans from HERESEBREATREREED
third parties as at 31 December 2014 were interest bearing at rates &5 EIE2014F 12 A3MBHME=
ranging from 5.94% to 7.20% per annum. 7516 3 A F FE5.94% % 7.20% H) &

2
A °

d.  The ranges of effective interest rates on the Group’s borrowings are as d.  KEEFNFESENT

follows:

At 31 December

M12831H
2015 2014
% %
Effective interest rate per annum: BREFR
Floating rate borrowings TFENFI R G 4.90-8.40 5.94-8.40
Fixed rate borrowings &7 F (85K 2.62-15.61 5.54-24.61

Interest on borrowings denominated in RMB at floating rates is based on
the borrowing rates announced by the People’s Bank of China. Interest on
borrowings denominated in US$ at floating rates are based on the London
Interbank Offered Rate and repriced monthly.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e ISR R R ()

For the year ended 31 December 2015 & Z2015F 12531 H 1 F/Z

33. Convertible Bonds and Notes

On 30 December 2015, the Company issued a three-year term US$6%
convertible bonds due 2018 in an aggregate principal amount of
US$50,000,000 (the “Convertible Bonds”). In addition to which, on
the same date, the Company also issued a three-year term US$12%
secured guaranteed notes due 2018 in an aggregate principal amount
of US$50,000,000 (the “Notes”) to the same holder of the Convertible
Bonds. The total net proceeds from the issue of the Convertible Bonds
and the Notes are used for the purpose of capital expenditure and
general working capital. The Convertible Bonds and the Notes are jointly
guaranteed by the Ultimate Controlling Shareholders and secured by
the pledge of entire equity interests of Shing Cheong Holdings, China
Vast International, King Billion and Sheng Shi International.

The Convertible Bonds, upon issue, will constitute direct,
unsubordinated, unconditional and secured obligations of the Company
and shall at all times rank pari passu in all respects and without any
preference or priority among themselves.

The Notes, upon issue, will constitute direct, general, unconditional,
unsubordinated and secured obligations of the Company and shall at all
times rank pari passu without any preference among themselves.

The principal terms of the Convertible Bonds are as follows:

(a) Conversion Right
The holder of the Convertible Bonds has the right to convert all
or any part of the principal amount of the Convertible Bonds into
ordinary shares of the Company at any time from the beginning
on, and including, the issue date of the Convertible Bonds up
to the close of business on the maturity date of the Convertible
Bonds.

For the purpose of determining the number of ordinary shares to
be issued on conversion of the Convertible Bonds, the relevant
principal amount of the Convertible Bonds to be converted shall
be translated into HK$ at the exchange rate of US$1.00:HK$7.75.
The price at which ordinary shares of the Company will be
issued upon conversion (the “Conversion Price”) will initially be
HK$3.10 per share, but will be subject to adjustment for, among
other things, consolidation, reclassification or subdivision,
capitalization of profit or reserves, distributions, rights issues of
shares or options over shares, dividend adjustments and other
dilutive events. In the opinion of the Directors, the adjustments to
Conversion Price in those circumstances are all for anti-dilutive
purpose to protect the right of the holder of the Convertible
Bonds.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e PR R MR (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2015 & Z2015F 12531 H 1 F/Z

33. Convertible Bonds and Notes (continued)
(b) Final Redemption

(c)

Unless previously redeemed, converted, purchased and cancelled
as provided herein, the Company shall pay to each holder of the
Convertible Bonds on the maturity date of the Convertible Bonds
an aggregate price of (i) 118% of the outstanding principal amount
on the maturity date of the Convertible Bonds, (i) all accrued and
unpaid interest in respect of such Convertible Bonds and unpaid
default interest in respect of such Convertible Bonds, if any, and (iii)
all other related outstanding amounts payable by the Company to
the holder of such Convertible Bonds.

Convertible Bond Holder's Redemption Rights
for Events of Default

Should any of the events of default set out in the agreements of
the Convertible Bonds occurs, the holder of the Convertible Bonds
may elect to require the Company to redeem the outstanding
Convertible Bonds in full in the amount equivalent to the sum of
(i) 118% of the outstanding principal amount of the Convertible
Bonds, (ii) all accrued and unpaid interest in respect of such
Convertible Bonds and unpaid default interest in respect of such
Convertible Bonds, if any, and (iii) all other related outstanding
amounts payable by the Company to the holder of such
Convertible Bonds.

The details of the redemption of the Notes are as follows:

(a) Final Redemption

Unless previously redeemed, purchased and cancelled, the
Company shall pay to each holder of the Notes on the maturity
date of the Notes an aggregate price of (i) the outstanding
principal amount on the maturity date of the Notes, (ii) all accrued
and unpaid interest in respect of the Notes and unpaid default
interest of the Notes, if any, and (iii) all other related outstanding
amounts payable by the Company to the holder of such Notes.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e PR R MR (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2015 & Z2015F 12531 H 1 F/Z

33. Convertible Bonds and Notes (continued)
(b) Company’s Early Redemption Rights

(c)

The Company shall have the right to redeem all or any part of the
outstanding principal amount of the Notes at any time during the
period between the day immediately after the second anniversary
of the issue date of the Notes and the last day immediately
preceding the maturity date of the Notes, provided that no event
of default has occurred on or before the date of full payment
of the redemption price by the Company to the holder of the
Notes. The redemption price payable by the Company for such
early redemption shall be the amount equivalent to the sum of (i)
the outstanding principal amount of the Notes to be redeemed,
(i) all accrued and unpaid interest accrued from the issue date
of the Notes or (if any interest payment date has occurred) the
latest interest payment date up to (and including) the date of full
payment of the redemption price by the Company to the relevant
holder of the Notes and unpaid default interest (if any) accrued,
and (iii) all other related outstanding amounts payable by the
Company to the holder of such Notes.

Note Holder’'s Redemption Rights for Events of
Default

Should any of the events of default set out in the agreements of
the Notes occurs, the holder of the Notes may elect to require
the Company to redeem the Notes in full in an amount equivalent
to the sum of (i) the outstanding principal amount of the Notes,
(i) all accrued and unpaid interest accrued from the issue date
of the Notes up to (and including) the date of full payment of the
redemption price by the Company to such holder of the Notes and
unpaid default interest (if any) accrued, and (i) all other related
outstanding amounts payable by the Company to the holder of
such Notes.

The total net proceeds received by the Company from the issue of the
Convertible Bonds and the Notes have been split between a liability
component and a conversion option derivative component in its initial
recognition as follows:

@

Liability component is initially measured at fair value amounted
to approximately RMB583,652,000, which represents the present
value of the contractually determined stream of future cash
flows discounted at the prevailing market interest rate at that
time applicable to instruments of comparable credit status and
providing substantially the same cash flows with the Convertible
Bonds and the Notes. It is subsequently measured at amortised
cost by applying an effective interest rate of 16.10% per annum
after considering the effect of the transaction costs;
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e ISR R R ()

For the year ended 31 December 2015 & Z2015F 12531 H 1 F/Z

33. Convertible Bonds and Notes (continued)

(b)

In the opinion of the Directors, the economic characteristics
and risks of the early redemption option of the Notes are closely
related to the host debt contract of the Notes. Therefore, the
Company does not account for the early redemption option
separately; and

Conversion option derivative component, which is equal to
the difference between the net proceeds of the Convertible
Bonds and the Notes received and the fair value of the liability
components of the Convertible Bonds and the Notes, amounted
to approximately RMB62,279,000 at its initial recognition and
measured at fair value with changes in fair value recognised in
profit or loss.

The movements of the liability component and derivative component of
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the Convertible Bonds and the Notes for the year are set out below: =EyT -
Liability Derivative
component component
of the Liability of the
Convertible component Convertible
Bonds of the Notes Bonds
AERES =8B AERES
a&85 a&85 BRI
RMB’'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBFT AERETT ARETT

Convertible Bonds and Notes issued 72015412 5308 2171

on 30 December 2015 AJERES R 285,024 298,628 62,279
Transaction costs incurred AR EETTRAR (3,311) (4,035) -
Exchange realignment bE H R 2 1,664 1,744 364
As at 31 December 2015 2015512331 &5 283,377 296,337 62,643

No conversion or redemption of the Convertible Bonds and the Notes
has occurred up to 31 December 2015.

NEIMBEITHAERESHEZRERS
2015612 A31 A L FE I R E sk g
Bl =)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e PR R MR (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2015 & Z2015F 12531 H 1 F/Z

34. Share Capital 34. BB
Share capital of the Group includes only issued and fully paid share AEBERARBIEATIEHA D ETI K
capital of the Company as set out below. RAARMRA -
Equivalent
Nominal nominal
Number of value of value of
ordinary ordinary ordinary
shares shares shares
ZER ZER ZER
B [k £EMHE
‘000 HK$'000 RMB'000
T AERETT AERETT
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each: FREESE0.01 T TR
Authorised: VETE
On 13 February 2014 (date of 1201442 A13H
incorporation) (note i) (FEMASZ BHR) (5% 38,000 380 299
0On 6 August 2014(note iv) 201468 A6 H (MizEiv) 4,962,000 49,620 39,493
As at 31 December 2014 and 2014412 A31H £
31 December 2015 201512 A31H 5,000,000 50,000 39,792
Issued and fully paid: BITWHRE
Issued on 13 February 2014 2014627131
(date of incorporation) (note ii) (5EBAC S B ER) B8 7T
(PR &I 10 - -
Issued on 21 February 2014(note i) #A20144E2 A21 B 247 (FI i) 10 - -
Issued on 6 August 2014(note iv) 201448 A6 A 81T (Mf3Eiv) 1,271,980 12,720 10,124
Issued on 25 August 2014(note v) 7201448 A25 8 217 (M zEiv) 328,000 3,280 2,609
Issued on 17 September 2014(note vi) 7201449 517 B 277 (M sEvi) 37,641 376 298
As at 31 December 2014 and EHZE2014F12A318 &
31 December 2015 201512 A31H 1,637,641 16,376 13,031
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 & Z2015F 12531 H 1 F/Z

34. Share Capital continued)

Notes:

0]

(in)

(iif)

On 13 February 2014, the Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands
as an exempted company with limited liability with an authorised share
capital of HK$380,000 divided into 38,000,000 shares with a par value of
HK$0.01 each.

On 13 February 2014, one share was allotted and issued to the initial
subscriber, an independent third party, and then transferred to Profit East.
On the same day, the Company allotted and issued an additional 9,999
shares, credited as fully paid, to Profit East at par value.

On 21 February 2014, the Company acquired all the issued share capital
in Shing Cheong Holdings from Profit East, in consideration of which the
Company allotted and issued 10,000 shares, credited as fully paid, to Profit
East.

On 6 August 2014, the shareholders of the Company approve the increase
of the authorised share capital of the Company from HK$380,000 divided
into 38,000,000 ordinary shares with a par value of HK$0.01 each to
HK$50,000,000 divided into 5,000,000,000 ordinary shares with a par value
of HK$0.01 each.

Pursuant to the loan capitalization agreement dated 6 August 2014 entered
into by, among others, the Company and Profit East and the written
resolution of the shareholders of the Company passed on 6 August 2014,
the Directors were authorised to allot and issue 100 ordinary shares
credited as fully paid at par to Profit East immediately prior to the initial
public offering and listing of the shares of the Company on the Stock
Exchange (the “Listing") by way of capitalization of the entire loan from
Profit East of US$38,270,000 (equivalent to approximately RMB234,216,000)
(the “Capitalization of Loan”), and the ordinary shares to be allotted and
issued pursuant to the Capitalization of Loan shall rank pari passu in all
respects with the existing issued ordinary shares including the entitlement
to the Capitalization Issue (as defined in note (v) below) and the ordinary
shares to be issued pursuant to the Capitalization Issue.

Pursuant to the written resolutions of the shareholders of the Company
passed on 6 August 2014, conditional upon the share premium account
of the Company being credited as a result of the issue of shares pursuant
to the Hong Kong public offering and international offering of shares of
the Company, the Directors were authorised to allot and issue a total
of 1,271,979,900 ordinary shares credited as fully paid at par to the
shareholders of the Company whose names appear on the register of
members of the Company at close of business on the second business day
immediately preceding the date on which dealing in the ordinary shares
of the Company first commences on the Stock Exchange in proportion
to their respective shareholdings by way of capitalization of the sum of
HK$12,719,799 (equivalent to RMB10,124,000) standing to the credit of the
share premium account of the Company (the “Capitalization Issue”), and
the ordinary shares to be allotted and issued pursuant to the Capitalization
Issue shall rank pari passu in all respects with the existing issued ordinary
shares and the ordinary shares to be issued pursuant to the Capitalization
of Loan.

182 FEEHELTELEESRZAT China VAST Industrial Urban Development Company Limited

34. BRA ()

PR -

(0]

(ih)

(i)

W2014%62R138 - ARREREHST
MR AZHREERAT  EERARE
#380,0007T + 9 A38,000,000/% & i &
0.0 TRV

201442 138 - BL# R BT — ARG
FTRRBA(RBILE=T)  BREHE
ETHR - FAH - AAFREERSERE
FTERON, 999N IR AR AR A7 T HIR

R2014F2 8218 » 782 A [A) F) 52 U HE o5
EERA 2 IR EITRA - RAFARF
AR EE 2 341710, 000MR ARSI A4 2 I 15
VER¥EE -

R2014F8F6H + AR RIREIIEARRQR]
YETE I ZN B 9 /38, 000,000 % 3 A% & A% &
EA0.01T B iR {9 HEHE 5380, 0007T -
# % 5> /55, 000,000,000% & i 5 A EE S
#50.01 7T /AR5 25178 #5550, 000,0007T ©

BIEREFEE2014E8A6EFITNE
BRI R AR T RN 201448 B
6HBBREERE  ARAEFENE
EEEARNREBZITE N AREE LG
fefn L (T B ) AT - SFI R AR
B 338,270,000 T (KA E R AR
234,216,0007T ) A& AL 77 N iR A B 2
REITI00REBRAG TRIR(TEREXR
£1) « WIZEEHZRND AR - MREKEZ
BEREARH BRI RETHLRBER
BHEERENLBR(BIERBEREE
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BERNMEBETHESHITHTBR) ZBRSE
HOfL o

BIEARAFTREN2014E8 A6HFBHNE
FERZ (ZRARIEAAREESERAH
BEREEBEEFERNDEERNEE
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AR APRE(RBEEARA R T @A
BIREBMRAEBENE @RS B
T HEBEREARARRERM L)
SEE AL E12,719,799 7T (FEE A R
10,124,0007T ) 5K FE (FE AR R R AR A ) {8 7
B I TIZE ) IR S B MR AR LL D 3 2
1T L EF1,271,979,900 0% 12 44 2 J& 1D AR
GE BRI ([EANMEEIT)) - MIREE
AMEBITRLE KRBT BB NATE HE
HEANEARRBIEEREA G SR
1T BAR =B RS HAL -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e PR R MR (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2015 & Z2015F 12531 H 1 F/Z

34. Share Capital continued)

Notes: (Continued)

35.

v)

On 25 August 2014, the Company issued 328,000,000 ordinary shares of
HK$0.01 each at the price of HK$3.10 per share by way of public offering.
On the same date, the Company’s shares were listed on the Stock
Exchange.

(vij  On 17 September 2014, the Company further issued an additional
37,641,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each at the price of HK$3.10 per
share.

Reserves

The amounts of the Group's reserves and the movements therein for
the reporting period are presented in the consolidated statement of
changes in equity.

The principal reserves of the Group consist of the following:

)

(ii)

Merger reserve

The merger reserve in these consolidated statement of financial
position as at 31 December 2015 and 2014 represented the share
capital of Shing Cheong Holdings.

Share premium

Share premium at 31 December 2015 represented share premium
of the Company. The share premium account is governed by the
Cayman Companies Law and may be applied by the Company
subject to the provisions, if any, of its memorandum and articles
of association in (a) paying distributions or dividends to members;
(b) paying up unissued shares of the Company to be issued to
equity shareholders as fully paid bonus shares; (c) the redemption
and repurchase of shares (subject to the provisions of section 37
of the Cayman Companies Law); (d) writing-off the preliminary
expenses of the Company; and (e) writing-off the expenses of, or
the commission paid or discount allowed on, any issue of shares
or debentures of the Company.

No distribution or dividend may be paid to the equity shareholders
out of the share premium account unless immediately following
the date on which the distribution or dividend is proposed to be
paid, the Company will be able to pay its debts as they fall due in
the ordinary course of business.

34.

35.

BR A ()

faE - (&)

(v) 201448 H258 « AR FHREMEE3.10
TLHI AR A AR5 5 =X 877328, 000,000
AR R B 0.01 TR E @AY - RNARIRRE
B fERF AP T -

(Vi) M2014F9R17H » RARIRERBES.I0
TURIRR (B — 2531737, 641,0000 5 /% #
¥0.01 TR @R -

(EA]
AR SR B o S PO 0 A 2 R A R A
MRE - A EERBEPRITIIR -

REETENRBRIETIIEE

(i) &ptFEE
f£20154F K 20144F 12 A31 Bir & B 75
RREFRFRHE HHERERIEREE
ARBVBUA o

&N

2015512 A3TBMRASHEE @ 15X
RATHBRAHE - RARERIE =
TIRSHESEE  WAREAQR
DRIEEMIER - ER @)K B X
DIRSIREFIA - (O)BE G SRR
BRETIERBECREBRMFEHA
NEETORG ¢ (L & EER %
(FETHERESRRIEEIKZMA
E)  (AARIFANERMZE UK
@) HA R R EITEAR MDA RIE
FHMER - MG T
0 mEAERA -

(ii)

BT EERRELRFGFENA
& REAIEHERFRLENEBHEY
BI BRI AR ENRE
P AR AR AR S DR S S B BRI -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e PR R MR (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2015 & Z2015F 12531 H 1 F/Z

34. BRA ()
(iii) EZEfFE B

35. Reserves (continued)
(iii) Statutory reserve

Pursuant to the relevant PRC rules and regulations, those
subsidiaries of the Group established in the PRC are required
to transfer no less than 10% of their profits after taxation, after
offsetting any prior years' losses as determined under the relevant
accounting policies and financial regulations applicable to entities
established in the PRC, to the statutory reserve until the reserve
balance reaches 50% of the registered capital. The transfer to
this reserve must be made before the distribution of a dividend
to equity owners of these PRC subsidiaries. Statutory reserve is
non-distributable other than in liquidation and can be used to
make good previous years' losses, if any, and may be converted
into paid-in capital in proportion to the existing interests of equity
owners, provided that the balance after such conversion is not
less than 25% of the registered capital.

RiEHEAREMBE S BEBERE
B EERNEPBIRESARZF
REIFRBZEREAEBERRPEEA
BZH) AR & At BB TSR AR 2
KT - FEEBRRFRE R EIARFE
BRI - IRERT A R10%H9F F R
EANEE R BIEERBORE
ZRZ AR EAREN50% o feBUA
ERmEOAERTBEARERAMREDN
PR R ) FC AR 2 ATETT © BRIRZ
WEEMIBERIN  EE BT
ROEBMZA - BB ARIFER
K OEERBBIERARNFEERLN
FH o EERBEIRRE KRR

B Pl BEEHBRER - BF
mREIREERBOBEN DRI

& AR H25% -
36. Operating Lease Commitments 36. RREHEA
The Group as lessor AEBEERBEHBEA

RREPRERE - REREBASEITS
FIZEB A N RRSAERE K -

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had contracted with
tenants for the following future minimum lease payments.

At 31 December

M12H31H
2015 2014
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET AREF T
Within one year —FLAR 15,575 9,962
In the second to the fifth year, inclusive F_ERF(BIEEEMRSE) 39,475 11,883
After the fifth year ERHEE 28,563 243
83,613 22,088

REMOBEARERANRENERH
BN F—F2+F - WEHTIEEML

Operating lease related to the investment properties owned by the
Group with lease terms of between 1 to 10 years. None of the leases
includes any contingent rentals and renewal options.
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 & Z2015F 12531 H 1 F/Z

36. Operating Lease Commitments (continueq)

37.

The Group as lessee

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had commitments for
future minimum lease payments under a non-cancellable operating
lease which fall due as follows:

36.

REHERFE =)
AEBEAEBEA

R R4 RS - AEE RS AT B
51 58 0 7 T BN 7 3R 2 1 48 A TR 4 R
E‘g :

At 31 December

M12A31H
2015 2014
RMB’000 RMB'000
ART ANEETT
Within one year —FEURN 23,457 7,024
In the second to the fifth year, inclusive FoFEERF(RIEEMME) 68,704 24,780
92,161 31,804

Operating lease payments with terms of between 1 to 5 years,
represent rentals payable by the Group for certain of its office premises.
None of the leases includes any contingent rentals and renewal options.

Commitments
At the end of the reporting period, the Group had the following
commitments:

37.

REHENFRBN T —F=0F - KKK
SEETHAEMEEMNES - WHEL
BREEMNRAES MEOE -
BAREH

PRIRE EARAE R - REE B T AGE

At 31 December

#A12831H
2015 2014
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET R ARETT
Contracted but not provided for in the BT A RER RIS
consolidated financial statements: affEmEP
Expenditure in respect of land development ERFELHMARBENTH
for sale 72,002 89,104
Expenditure in respect of properties under FRFERETRYENTH
development for sale 56,321 768,005
Expenditure in respect of investment properties HREREWEN T H 1,656 -
129,979 857,109

The commitments above at the end of the reporting period are to be
settled according to the progress of the future development of the
underlying projects which might not be necessarily incurred within
twelve months from the end of the reporting period.

LA = 72 R 5 B P 45 SR A 8 AR R G R TR
HEABEBNARAREREZHE - HREE
BV E A AGE N —ER %S B HiE1218 A
WEXE °
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 & Z2015F 12531 H 1 F/Z

38. Contingent Liabilities

38.

HERE

At 31 December

MA12H31H
2015 2014
RMB’'000 RMB'000
AR®TT ARETT
Mortgage loan guarantees provided by the Group ZAN&EE A HE S AHRITREH
to banks in favour of its customers (note a) RIBEFER(MTa) 786,106 583,713
Guarantee provided to a bank in respect of a P E N FERMRITRE R
banking facility granted to an associate (note b)  $R{TIREEFER (FzEb) = 227,000
Guarantee provided to a bank in respect of a BB = HIERMRITRER
banking facility granted to a third party (note b) ~ $R{TIEEMER (MIEb) = 33,000
786,106 843,713

Notes:

a. In the opinion of the Directors, the fair values of the financial guarantee
contracts of the Group are insignificant at initial recognition, taking into
consideration the possibility of default by the relevant buyers and, in case
of default in payments, the net realisable value of the related properties
can recover the repayment of the outstanding mortgage principals together
with the accrued interest and penalty. Accordingly, no provision has been
made in these consolidated financial statements for these guarantees.

b. The fair value of these financial guarantee contracts were insignificant at
the date of issue of the financial guarantee and at the end of each reporting
period. These guarantees were released during the year.

39. Retirement Benefit Plans

The employees of the Group are members of the state-managed
retirement benefits scheme operated by the PRC government authority.
The PRC subsidiaries are required to contribute specified rate of the
employees’ salaries to the retirement benefits scheme to fund the
benefits. The only obligation of the Group with respect to the retirement
benefits scheme is to make the required contributions under the
scheme.

In accordance with the relevant mandatory provident fund laws and
regulations of Hong Kong, the Group operates a Mandatory Provident
Fund scheme (“MPF Scheme”) for all qualifying Hong Kong employees.
The assets of the scheme are held separately from those of the Group
and under the control of an independent MPF service provider. Under
the rules of the MPF Scheme, the employer and its employees are
required to make contributions to the scheme at rates specified in the
rules separately. The only obligation of the Group in respect of the MPF
Scheme is to make the required contributions under the scheme.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e PR R MR (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2015 & Z2015F 12531 H 1 F/Z

40. Share-Based Payment Transactions

(i)

(i)

Details of the employee share option plan of
the Company

The Company’s share option scheme (the “Scheme”), was
adopted pursuant to a resolution passed on 21 July 2015 for the
primary purpose of providing incentives to Directors and eligible
employees. Under the Scheme, the Company may grant to eligible
employees including Directors, employees, consultants, business
partners or advisers, to subscribe for shares in the Company.

At 31 December 2015, the number of shares in respect of which
options had been granted under the Scheme was 90,750,000,
representing 5.5% of the shares of the Company in issue at that
date. The total number of shares in respect of which options
may be granted under the Scheme is not permitted to exceed
163,764,100 shares of the Company, without prior approval from
the Company'’s shareholders.

Among the total share options, one-third of which are exercisable
during the periods from 28 July 2016 to 31 July 2019, from 28
July 2017 to 31 July 2019 and from 28 July 2018 to 31 July 2019,
respectively. The exercise price of HK$3.02 per share represents
a premium of 0.07% over the highest of () the closing price of
HK$2.80 per share as stated in the daily quotation sheets issued
by the Stock Exchange on the date of grant; and (ii) the average
closing price of HK$3.018 per share as stated in the daily quotation
sheets issued by the Stock Exchange for the five business days
immediately preceding the date of grant.

The following share-based payment arrangements were in
existence during the current year:

40. LR AEBRN AR S

)

(i)

RAFEE TR E R AER
ELLA

RAHNABHEEA RS BTHE
#) - E201547 A21 BBBL BT T
AR BT 8 ([t 8)) - 7
ZEHET - ARTUEARNRGE
FHATAGHNET - 0FEE -
BE - BRIARDRES ENAES
s

&

o

BZE2015F 128311 » fE&aT &I T A
B SMR T e $7390,750,000
IERARRG EIE5% A A AR
NERREELAMER - REEZ
BT EIMNE TR BT REE B
163,764,1008% °

ERARRERGEES =9 2—
M ERREZE 201657 A28 B 201947
A3MBTE - BIN=02 —mHEEE
201747 A28 A E=201947 A3181T
- BT =92 —HERER20184F
7A28B E201967 A3 BITE - 17HE
EERRMNBE302TE FII&ER
=& H0.07%8 5 (E « ()AL B BT
BEBMERSBR AR ([BFT])
HEmETRRERMBOHWTESR
PDE2.807T  RINVREEF LA
MR REEXAERIAMTENER
WMERMBEOTFHR T ETRAR DS
#3.0187T °

RE RPN AR REH A ST
LZHHAT

Number Grant date Expiry date Exercise price  Fair value at grant date
e REBH EH A 1THEE R BN AFE
82,350,000* 28 July 2015 28 July 2019 HK$3.02 HK$46,581,000
201547 H28H 201947 A28H 73,027 7 46,581,0007C

* Certain employees, who have been awarded share options of
8,400,000, were ceased their services with the Group prior to the
date of these consolidated financial statements. Hence, these share
options will not vest under the employee share option plan.

* EEEAGERARN  BHORET
& 53 57 4 #£ 518,400,000 % & Bk T4
NEIRERL o 55 e IR RO B0 A
B EBNZE TREEINERE
A o
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 & Z2015F 12531 H 1 F/Z

40. Share-Based Payment Transactions contnues) 40. AR BEBNZ AR B @)

(iii) Fair value of share options granted in the year

The fair values of the options determined at the date of grant using
the Binomial Model. The following assumptions were used to
calculate the fair values of share options:

(i) 2% B R R A T

=]
HRERL AN A TERRE —IRH
REEERLPTETER o AT ARG
B M B A EMRER

Options granted on

28 July 2015
B 43 ERRE IR
201567 H28A&FEH
Grant date share price HK$2.80 per share
B BRRE A2 80T E AR
Exercise price HK$3.02 per share
TR FBHE3.027T %
Expected volatility 37.73%
SER R EIES
Expected option life 3years
BT S 3%
Risk-free interest rate 3.00%
17 @ A 2
Dividend yield 5.36%
e

Expected volatility was determined by using the historical
volatility of the Company’s share price over the previous years.
The expected life used in the model has been adjusted, based
on management’s best estimate, for the effects of exercise
restrictions and behavioural considerations.

The Group recognised the total expense of RMB4,751,000 for
the year (2014: Nil) in relation to share options granted by the
company.

The Binomial Model has been used to estimate the fair value of
the options. The variables and assumptions used in computing
the fair value of the share options are based on the Directors’
best estimate. Changes in variables and assumptions may result
in changes in the fair value of the options.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 & Z2015F 12531 H 1 F/Z

41.Acquisition of the Remaining Equity 41. W& EMCEMET IRE
Interest in the Joint Venture

0On 27 January 2014, the Group entered into a share purchase agreement R201441 27 8 + 7 & B £ Goodman
with Goodman China Limited, pursuant to which, Goodman China China Limited ( & B8 35 5= R 8%t B [& AR 7%
Limited has agreed to transfer its 50% shareholding interest in Langfang (REBRNAELE NS —REELER
Goodman Vast Park Service to the Group at a cash consideration of ) RIN RD B E i - itk - Goodman
US$15 million (equivalent to approximately RMB91,553,000). As the joint China Limited[F] & 85 i E X B b 32 R A%t
venture has not yet commenced its business, the acquisition of the EE RIS Z50%A%E T ALER - WERE
remaining equity interest in the joint venture by the Group is considered 158 BT (HE R4 ARE91,553,000
as acquisition of assets and liabilities. JL) - HREEBEMARFIAEER - A%
BEUHEEECENR T RERE SWEE
ERBE-
RMB’000
AR¥ET T
Bank balances and cash WITEBRKIAS 86,037
Deposit paid to the Group YNASEENEEE 93,949
Other receivables E A FEU RIS 6,275
Other payables HAb IR (124)
Total net assets acquired BANBEEETE 186,137
Less: Fair value of the investment in the joint venture 3 : Wi A REER AN A B ENRE Y
held by the Group on acquisition date ~NTE 93,069
Consideration transferred BEEAE 91,553
Gain on acquisition (note 11) Wb 1S deas (B sE11) 1,515
Net cash outflow arising from the acquisition: WEEERRSREFE
RMB’000
AR¥TT
Cash consideration paid ENBRERREEEY 91,553
Less: cash and cash equivalents acquired BATBANR e RIREEEY (86,037)
5516
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 & Z2015F 12531 H 1 F/Z

42. Disposal of a Subsidiary 42. REF AT
In 2015, the Group has entered into an agreement with an independent E2015%F - AEBBEBIFE=FERIEH
third party to dispose of its entire equity interest in Langfang Gaodi, a HEEBRNB AR S HBEBIEHTEIRRE -
subsidiary of the Group, for a consideration of RMB30,480,000. T SEF A AREE30,480,0007T
The net assets of the subsidiary disposed of; HENBARINFEE
RMB’000
ARBET R
Properties under development for sale SRS 17,337
Trade and other payables B 5 MEMERFRIA (21,424)
Total net assets disposed of BEFEE (4,087)
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary (note 11) BE—BF AR () 34,567
Consideration receivable (note 28) 22 S B H FE W IE (M13128) 30,480
43. Non-Cash Transactions 43. kRER S
()  During the year ended 31 December 2014, Mr. Wang Jianjun ()  #HE2014F12ANBIEFE - TEF
agreed to waive an amount of RMB41,091,000 payable to him by EERBEREASEREREEENA
the Group which was accounted for as a deemed contribution R#41,091,0007T * Z KB EREL
to the Group by the Ultimate Controlling Shareholders. The TRRAR R A AN SR E L R IEDTRA
deemed contribution is subject to a tax charge of approximately IR - BEAMRIED RBHAREBOAR
RMB10,273,000. #10,273,0007T °
(i)  On 6 August 2014, the Company issued 100 ordinary shares to (i)  M2014F8H6H » AREIE B H
Profit East by way of capitalization of the entire Shareholder’s Loan B738,270,000% 7T (MEE R AR
of US$38,270,000 (equivalent to approximately RMB234,216,000). 234,216,0007T ) B2 E A1k A 7 51 2%
1T1008% & mA -
44.Related Party Balances and Transactions  44. LS ERRRS
Save as disclosed elsewhere in these consolidated financial statements, REGEMBMERAMELREIN AT AR
the following is a summary of significant transactions carried out BASEENTATRETERRZZHM
between the Group and (i) Mr. Wang Jianjun; (i) Ms. Zhao Ying and T 'IE@?&E (AL AT
Profit East, the immediate holding company of the Company; (iii) HEERABIFIE (i) 3—25?? PR AR 3R #) 22
companies controlled by Ms.Wang Wei, a daughter of the Ultimate REB L E %'JE’J (VEREXRAEZ
Controlling Shareholders; (iv) Mr. Wang Jianhai, a brother of Mr.wang R EREEE ZJS%IEG%%’AT %)
Jianjun; (v) associates of the Group; and (vi) Mr. Yang Yun, a Director. BEEGALE ?&%E%EZFEEJWJ;EEM%

The transactions with these related parties were made on terms agreed LT ©
among the parties.
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44.Related Party Balances and Transactions 44. BB A &8RS @)

(Continued)

(a) Related party balances

Balances as at the end of each reporting period with related
parties:

(@) BAERTT &6k

NERE AR AR EBER SN
£ -

At 31 December

MA12831H
2015 2014
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥ T AREFT
Amounts due from: WL A L5008 :
An associate: /NS
- Huarong Shengshi —EEFRAR 3,606 -

The above outstanding receivables to related parties are of non-
trade nature, denominated in RMB, unsecured, interest-free and
recoverable on demand.

The following information is disclosed pursuant to section 78 of
Schedule 11 to the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622),
which requires compliance with section 161B of the predecessor
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 32).

bt SRR Ty R R A EIEE S 1t
B UARBHE SRR 28R
AR—FRm -

AT ERRIEEE ARG (%622

B)MRVB78IEIEE - HETH &
ERERAVEDI(F328)FE161B%

Maximum amount outstanding

S ESES N ]
Year ended 31 December
BE12A31MALEE
Name of related party BESHR BB 2015 2014
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETR AEEFTT
Ms. Zhao Ying i = 92
Immediate holding company: BEREERAT
— Profit East —FR - 47
Mr. Wang Jianhai TEEE = 64
Companies controlled by Ms.wang Wei: TR TES AR -
- Hongtai Commercial Co., Ltd —BHEEE
(“Hongtai Commercial ) - 2,453
— Langfang Wantong Cemetery Co., Ltd — B
("Wantong") = 3,500
A Director: —RESF:
—Mr. Yang Yun — IG5 = 500
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e ISR R R ()

For the year ended 31 December 2015 & Z2015F 12531 H 1 F/Z

44.Related Party Balances and Transactions 44.BEAXERESR @)

(Continued)
(a) Related party balances (continued)

(a) BELXRS @)

At 31 December

M128318
2015 2014
RMB’'000 RMB'000
ARET R ARETT
Amounts due to: BT ALRE :
An associate: NS
- Huayuan — )R 3,104 3,104

The above outstanding payable to a related party is of trade
nature, denominated in RMB, unsecured, interest-free and
repayable on demand. The following is an aged analysis of the
above outstanding payable of trade nature, presented based on
service received date, at the end of each of the reporting period:

bt A BARE T SRR RN R A B S 1%
g RARBEE  BER 28 NEAR
ERER - NERESHEAERS - LB
Z 1B E AR AN FORREE X R A 5
FIERER DTN -

At 31 December

M®12A31H
2015 2014
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET R AEETT
110 2 years 15226 = 3,104
2 to 3 years 2E3F 3,104 -
3,104 3,104
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e PR R MR (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2015 & Z2015F 12531 H 1 F/Z

44.Related Party Balances and Transactions

(Continued)

(b)

(c)

(d)

Related party transactions
During the reporting period, the Group entered into the following
transactions with its related parties:

44. BB R Z R &tk
(b) EEEARS
P 8 EART S SRES - AN SE | R
FEINATRS :

Year ended 31 December

BZE12A3MALEE

Nature of transaction 2015 2014

XEHE RMB’000 RMB'000

AR¥F T ARETT

(unaudited) (Unaudited)

(REER) (REER)

Hongtai Commercial Interest expense = 4,342

RREHR MEEBEA

Mr. Wang Jianjun Waiver of debt owed by the Group - 41,091

FRELEAE R AREBERNEE

The Group provided guarantee to a bank in respect of banking
facilities granted to an associate of the Group. Details are set out
in note 38.

The ultimate controlling shareholders provided jointly guarantee
to an independent third party in respect of other loans of the
Group. Details are set out in note 32(b)(ii)

Compensation of key management personnel
Key management personnel are those senior management
having authority and responsibility for planning, directing and
controlling the activities of the Group, directly or indirectly. The
key management personnel compensation is as follows:

(C) FEEBAEEBEATNERFITH
A ERITIRIER - BERRH
38 e

SRR A S B BT E
MBS TREARRR -
FLHTEE32(b)i) ©

(d) FEEBASHMN
TREBBABRERNRARLE
BERRERE BRI AR EE
BEBNBRERE - EBERAT
FE T

Year ended 31 December

BZ12A31BLEFE
2015 2014
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTT ARETT
Salaries and other benefits Fre REMEF 5,733 3,680
Contribution to retirement benefit scheme  RKEFIEHEI(E 3R 130 75

Discretionary performance [NEE

- related bonus —HMRTEAT 2,939 1,870
Share-based payment expenses f&1n 21 & A 1,190 -
9,992 5,625

Bonuses are calculated based on the Group's performance for
such financial year.

AR EZ Y BREEAE BRI

o

o ot
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e PR R MR (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2015 & Z2015F 12531 H 1 F/Z

45. "N T B AR R
A EIF2014F2 B 138 EH SRS A
37 WH2014F2 A21 B AR EBIZR A
Al BEARRN2015F12 A3 BN %
RRERMERIT

45. Financial Information of the Company
The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 13 February
2014 and became the holding company of the Group as at 21 February
2014. Information about the statement of financial position of the
Company as at 31 December 2015 is as follows:

At 31 December

M12A31H
2015 2014
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ T ARET T
Non-current asset EMEEE
Investment in a subsidiary (note i) MM ER R E 1,627,033 1,330,393
Current asset MENVEE
Bank balances and cash RITHEHB LIRS 57,501 322,239
Total assets wEE 1,684,534 1,652,632
Current liabilities mEAE
Amounts due to subsidiaries NGB 5,882 21,956
Other payables H b FIE = 3,545
Bank and other borrowings RITREMER 225,722 587,552
231,604 613,053
Net current liabilities B A EFE (174,103) (290,814)
Total assets less current liabilities BEMAEBERREAE 1,452,930 1,039,579
Non-current liabilities FERBBIE
Convertible Bonds and Notes AT ES R RIE 579,714 -
Derivative PTEMBIA 62,643 -
642,357 -
Net assets FEE 810,573 1,039,579
Capital and reserves BEAR K
Share capital &% 7 13,031 13,031
Reserves il 797,542 1,026,548
Total equity flibed 810,573 1,039,579
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e ISR R R ()

For the year ended 31 December 2015 & Z2015F 12531 H 1 F/Z

45.Financial Information of the Company

(Continued)
Note:

(i) Amount represents the deemed cost of investment made in Shing Cheong
Holdings. During the year ended 31 December 2014, the Company received
a Shareholder’s Loan of US$38,270,000 (equivalent to approximately
RMB234,216,000) from Profit East during the years ended 31 December
2014. After receiving this Shareholder’s Loan, the Company immediately
advanced the full amount to Shing Cheong Holdings. In August 2014, Shing
Cheong Holdings issued new shares to the Company to fully settle this
outstanding amount payable to the Company. In addition to which, the
Company also made an advance of RMB1,096,177,000 and RMB296,640,000
to Shing Cheong Holdings during the years ended 31 December 2014 and
2015 respectively. Prior to the end of 2014 and 2015, the Company decided
to waive for the settlement of the receivables of RMB1,096,177,000 and
RMB296,640,000, respectively, from Shing Cheong Holdings which was
accounted for as further capital contribution to Shing Cheong Holdings
by the Company. Prior to the above transactions, the deemed cost of the
Company's investment in Shing Cheong Holdings was recognised at nil
as Shing Cheong Holdings was in a net liability position on 21 February
2014, the date on which the Company became the holding company of the
Group.

Information about the statement of change in equity of the Company for
the year ended 31 December 2015 is as follows:

45. RN T B AR ()

BifaE:

@

ZECERAWEERELOIRAIRER
Ao RER - AQARIKEIFREEZE2014F
12 A 318 IEF 5 89 ik 3 & 738,270,000
T (FAE R4 AREE234,216,0007T) » WE
BREERE - KRR AIRME TR
2EEE - R201448 A » HEEBRAAR
RIBATENAR ) AR BUE (B FE AN R B O 14
KEESHE o RIS - RARIHR2014F
A A PR AR 1R AR #51,096,177,000 7T
BB - R2015F M EEREE AR
#296,640,0007T KIE R © FA20145F AT -
A RLRER M E RSB A B MG
18 A R #1,096,177,000 7T * #2015 K
Al - AARPREREHEERSERRBE
W ka8 A R #5296,640,0007F + 3% BB
EAR QB A E G — P F & o LT
i Z A AR EERRARRIKA
REBIZERARZA014F28218) &
FFREARR - AR RN EERIEE
IWEIER AL THER -

BRARAREZE2015F12 831 A FE R
EmEBROT -

Share Share Share option Accumulated
capital premium reserve losses Total
R RARE REDEGRE R2iEB &t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETR  AR%Tn  AR®TR  AR%TRT  AR%TR
Issue of new shares on the date of incorporation #4537 B #1877k - - - - _
Issue of new shares to the public RARETHR 2,907 898,466 - - 901,373
Transaction costs attributable to issue of BTRENR HMA
new ordinary shares - (64,199) - - (64,199)
Capitalization of share premium BAREE AL 10,124 (10,124) - - -
Capitalization of Shareholder's Loan BREFEAL - 234,216 - - 234,216
Loss and total comprehensive expenses FREERZERZEE
for the period - - - (31,811) (31,811)
At 31 December 2014 2014F12A318 13,031 1,058,359 - (31,811) 1,039,579
Loss and total comprehensive expenses FABEREARTGE
for the year - - - (35,940) (35,940)
Dividend distribution BREDE - (197,817) - - (197,817)
Recognition of equity-settled REFEHER
share-based payments - - 4,751 - 4,751
At 31 December 2015 2015F12A318 13,031 860,542 4751 (67,751) 810,573

Annual Report 2015 £

195



FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY
HFEERE

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group for the — AREEFZA AASREE 2 EEREE N B E]
last five financial years, as extracted from the audited financial statements is ~ E&EFI0T + JyiEsk A L BAZI SR o
set out below.

Results ¥E

Year ended 31 December
BZ12A31BLLEE
2015 2014 2013 2012 2011
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTRT ARETT ARETT ARBTRT AR®ETT

Revenue Wz 1,423,706 2,391,205 1,212,904 467,452 1,201,189
Gross profit EH 610,983 1,128,092 818,192 130,469 625,880
Profit before tax R Tt AT Y58 680,964 931,647 799,461 265,762 673,729
Income tax expense FriSfiF (167,383) (231,049) (36,000) (37,748) (86,812)
Profit and total comprehensive FERARAT]

income attributable to =N/

owners of the Company A REE

for the year W e 4858 513,581 700,598 763,461 228,014 586,917
Assets and Liabilities EERERE

As of 31 December
MA12831A8
2015 2014 2013 2012 2011

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARETIT ARETT ARKETT ARETET

Non-current assets IEREEE 1,217,959 925,741 996,305 1,087,733 814,874
Current assets MEVEE 7,091,304 6,014,520 5,757,628 4,397,582 3,371,585
Total assets EEBE 8,309,263 6,940,261 6,753,933 5,485,315 4,186,459
Non-current liabilities ERBAE 2,214,954 1,138,756 1,452,599 1,066,026 1,319,373
Ccurrent liabilities EEAE 3,272,986 3,300,697 4,603,332 4484103 3,157,803
Total liabilities a8 5,487,940 4,439,453 6,055,931 5,550,129 4,477,176
Equity attributable to owners PN/NGIEZZ SN

of the Company FE(G AR 2,821,323 2,500,808 698,002 (64,814) (290,717)
Total Equity Faliberd 2,821,323 2,500,808 698,002 (64,814) (290,717)
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